
 
 

 

 To: Councillor John West, Convener; Councillor Jennifer Stewart, Vice-Convener;  
Councillors Allan, Boulton, Collie, Cooney, Cormack, Greig, Laing, Leslie, 
MacGregor, May, McCaig, Reynolds, Townson, Kirsty West, Wisely and Yuill;  
and Mrs M Abdullah, Mr G Bruce, Mr P Campbell, Mr S Duncan, Mr M Maclean, 
Mr A Nicoll and Mrs I Wischik. 
  

 
 

Town House, 
ABERDEEN 16 November 2011 

 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
 

 The Members of the EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE are 
requested to meet in Committee Room 2 - Town House on THURSDAY, 24 NOVEMBER 
2011 at 2.00 pm. 
 
 
  

 
 

JANE G. MACEACHRAN 
 HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

 
B U S I N E S S 

 
 EXEMPT BUSINESS 

 

 1.1  Determination of Exempt Business   
  Members are requested to resolve that the business listed at item 10.1 on 

this agenda be considered with the press and public excluded. 
 

 REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATION 
 

 2.1  No requests received at present.   
 

 MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

 3.1  Minute of Previous Meeting of 15 September 2011  (Pages 1 - 14) 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

 MOTIONS 
 

 4.1  Motion by Councillor Boulton - Placing Requests / Out of Zone Admissions  
(Pages 15 - 22) 
 

 SERVICE WIDE REPORTS 
 

 5.1  2011/12 Budget Monitoring  (Pages 23 - 34) 
 

 5.2  Capital Monitoring - Education, Culture and Sport Projects  (Pages 35 - 40) 
 

 EDUCATION 
 

 6.1  Queen's Diamond Jubilee Bank Holiday - 5 June 2012  (Pages 41 - 44) 
 

 6.2  Community Development Fund - Childcare and Out of School Provision  
(Pages 45 - 52) 
 

 6.3  Community Centres  (Pages 53 - 66) 
 

 CULTURE 
 

 7.1  No reports under this heading.   
 

 SPORT 
 

 8.1  Sports Grants  (Pages 67 - 72) 
 

 8.2  Water Management Plan  (Pages 73 - 86) 
 

 COMMITTEE BUSINESS, MOTIONS AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 
 

 9.1  Committee Business Statement  (Pages 87 - 102) 
 

 9.2  Motions List  (Pages 103 - 106) 
 

 9.3  Education, Culture and Sport Performance Report  (Pages 107 - 154) 
 

10 ITEM WHICH THE COMMITTEE MAY WISH TO CONSIDER IN PRIVATE   
 



 
 
 

 10.1  Motion by Councillor Boulton - Placing Requests / Out of Zone Admissions  
(Pages 155 - 158) 
 

 
 

 
Please note that reports marked with an * have implications for agreed Priority Based 

Budget (PBB) options. 
 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Vikki 
Cuthbert, tel. (52)2520 or e-mail vcuthbert@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

ABERDEEN, 15 September 2011.  Minute of Meeting of the EDUCATION, 
CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE.  Present:-  Councillor John West, 
Convener; Councillor Jennifer Stewart, Vice-Convener; and Councillors Cormie 
(as substitute for Councillor Kirsty West), Allan, Boulton, Cooney, Cormack, 
Crockett (as substitute for Councillor Collie), Greig, Laing, Leslie, MacGregor, 
May, McCaig, Reynolds, Townson, Kirsty West, Wisely and Yuill. External 
Members:- Mr G Bruce, Mr P Campbell, Mr S Duncan and Mrs P Pritchard. 

 
 
 

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found at:- 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=143&MId=1913&Ver=4  
 

 
 
DETERMINATION OF EXEMPT BUSINESS 
 
1. Prior to considering the matters before the Committee, the Convener proposed 
that, in terms of Section 50(A)(4) of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the 
items identified as article 20, 21 and 22 of this minute be considered with the press and 
public excluded so as to avoid disclosure of exempt information of the class described 
in paragraphs 8 and 9 (article 20) and paragraph 6 (articles 21 and 22). 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to consider the aforementioned items with the press and public excluded. 
 
 
 
MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
2. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 2 June, 2011. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to instruct officers to make information available to Councillor Cooney, as set out 

in article 7 (Station House Media Unit) and 9 (Rugby Development Programme), 
as soon as possible; 

(ii) to instruct officers to provide Committee members with a breakdown of 
admissions to the Virtual Campus when this was available; and 

(iii) to otherwise approve the minute. 
 
 
 
PARENTAL INVOLVEMENT IN EDUCATION - INCLUSION OF A PARENT 
REPRESENTATIVE ON THE COMMITTEE RESPONSIBLE FOR EDUCATION 
SERVICES - MOTION BY COUNCILLOR CORMACK - ECS/11/060 
 
3. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport which sought approval to appoint a member of the Aberdeen City Parent Council 
Forum to the Education, Culture and Sport Committee, with voting powers. 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 1



2 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) note the background information and the position in other local authorities in 

Scotland; and 
(b) note the options for adding a parent representative to the Committee and 

approve Option 2 (to add a parent representative from the ACPCF to the 
Committee, with voting rights) using the powers of the Local Government 
(Scotland) Act 1973 to give this effect and referring the necessary changes to 
Standing Orders to the Council for approval. 

 
Councillor Boulton, seconded by Councillor Laing, moved – 
that the recommendations in the report be approved. 
 
The Convener, seconded by the Vice-Convener, moved as an amendment –  
that the Committee - 
(a) approve recommendation (a) in the report; 
(b) thank parents for their involvement in the process thus far, and invite a parent 

representative to join the Committee for the next two cycles without voting rights; 
and 

(c) instruct officers to submit a report to a future meeting on composition and voting 
rights, to include an option for pupil representation on the Committee, and to 
undertake consultation with both parent and pupil representatives in this regard, 
the outcome of which would also be reported to a future meeting of the 
Committee. 

 
On a division, there voted:-  for the motion (9) – Councillors Allan, Boulton, Cooney, 
Crockett and Laing; and Mr G. Bruce, Mr S. Duncan, Mr P. Campbell and Mrs P. 
Pritchard; for the amendment (12) – Convener, Vice-Convener; and Councillors 
Cormack, Greig, Leslie, MacGregor, May, McCaig, Reynolds, Townson, Kirsty West 
and Yuill; declined to vote (1) – Councillor Wisely. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to adopt the amendment, whereupon Councillor Boulton indicated that, within the terms 
of Standing Order 36(3), she wished the matter to be referred to Council for 
determination.  Councillor Boulton was supported in this regard by Councillors Allan, 
Cooney, Crockett and Laing; and Mr G. Bruce, Mr S. Duncan and Mr P. Campbell, it 
being a requirement for one third of the Committee to request such a referral. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



3 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

2011/12 BUDGET MONITORING - ECS/11/063 
 
4. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport and the Head of Finance which detailed performance to date in relation to the 
Education, Culture and Sport capital and revenue budgets and advised on the areas of 
risk which could require management action. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) note the report on the forecast out-turn on the revenue budget and the 

information on the areas of risk and management action contained therein; and 
(b) instruct officers to continue to review budget performance and report on service 

strategies. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
CAPITAL MONITORING - EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT PROJECTS - 
EPI/11/229 
 
5. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which detailed the capital spend to date for the Education, Culture and 
Sport projects included within the Non-Housing Capital Programme. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee note the position as set out within the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
DISPOSAL OF OPERATIONAL PROPERTIES - ECS/11/057 
 
6. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport seeking approval to declare two properties surplus to the requirements of the 
service. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee –  
(a) declare the following properties surplus to the requirements of the Education, 

Culture and Sport service: 

Page 3



4 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

• Former Bankhead Academy (school site only) 
• Torry Community Learning Centre (formerly Torry Nursery) 

(b) remit the properties to the Finance and Resources Committee on 
29 September 2011 for a decision on whether they should be declared surplus to 
Aberdeen City Council, and if so, to authorise the Head of Asset Management 
and Operations to commence the disposal process of these properties on the 
open market 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT SERVICE ASSET PLAN 
 
7. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport which sought approval for the Service Asset Management Plans for Education, 
Culture and Sport. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee approve the Service Asset Management Plans for Education, 
Culture and Sport. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to receive regular updates at Committee on the projects listed within the service 

priorities; and 
(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORTS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT:  OUR JOURNEY 
TO EXCELLENCE - ECS/11/052 
 
8. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport which sought approval for the Service Quality Improvement Framework.  The 
report described the context and balance of the external and internal scrutiny 
approaches applied to the Service, and outlined the reasons for an inclusive quality 
improvement framework, a focus on a calendar of quality improvement activity which 
makes a difference, and on robust performance measures linked to improving 
outcomes and quality. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 

Page 4



5 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

(a) discuss and agree the Education, Culture and Sport Quality Improvement 
Framework; 

(b) note the links to the Education, Culture and Sport  Service Plan 2011-2016; 
(c) approve the embedding of an integrated approach to self evaluation activities 

throughout the Education, Culture and Sport service, with the intention of 
ensuring that quality is the responsibility of every employee; 

(d) approve the quality improvement calendar 2011/12; and 
(e) instruct that reports on quality improvement activity are presented to Committee 

as part of the quarterly Education, Culture and Sport Service Plan performance 
reporting, and as part of the annual reporting of Education, Culture and Sport 
standards and quality. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT SERVICE IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2011-15 
 
9. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport seeking approval for the Education, Culture and Sport Improvement Plan 2011-
2016. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee – 
(a) approve the Education, Culture and Sport Improvement Plan 2011-2016; and 
(b) request that quarterly reports on progress against Service Improvement Plan 

actions are presented to Committee as part of the Education, Culture and Sport 
performance reporting framework. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT STANDARDS AND QUALITY REPORT 2009-
10 - ECS11/054 
 
10. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport which provided an update on the Standards and Quality of our education 
services. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 

Page 5



6 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

(a) approve the Education Service Standards and Quality Report 2009/10; 
(b) approve the Educational Psychology Service Standards and Quality Report 

2010-2011; and 
(c) commend our children, young people, staff, parents and carers for their 

commitments and achievements reflected in the report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT POLICY FRAMEWORK - ECS/11/053 
 
11. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport presenting the Service Policy Framework for the period 2011-2016. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) approve the Education, Culture and Sport Policy Framework 2011-2016; 
(b) agree the priority areas for policy development as outlined in the appendix; and 
(c) request regular updates on policy development, implementation and review 

using Covalent. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
SPORTS GRANTS - ECS/11/048 
 
12. With reference to article 9 of the minute of its previous meeting of 2 June, 2011, 
the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and Sport 
which presented applications for financial assistance from two sports organisations and 
the recommendations in respect of each. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee consider the applications and approve the following 
recommendations - 
 
Aberdeen Secondary Schools Football Association £1,500 

Active Schools – Young Ambassadors £720 

Page 6



7 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation for funding awards as contained in the table above. 
 
 
 
UPDATE ON IMPLEMENTATION OF BUDGET DECISION - REDUCE 
COMMUNITIES TEAM - ECS/11/062 
 
13. With reference to article 10 of the minute of its previous meeting of 2 June, 2011, 
the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and Sport 
which provided a further update on the implementation of the decision to reduce the 
costs of the Communities Team by £1.4million in 2011/12 and provisionally by a further 
£1million in 2012/13.  The report also included an update on the reduction of the 
staffing provision within the Service, and an update on progress made towards the 
move of community learning centres to leased centre status. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee:- 
(a) note the progress made in relation to the appointment of staff to the new 

structure, and the reduction of the overall workforce; 
(b) note the progress in relation to moving community learning centres to leased 

centre status, and agree recommendations in relation to the following centres:- 
(i) Rosemount Community Centre – officers to report back to a future 

Committee on negotiations with Arts Development, Arts Education, City 
Moves and Peacock Visual Arts about potentially being based in this 
building along with the Community Centre and potentially other public 
bodies; 

(ii) Cults Primary School Community Rooms – to cease operating formally as 
a community centre and instead to be managed by the school for school 
and community use as required; 

(iii) Loirston Community Wing – to cease operating formally as a community 
centre and instead to be managed by the school for school and 
community use as required; 

(iv) that no further progress be made at the current time on developing a new 
community youth facility on the Hillylands site, and that the site be 
declared surplus to the requirements of the Education, Culture and Sport 
Service; and to refer this point to the Finance and Resources Committee 
on 29 September, 2011 in order that this property could be declared 
surplus to Council requirements and be incorporated in marketing for 
disposal with the adjoining former Burnside Centre to maximise value; 
and 

(v) subject to Torry Community Learning Centre being declared surplus to 
requirements (article 6 of this minute refers) and once disposed of, to 

Page 7



8 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

agree that the associated building costs be used for the delivery of youth 
development and adult learning within the Torry area; 

(c) to approve the virement of £190,000 from this year’s sports budget to a 
communities budget to fund transitional grants for Management Committees 
transferring to leased centre status, as set out in section 3.3 of the report; 

(d) to note that the model Management Agreement complies with the decision taken 
at the Finance and Resources Committee on 17 June, 2011, but in doing so, 
does not comply with Council’s current Following the Public Pound requirements; 
and 

(e) note the proposed model Lease, Constitution and Management Agreement as 
per Appendices C, E and G to the report, and that the responsibility for finalising 
these documents is delegated to the Head of Legal and Democratic Services, 
Head of Asset Management and Operations and Head of Communities, Culture 
and Sport. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(a) to note the progress made in relation to the appointment of staff to the new 

structure, and the reduction of the overall workforce; 
(b) to note the progress in relation to moving community learning centres to leased 

centre status, and agree recommendations in relation to the following centres:- 
(i) Rosemount Community Centre – officers to report back to a future 

Committee on negotiations with Arts Development, Arts Education, City 
Moves and Peacock Visual Arts and any other interested organisations, 
about potentially being based in this building along with the Community 
Centre and potentially other public bodies; 

(ii) Cults Primary School Community Rooms – to cease operating formally as 
a community centre and instead to be managed by the school for school 
and community use as required; 

(iii) Loirston Community Wing – to approve the recommendation in the 
interim, and to instruct officers to consult with Loirston Annexe Steering 
Group on the future management of the community wing; 

(iv) Hillylands – to take no action at present, and to instruct officers to report 
back to the Committee on Mastrick Young Peoples Project; and 

(v) subject to Torry Community Learning Centre being declared surplus to 
requirements of the Education, Culture and Sport Service and the 
associated costs no longer being borne by the Service (article 6 of this 
minute refers), to agree that the associated building costs be used for the 
delivery of youth development and adult learning within the Torry area 
(the Committee noted that this was an alteration to the recommendation 
highlighted by officers); 

(c) to approve the virement of £190,000 from this year’s sports budget to a 
communities budget to fund transitional grants for Management Committees 
transferring to leased centre status, as set out in section 3.3 of the report; 

Page 8



9 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

(d) to note that the model Management Agreement complies with the decision taken 
at the Finance and Resources Committee on 17 June, 2011, but in doing so, 
does not comply with councils current Following the Public Pound requirements; 

(e) to suspend standing orders to revoke the Committee’s decision of 
2 June, 2011 delegating authority to officers to finalise the Management 
Agreement, Constitution and Lease and to instruct officers to continue 
negotiations on these documents, in consultation with the Conveners and Vice-
Conveners of the Education, Culture and Sport, Finance and Resources and 
Corporate Policy and Performance Committees, and to report back to the 
November meeting of the Committee on the outcome; and 

(f) to instruct officers to carry out further investigations regarding the provision of 
more comprehensive indemnity insurance cover for members of community 
centre Management Committees, including volunteers, and that this include an 
examination of the financial implications; and to report back to the November 
meeting of Committee on the outcome. 

 
 
 
PRIMARY SCHOOL ESTATE REVIEW UPDATE - ECS/11/056 
 
14. With reference to article 7 of the minute of its meeting of 24 March, 2100, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and Sport which 
provided an update on progress being made with reviewing the primary school estate, 
particularly highlighting issues arising from a detailed review of educational needs 
within north-west Aberdeen to address two large housing developments in this area. 
 
The report included figures on the projected school rolls at Bucksburn and Stoneywood 
Primary Schools, taken from a study to assess the impact of proposed new housing 
developments at Mugiemoss Road and Stoneywood Estate.  Circulated to the 
Committee were revised figures, in the case of Bucksburn Primary School to the effect 
that it would exceed its capacity by 171 pupils by 2014, and in the case of Stoneywood 
Primary School that it would exceed its capacity by 32 pupils by 2017. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) note the progress being made on reviewing the Primary School Estate; 
(b) note the outcome of the consultant’s report in relation to educational provision 

within north-west Aberdeen, to be reported to the Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure Committee in relation to progressing planning applications for 
major housing developments in this area of the city; and 

(c) authorise officers to continue negotiations with developers and colleagues within 
Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure, in order to identify the optimum solution 
to address the increased pupil numbers resulting from the proposed new 

Page 9



10 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

housing developments in Stoneywood and Mugiemoss in terms of both 
educational impact and deliverability. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note the revised projected school roll figures for Bucksburn and Stoneywood 

schools circulated at the meeting; and 
(ii) to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
NEWHILLS PRIMARY SCHOOL - LAND TRANSFER - ECS/11/037 
 
15. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport outlining the requirement to build a new school on the Newhills School site to 
accommodate an amalgamation of Newhills and Bucksburn schools and to transfer 
land, owned by the Council and held on the Housing Revenue Account, to this end. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) note the decision of the Housing and Environment Committee to declare the land 

surplus to their requirements and to apply to the Scottish Government for 
approval to transfer the site to the General Services Account, subject to the 
approval of the Finance and Resources Committee on 29 September, 2011; 

(b) request the Finance and Resources Committee on 29 September 2011 to agree 
to earmark the land within the General Services Account for potential future 
educational use, subject to the agreement of the Scottish Government; and 

(c) receive a further report on the long-term use, date of transfer and transfer value 
of the site once a business case and funding is approved for a new school at 
Newhills. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
LIBRARY AND INFORMATION SERVICE - NEW WAYS OF WORKING - ECS/11/055 
 
16. With reference to article 2 of the minute of meeting of Council of 10 February, 
2011, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport outlining proposed new ways of providing library services within the city. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) note and endorse the contents of the report; 

Page 10



11 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

(b) agree and endorse the proposed vision for the Library and Information Service 
and its service delivery for 2011-2016 within the wider context of the Service 
Plan for Education, Culture and Sport; 

(c) instruct officers to report back to this Committee items which relate to or impact 
upon provisions of public service, for example, opening hours and service levels 
at community libraries, within the timelines proposed for each item, with items 
relevant to internal operations to be presented in the form of regular progress 
reports within the Information Bulletin; 

(d) approve the revised Home Service incorporating all eligible residents of 
sheltered housing currently served by the Mobile Library; and 

(e) approve that the Mobile Library service currently operating to Kingswells be 
replaced by a library drop in session at Kingswells Community Centre, and the 
subsequent disposal of the vehicle. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT 
 
17. The Committee had before it a statement of committee business prepared by the 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to delete items 1 (Library Service Development), 5 (Kaimhill Community 

Learning Hub – Transfer of Funds), 12 (Working Better Together) and 18 
(Service Level Agreement for Aberdeen International Youth Festival); 

(ii) to note that a report would be submitted to the next meeting in relation to item 10 
(Tullos Swimming Pool); 

(iii) to note the update in relation to item 8 (Raeden); 
(iv) in relation to item 16 (Pupil Support Assistants) to receive a report to a future 

meeting on an impact study to assess the reduced number of Pupil Support 
Assistants; and 

(v) to otherwise note the statement. 
 
 
 
MOTIONS LIST 
 
18. The Committee had before it a motions list prepared by the Head of Legal and 
Democratic Services. 
 
 

Page 11



12 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to note that a report on Councillor Boulton’s motion (Parent’s Charter) would be 

submitted to the next meeting; and 
(ii) to otherwise note the list. 
 
 
 
EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT PERFORMANCE REPORT - ECS/11/064 
 
19. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Education, Culture and 
Sport which provided a summary of performance data up to 30 June, 2011 for the 
Education, Culture and Sport Directorate.  Appended to the report were:-  the 
Education, Culture and Sport Service Plan Performance Report for the financial year 
2010/11, a report on 5 to 14 secondary attainment for 2010/11, a report outlining 
incidents of violence against school staff in 2009-10, a report on school leaver 
destinations in 2009-10, and a report on educational outcomes for looked after children. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) approve the Education, Culture and Sport service performance report for the 

period up to 30 June, 2011; 
(b) note the progress towards service plan actions and performance targets; and 
(c) approve the briefing note for 5 to 14 attainment 2010/11, incidents of violence 

against school staff 2009/10, school leave destinations 2009/10 and educational 
outcomes for looked after children. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 

EXEMPT INFORMATION 
 
In terms of article 2, the following items of business were considered with 
the press and public excluded. 
 

 
 
SCHOOL AND SOCIAL WORK TRANSPORT PROCUREMENT TENDER 2012 - 
EPI/11/274 
 
20. With reference to article 25 of the minute of its meeting of 16 September, 2011, 
the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 

Page 12



13 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Infrastructure which sought approval to tender for and award the annual school, social 
work and client transport contracts, with the introduction of a framework agreement. 
 
It was noted within the report that the recommendations before the Committee would 
also be submitted to the Social Care and Wellbeing Committee on 10 November, 2011 
for approval. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee instruct the Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure to 
proceed with the combined school and social work transport invitation to tender and 
award for 2011/12, in consultation with the Conveners of the Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure, Education, Culture and Sport and Social Care and Wellbeing 
committees. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation. 
 
 
 
ABERDEEN INTERNATIONAL YOUTH FESTIVAL - GOVERNANCE AND SERVICE 
LEVEL AGREEMENT - ECS/11/065 
 
21. With reference to article 12 of the minute of meeting of the Audit and Risk 
Committee of 29 March, 2011, the Committee had before it a report providing 
information on the governance arrangements in place between Aberdeen City Council 
and the Aberdeen International Youth Festival.  The report outlined the current status of 
a Service Level Agreement, and the timeframe for putting this in place. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) note the current governance arrangements in place; and 
(b) note the current Service Level Agreement status and timeframe in place for 

development. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
 
 
 
FREDERICK STREET DEVELOPMENT SITE - SERVICE RELOCATIONS 
(MUSEUMS RESERVE COLLECTION AND ARCHAEOLOGY UNIT) - EPI/11/210 
 
22. With reference to article 32 of the minute of meeting of the Resources 
Management Committee of 30 September, 2008, the Committee had before it a report 

Page 13



14 
 
 

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT COMMITTEE 
15 September 2011 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

by the Directors of Education, Culture and Sport and Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure seeking approval to relocate the Museums Reserve Collection and 
Archaeology Store from Frederick Street to units at Crombie Road, Torry, as part of the 
required clearance of Frederick Street to facilitate the sale of the building to NHS 
Grampian. 
 
The report recommended:- 
that the Committee - 
(a) approve the relocation of the Museums Reserve Collection and Archaeology 

Store to Units 5, 6, 7 and 8 at Crombie Road, to be refurbished to meet the 
requirements of the service provision; 

(b) agree to the transfer of the Crombie Road units to the Education, Culture and 
Sport Committee account from the Property Investment account; and 

(c) refer the matter to the Finance and Resources Committee for approval of the 
financial implications of the transfer of the property assets and the capital costs 
detailed within the report. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations. 
- JOHN WEST, Convener. 
 
 
 

Page 14



1 of 8  ECS Committee School Placements  
 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
BACKGROUND REPORT 
 
Name of Committee  Education, Culture and Sport 
 
Date of Meeting   24 November 2011  
 
Title of Report Placing Requests/Out of Zone Admissions 
 
Director    Annette Bruton 
 
Author of Report   Derek Samson 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Motion by Councillor Boulton 
 
“That Aberdeen City Council writes to Mike Russell, the Cabinet Secretary for Education and Lifelong 
Learning, asking for a review of ‘The Parent’s Charter’.” 23/02/11.  At its meeting of 24 March 2011, 
the Committee requested a background report to include references to school transport costs.  A 
report was submitted to the meeting of 2 June 2011 and further information on the cost of providing 
transport for incoming pupils who would not be accommodated in their own zoned school was 
requested. 
 
Aberdeen City Council is committed to providing local schooling for local pupils. 
 
Placing request submissions 
Under the Standards in Scotland's Schools etc. Act 2000 (and School Education (Amendment) 
(Scotland) Act 2002), placing requests may be made for children who are of school age or eligible to 
attend school because they will be five by the February cut-off date. 
 
Parents have a right (with no obligation to give reasons, although these allow the request to be 
prioritised) to make a request to the Education Service to have his/her child enrolled in the school of 
his/her choice.  A young person (i.e. someone over school age but less than eighteen years of age) 
has the same rights relating to Placing Requests in place of his/her parents. This right can be 
exercised at any time and not just at the time of admission to school or transfer from one school to 
another.  
 
Except for the transition between primary and secondary school when transfer schedules apply, 
parents should make a placing request if their child is in attendance at a school outwith the zone in 
which they live and they wish the child to attend the zoned school. There is no guarantee that siblings 
of children attending a primary school for which they are not zoned will be granted a place at that 
school (see criteria 2). 
 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 15



2 of 8  ECS Committee School Placements  
 

Placing request forms can be found on the Council’s website www.aberdeencity.gov.uk.  Completed 
forms can be returned by email to: schoolplacings@aberdeencity.gov.uk.  School Placing Request 
(SPR) Forms can also be obtained from any school, or contact 01224 522753 or 01224 522609. 
 
Guidelines for Placing Requests for children and young people with additional support needs can be 
found in the ASL Implementation Guide. Copies of this Guide are available in all schools.  Placing 
request forms should be submitted to the Head of Schools and Educational Establishments (see 
contacts page 44).  
 
Information provided in all written placing requests will be thoroughly checked for accuracy including 
validating the parental address. 
 
Where a school’s capacity is likely to be exceeded, the following list of priorities will be applied in 
granting places.  
 
1 Residence within Zone 
This applies to children who: 
(a) move into a zone after 15 March in a given year; and 
(b) are already in the zone but not attending their zoned school. 
 
2 Family 
Where either an older brother or a sister is already in attendance at the specified school, and will be in 
continuing education at the school at the time of admission. 
 
3 Childcare 
Where parent(s) are working and have to transport the child outwith the school zone in which they are 
resident in order that the child can be cared for by a responsible adult other than their parents outwith 
normal school hours (that is, at the beginning and end of the school day). This must be on the basis 
that there is existing, ongoing childcare in the zone relating to the school applied for at the time of 
application and the name and address of the carer can be verified as a bona fide carer or childminder. 
 
4 Others 
Where none of the above applies e.g friendship groups, transport arrangements, and family 
employment circumstances, precedence is given to pupils within each priority who are ordinarily 
resident within the zone of a school that lies within the boundaries of the city. Ranking within a priority 
grouping will be on the basis of direct distance between home (ordinary place of residence) and 
school, except where the parents of a child living within zone have to apply for a place in the school 
as they fall into the categories indicated in 1 (a) or 1 (b) above. Here, precedence will be determined 
by the date of taking up ordinary residence in the zone. 
 
The above guidelines will normally apply. However, placing requests may be granted where 
exceptional circumstances exist. 
 
Placing request decisions 
The Authority is bound by legislation to inform a parent in writing of its decision on the placing request 
within statutory timescales. This is currently 2 months from the date that the request is received.   
Where the Authority decides to refuse the request, it must give written reasons for its decision and 
inform the parent of his/her right to refer the matter to an appeals committee.  
 

Page 16



3 of 8  ECS Committee School Placements  
 

If the decision is not made within the statutory timescales it is deemed to have been refused and the 
parent has the right to refer the deemed refusal to an appeals committee. 
 
Where a place is granted parents will receive a letter directly from the school and should reply 
accepting or declining the place within fourteen days. When no reply is received within fourteen days 
a further letter will be issued with a final seven days to reply, after which the offer of a place will be 
withdrawn. 
 
When accepting a place, parents should immediately notify their zoned school in writing to inform 
them that they will not be taking up their place in August of that year. 
Placing request timescales 
Where the application is for entry in August the Authority is required to give an answer to the placing 
requests received by the 15 March by the 30th April. In cases where the time of entry requested is 
other than August, the Authority has two months to give a decision from the date of the request.  In 
each case, if the parent has not received a decision within the timescale above the placing request is 
deemed to have been refused. 
 
All placing requests made on or after 16 March, for admission in August of that year will be 
considered and decided after the requests made before 15 March have been decided and notified. 
 
Reasons for placing request refusals 
The legislation states that the Authority can refuse a placing request in terms of the Education 
(Scotland) Act 1980 as amended, if placing the child in a requested school would: 
 
• make it necessary for the Authority to take an additional teacher into employment; 
• give rise to significant expenditure on extending, or otherwise altering, the  accommodation at, or 

facilities provided in connection with, the school; 
• be seriously detrimental to the continuity of the child’s education; 
• be likely to be seriously detrimental to order and discipline in the school; 
• be likely to be seriously detrimental to the educational well-being of the pupils attending the 

school; 
• assuming that pupil numbers remain constant, make it necessary at the commencement of a 

future stage of the child’s primary education, for the Authority to elect either to create an additional 
class (or an additional composite class) in the specified school or to take an additional teacher 
into employment at that school; and 

• even if neither of the tests set out in sub-paragraphs 1 and 2 above is satisfied, have the 
consequence that the capacity of the school would be exceeded in terms of pupil numbers. 

 
The Authority may also refuse a placing request if: 
 
• the education normally provided at the specified school is not suited to the age, ability or aptitude 

of the child; 
• the Authority has already required the child to discontinue his/her attendance at the specified 

school; 
• the specified school is a special school, the child does not have additional support needs requiring 

the special educational facilities normally provided at the school. 
 

Page 17



4 of 8  ECS Committee School Placements  
 

The Education (Scotland) Act 1980 as amended allows Authorities to reserve places in certain 
schools if it anticipates those places will be required for families moving into an area.  At the time of 
publication this applies only to specified secondary and primary schools.  
 
Appealing against a decision  
Parents have the right to appeal against refusals and deemed refusals of placing requests.  Appeals 
should be lodged within 28 days of receipt of the letter of refusal or the timescale for making a 
decision has expired.  Parents should bear in mind the following: 
 
• they cannot appeal against the refusal of a place in a nursery class; 
• they can only appeal once a year for each of your children; 
• they should lodge the appeal no later than 28 days after you receive the Authority’s letter of 

refusal or the timescale for making a decision has expired; and 
• they can only appeal against refusal or deemed refusal of a place in your first choice school, if you 

have submitted a Placing Request in relation to more than one school. 
 
Lodging an appeal 
Appeals can be made by sending a letter of appeal to the Director of Corporate Governance (Placing 
Request Appeal) Town House, Broad Street, Aberdeen AB10 1AQ giving the child’s full name, the 
school you wish him/her to attend and your reasons for appealing against the decision. 
 
Consideration of Appeals 
Appeals against placing refusals are heard by an Appeals Committee, which comprises members of 
the Council and external members with experience of education in the city.  
 
Further details on appeals can be obtained from calling (01224) 522753 and requesting a Choosing A 
School  booklet produced by  The Scottish Government  this document is also available on the 
Scottish Government  website: www.scotland.gov.uk  
 
 
School Placing Requests - Session 2010-2011  
 
A summary of the position in school session 2010-11, including the number of 
requests received, number accommodated, number refused, number of appeals 
(successful and unsuccessful) and an indication of the general trends. 
 
As of 7 May 2011, school session 2010-2011, there had been 2052 Placing Requests 
received.   The number of Parents who appealed was 46. 
 
Placing Requests Received for Session 2010-2011 
Status of Applications Number of Applications 
  
Accepted 1436 
Offered but declined   169 
Refused    273 
Withdrawn     74 
Late Applications – still pending   100 (of these 58 are in zone awaiting a place, 30 

Page 18



5 of 8  ECS Committee School Placements  
 

applications for Primary and 28 Applications for 
Secondary) 

  
TOTAL 2052 
 

Page 19



6 of 8  ECS Committee School Placements  
 

 
Breakdown of Placing Requests Received for Session 2010-2011 
Breakdown of Placing Requests – Session 2010-2011 Number 
  
Priority 1 – Families moved in zone   436 
  
Priority 2 – Older Sibling already attending school applied for   277 
  
Priority 3 – Childcare – Where parents are working and have to transport the child 
ouwith the school zone in which they are resident. Childcare current and ongoing.  

  107 
  
Priority 4 – Other reasons (see separate list) 1231 
  
Total 2052 
 
Trends found in Priority 4 - Others 
1. Friendship 
2. Preferred school 
3. Transport 
4. Near parents work 
5. Family looking to move to area 
6. Child unhappy at current school/ claims of child being bullied 
7. Expect better education 
8. Subject choices (Senior Students) 
9. Where parents have claimed childcare, however childcare found to be 

not current or non existing. 
 

Page 20



7 of 8  ECS Committee School Placements  
 

 
Transport Costs  
 
Statement of position regarding costs of providing transport as a result of placing 
requests.  
Secondary School – In session 2010-11, only children who applied for Cults Academy were given 
transport help, as the local authority were unable to place them at zoned school.  
 
Transport  
The Authority provides free school transport in the following situations: 

• where a child is enrolled in his/her zoned primary school, and lives two miles or more from that 
school. 

• where a child is enrolled at his/her zoned secondary school, and lives three or more miles 
from that school. 

 
The only exceptions to this policy are: 

• where a child lives less than the prescribed distance from his/her zoned school (that is, less 
than the two or three miles indicated above) but cannot reach that school either by an 
available transport service or by an available safe walking route accompanied if necessary by 
an adult. 

• where a child lives less than the prescribed distance from his/her zoned primary or secondary 
school (that is, less than the two or three miles indicated above), does not have access to a 
transport service, and is unable to walk the prescribed safe route due to his/her own medical 
condition or to the medical condition of the adult who would normally accompany him/her on 
the walking route to school. 

 
The Authority will take expert advice from qualified road safety practitioners and Family General 
Practitioner or School Medical staff, as appropriate before any final decision to support a request is 
made. 
 

• where a child lives less than the prescribed (two or three miles) from his/her zoned school on 
the Contract (i.e. School) Bus route to that school, and there exist(s) space(s) on the existing 
Contract (i.e. School) Bus Service. In such cases, a child may be granted free transport on a 
privilege basis, only for as long as there is a space and it is not required by an entitled child. 

 
It is at the discretion of the Authority whether or not to grant free transport for children who are 
accepted for an out of zone school. Only in exceptional circumstances (such as medical reasons) will 
the Authority exercise this discretion. Where the Local Authority has placed a child in a school which 
is not his/her zoned school, transport will be provided to the school if it is more than two miles from 
the address at which the child is ordinarily resident (primary) or more than three miles (secondary). 
 
Free transport may be provided in various ways, either by the provision of season tickets on buses or 
trains or by direct provision of contract transport from the permanent home address to the school. The 
Authority does not guarantee to provide door to door transport. 
 
Requests for transport where children have medical problems or where problems of safety arise, an 
approach by the parent to the Head of Service,  If free transport is approved, a copy of the Transport 
Handbook for Parents, Guardians & Children will be sent to the address stated on the transport 
application. 

Page 21



8 of 8  ECS Committee School Placements  
 

In session 2010-11, transport was provided for four pupils in Cults Academy zone, who moved into 
the area but could not be enrolled due to the school having no spare capacity. 
 

The cost of providing a bus pass was £152.00 per pupil. The total cost of £1445.30 in the full school 
year was due to one pupil being issued with a replacement for a lost pass and provision of contracted 
transport for one family in exceptional circumstances. 
 
Further information is contained in the appendix at item 10.1 
 

Page 22



 !"#$""% &'() &*+%&',

 !""#$$%%& "-./012345 &.61.78 04- 9:371

'($%& ;< %3=8>?87 ;@AA

)%*!)$ +,& $278/137 04- B80- *C D2404/8

$#$-% !. )%*!)$& ;@AAEA; !+$F"( G*%'(*#'%F

)%*!)$ /0"+%)& "&9EAAE@HI

AJ K+#K*9" *D #"K*#(

121 $34 5675894 8: ;3<9 74587; <9 ;8
<= >7<?@ ;8  8AA<;;44 A4A>479 ?8;<B4 ;34 B6774?; C4D7 74E4?64

>6F@4; 547:87AD?B4 ;8 FD;4 :87 ;34 947E<B49 G3<B3 74HD;4 ;8 ;3<9
 8AA<;;44I D?F

<<= DFE<94 8? D?C D74D9 8: 7<9J D?F AD?D@4A4?; DB;<8?2

;J #"&*GG"%$ ('*%L9M

K21 #; <9 74B8AA4?F4F ;3D; ;34  8AA<;;44&
<= /8;4 ;3<9 74587; 8? ;34 :874BD9; 86;L;67? 8? ;34 74E4?64 >6F@4; D?F

;34 <?:87AD;<8? 8? D74D9 8: 7<9J D?F AD?D@4A4?; DB;<8? ;3D; <9
B8?;D<?4F 3474<?I

<<= #?9;76B; ;3D; 8::<B479 B8?;<?64 ;8 74E<4G >6F@4; 547:87AD?B4 D?F
74587; 8? 947E<B4 9;7D;4@<49

<<<= (5578E4 ;34 >6F@4; E<74A4?;9 B8?;D<?4F G<;3<? ;3<9 74587;

IJ D'% %&' , 'GK,'& ('*%9

M212 $34 ;8;DH %F6BD;<8?N  6H;674 O P587; 74E4?64 >6F@4;N DA86?;9 ;8 Q1R1A
?4; 4S54?F<;6742 $3<9 <9 ADF4 65 8: Q1TMA 8: @7899 4S54?F<;674N 8::94;
>C Q1KA 8: #?B8A4 D?F 74B3D7@492

M2K2 +D94F 658? 57494?; :874BD9;9 <; <9 D?;<B<5D;4F ;3D; ;34 :<?D?B<DH
547:87AD?B4 8: ;34 947E<B4 G<HH 7496H; <? D? 6?:DE867D>H4 A8E4A4?; 8?
;34  86?B<H :<?D?B49 8E47DHH 8: QUVWX2 $3<9 <9 D 74F6B;<8? <? 8E47954?F
8: QKVWX 9<?B4 HD9; 74587;4F ;8 B8AA<;;44 <? P45;4A>47 KW112 $3<9
589<;<8? G<HH >4 74:H4B;4F <? ;34 8E47DHH :<?D?B<DH A8?<;87<?@ :87 ;34  86?B<H
G34? <; <9 74587;4F ;8 .<?D?B4 D?F )49867B49  8AA<;;44 D; ;34 4?F 8:
;3<9  8AA<;;44 BCBH42

M2M2 .67;347 F4;D<H9 8: ;34 :<?D?B<DH <A5H<BD;<8?9 D74 94; 86; <? 94B;<8? Y D?F
;34 D554?F<B49 D;;DB34F ;8 ;3<9 74587;2

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 23



 ! "#$%&'# ( ')**+,&-. &*/0'-

 !" #$ % &'()*+,$'- .)/ /&,)&,.0 .1' 2)3+(,4 53$. .%6' .1' +'('$$%&0
5'%$3&'$ .) 7%4%+(' ,.$ 73-*'.! 81'&'9)&' 2)55,..''$ %+- $'&:,('$ %&'
&';3,&'- .) <)&6 <,.1,+ % 9,+%+(,%4 ()+$.&%,+.! =:'&0 '99)&. ,$ 7',+*
9)(3$'- )+ -'4,:'&,+* $'&:,('$ 5)&' '99,(,'+.40 %+- '99'(.,:'40!

1! )-2#$ &*/3&'0-&),"

>!" =:'&0 )&*%+,$%.,)+ 1%$ .) 5%+%*' .1' &,$6$ ,+1'&'+. ,+ .1' )/'&%.,)+ )9
4%&*' %+- ()5/4'? 73-*'.$! 81'$' &,$6$ %&' 5,+,5,$'- 70 .1' &'*34%&
&':,'< )9 9,+%+(,%4 ,+9)&5%.,)+ 70 $'&:,('$ %+- ()&/)&%.'40 70 @'57'&$!
81,$ &'/)&. ,$ /%&. )9 .1%. 9&%5'<)&6 %+- 1%$ 7''+ /&)-3('- .) /&):,-'
%+ ):'&:,'< )9 .1' (3&&'+. )/'&%.,+* /)$,.,)+!

4 $#/)$-

A!" 81,$ &'/)&. ,+9)&5$ 5'57'&$ )9 .1' (3&&'+. 0'%& &':'+3' 73-*'.
/'&9)&5%+(' .) -%.'B 9)& .1' $'&:,(' 73-*'. %+- /&):,-'$ 1,*1 4':'4
$355%&0 9)& .1' ()+$,-'&%.,)+ )9 @'57'&$B .) /'&,)- A C'+- .)
D'/.'57'& EF""G!

A!E 81' $'&:,(' &'/)&. %+- %$$)(,%.'- +).'$ )+ /&)*&'$$ .)<%&-$
%(1,':'5'+. )9 .1' EF""H"E $%:,+*$ .%&*'.$ %&' %..%(1'- %. #//'+-,('$
# %+- I!

5677875 099:;<=> "?<@ABC
81'&' %&' EF %//&):'- $%:,+*$B 9)& EF""HEF"E .).%44,+* JK!F@! 81'$' %&'
4,$.'- %. #//'+-,? #! #*%,+$. '%(1 )9 .1' $%:,+*$ ,$ % +%&&%.,:' -'.%,4,+*
.1' /&)*&'$$ .) -%.' )+ '%(1 )9 .1'$'!

81' 5)+,.)&,+* )9 .1' I3-*'.'- D%:,+*$ ,$ 7',+* (%&&,'- )3. 70 .1'
L&)*&%55' @%+%*'5'+. M99,('! #. .1,$ $.%*'B .1' 5%N)&,.0 )9 .1' $%:,+*$
%&' 9)&'(%$. .) 7' -'4,:'&'-B <,.1 .1' '?('/.,)+ )9 $%:,+*$ )+ M3. M9
#3.1)&,.0 L4%('5'+.$ %$ )3.4,+'- 7'4)<!

M9 .1' /&)N'(.'- $%:,+*$ 9&)5 =-3(%.,)+B 234.3&' %+- D/)&.B .1'&' %&' % E
$'&:,(' )/.,)+$ ,+(43-'- <1,(1 <'&' ()+.,+*'+. )+ +%.,)+%4 +'*).,%.,)+$!
81' +%.,)+%4 +'*).,%.,)+$ 1%:' +)< .%6'+ /4%(' %+- .1'$' $'&:,('
)/.,)+$ %&' +). /%&. )9 .1' %*&''5'+. &'%(1'- 7'.<''+ 2)DO# %+-
.'%(1'& 3+,)+$! 81' $1)&.9%44 )9 JAFP <,44 7' 5'. 9&)5 .1' 8'%(1'&$
L&).'(.,)+ Q&%+.!

D E@A?AF@?G /;C@H@;A ?A> $@CIC 0CC=CCJ=AH
81' (3&&'+. 9)&'(%$. &':'+3' )3.H.3&+ ,$ %+ ):'&$/'+- )9 JAFFP!

R!" 81' 9)44)<,+* %&'%$ )9 &,$6 %&' 1,*14,*1.'- .)*'.1'& <,.1 5%+%*'5'+.
%(.,)+ 7',+* .%6'+!

%G M3. )9 #3.1)&,.0 L4%('5'+.$

Page 24



 !"# "# $% $&"'%() *+)'(, -",! ./0"$& 1$2( $%) 3(&&*("%' -!"0! 4+%)#
,!/#( 0/#,# $##/0"$,() -",! ()+0$,"%' $%) $00/55/)$,"%' 0!"&)2(% "%
#6(0"$&"#, #0!//&# %/, 2+% *7 8*(2)((% 1",7 1/+%0"&9  !( ,/,$& $&"'%()
*+)'(, "# :;9<=> /4 -!"0! ,!( ?)+0$,"/% 1+&,+2( $%) .6/2, 6$2, /4 ,!"#
*+)'(, ,/,$&# :<9<=9

 !( &$,(#, (#,"5$,( $# $, @A .(6,(5*(2 <ABB "# ,!$, ,!( ,/,$& $&"'%()
*+)'(, !$# 0/55",5(%,# ,/,$&&"%' :;9C= -",! $ ,/,$& /D(2E0/55",5(%, /4
:FCAG9  !( ?)+0$,"/%> 1+&,+2( $%) .6/2, (&(5(%, /4 ,!( /D(2E
0/55",5(%, "# :B@AG9

 !"# "# $% "562/D(5(%, /% ,!( *+)'(, 6/#","/% -!(% ,!"# -$# &$#,
2(6/2,()9

H44"0(2# 42/5 ?)+0$,"/%> 1+&,+2( $%) .6/2, $%) ./0"$& 1$2( $%)
3(&&*("%' $2( 0/%,"%+"%' ,/ -/2I /% #!/2, $%) &/%' ,(25 #,2$,('"(# ,/
2()+0( ,!( %+5*(2 $%) )+2$,"/% /4 /+, /4 $+,!/2",7 6&$0(5(%,#9  !"#
"%0&+)(# $ #(2"(# /4 2"'/2/+# 0$#( 2(D"(-# $%) $ 2(D"(- /4 0+22(%,
62/0(##(# $%) $&,(2%$,"D( 62/D"#"/%9

J, #!/+&) *( %/,() ,!$, ,!"# *+)'(, "# #+*K(0, ,/ (L,(2%$& 4$0,/2# /+, /4 /+2
)"2(0, 0/%,2/&M ,!( 0/+%0"& "# 2(N+"2() ,/ 4+%) 6&$0(5(%,# "%#,2+0,() *7 ,!(
1!"&)2(%O# P$%(& $%) %(()# ,/ 2(#6/%) ,/ ,!( %(()# /4 0!"&)2(% $%)
7/+%' 6(/6&( "% 02"#"#> -!"0! -"&& /% /00$#"/% 2(N+"2( #(2D"0(# /+,-",! ,!(
$+,!/2",79

1+22(%,&7 ,!(2( $2( <Q 7/+%' 6(/6&( "% 2(#")(%,"$& 6&$0(5(%,# /+, /4 ,!(
$+,!/2",79

J, #!/+&) *( %/,() ,!$, "4 0/55",5(%,# 0/%,"%+( $, 0+22(%, &(D(&# +%,"& ,!(
(%) /4 ,!( 4"%$%0"$& 7($2> ,!"# #$D"%' -"&& %/, *( $0!"(D()9

*R S(,(25"%() ,/ .+00(()

 !"# !$# *((% *+)'(,() $# $ '2$%, *+, ", -$# 4/+%)> $4,(2 *+)'(,# !$)
*((% 4"%$&"#()> ,!$, ,!"# 4+%)"%' -$# %/- "%0&+)() -",!"% ,!( $%%+$&
#(,,&(5(%,9 S"#0+##"/%# !$D( *((% ,$I"%' 6&$0( *(,-((% 1/26/2$,(
T"%$%0( $%) ?1U. ,/ ")(%,"47 4+%)"%' ,/ 5","'$,( ,!"# #!/2,4$&&9  !"# '2$%,
-$# :QAAG9 S"#0+##"/%# -",! 1/26/2$,( T"%$%0( !$D( 0/%4"25() ,!$,
:@AAG "# $D$"&$*&( ,/ /44#(, ,!"# #!/2,4$&&9  !"# "# "% $))","/% ,/ :<AAG /4
+%)(2#6(%) 42/5  !"!#""$ ?1U. !$D( 0/%4"25() ,!"# *+)'(, -"&& *(
$)(N+$,( 4/2 <ABBVB<9

0R  2$%#6/2, 1/#,#
8, ,!"# ,"5(> (L6(%)",+2( "# 4/2(0$#, ,/ *( :BAAG '2($,(2 ,!$% *+)'(,9
 !"# $##+5(# ,!$, 2(,(%)(2"%' #$D"%'# /4 :<;AG -"&& *( $66&"() ,/ ,!(#(
*+)'(,#9  !"# *+)'(, "# ,/ *( ,2$%#4(22() ,/ ?PUJ 4/&&/-"%' ,!( $662/D$&
/4 T"%$%0( $%) W(#/+20(# 1/55",,(( /% <X .(6,(5*(2 <ABB9

)R 1$,(2"%' H6(2$,"/%#
 !( 7($2 ,/ )$,( 6/#","/% /% 0$,(2"%' /6(2$,"/%# $, P2/D/#, .I(%( Y/+#(
$%) ,!( =$2","5( =+#(+5 "# $ )(4"0", /4 :ZAG9 3!"&#, ,!"# )(4"0", -"&& *(
5(, 42/5 #,$44"%' #$D"%'# (&#(-!(2( -",!"% ,!( *+)'(,> ,!"# )(4"0", 0$%%/,
*( #+#,$"%() $, ,!"# &(D(& 4/2 ,!( 2(5$"%)(2 /4 ,!( 7($29

Page 25



 !" #$%&'&(" #)*")( !$* +,-'%$+')$. ,/.&0$'&,-* 1!&+! &-+.)2" $ 3
(,-'! -,'&4&+$'&,- ,4 '"%(&-$'&,- 5"%&,2 $-2 4).. 6"$% .,**"* $%" "*'&($'"2
', /" $%,)-2 7389:  !" %";)&%"2 +,-'%$+' '"%(&-$'&,- -,'&+" !$* /""-
($2" 1!&+! 1&.. "-*)%" '!&* 2"4&+&' 2,"* -,' +,-'&-)" &-', <8=<>=?:  !"
&-'"-'&,- &* ', +,-'&-)" $ .&(&'"2 +$'"%&-0 *"%@&+" $' '!" *&'" 1!&.*' $-
,5'&,-* $55%$&*$. &* )-2"%'$A"- $-2 +)*',("% 4""2/$+A 0$'!"%"2: B* 1"..
$* %"'$&-&-0 '!" 5%,4&." ,4 '!" @"-)"C '!&* 1&.. $.*, $..,1 4,% +,%5,%$'" !&%"*
', +,-'&-)" 2)%&-0 '!&* 5"%&,2: D' &* "*'&($'"2 '!$' "E5"-2&')%" &- '!"
%"0&,- ,4 7F>=8A &* %";)&%"2 ', !&2" '!" A&'+!"- $-2 *"%@"%6 $%"$C
($&-'$&- $-2 )5A""5 '!" A&'+!"- ";)&5("-' 4,% +,%5,%$'" !&%"* $-2
5)%+!$*" *"''""* $-2 .,1 '$/."* 4,% @&*&',%* ', )*" &- '!" *5$+":  !&* 1&..
(&'&0$'" '!" %&*A ,4 !$@&-0 $- "(5'6 $-2 )-)*"2 *5$+" $' '!" 4%,-' ,4 '!"
/)&.2&-0C 1!&+! 1,).2 5%"*"-' $ 5,,% ;)$.&'6 1".+,(" 4,% @&*&',%*

G&'! %"*5"+' ', H%,@,*' IA"-" J,)*"C $* '!" 2"+&*&,- !$* /""- '$A"- ',
2"(,.&*! I' K&+!,.$* J,)*"C &' &* .&A".6 '!$' H%,@,*' IA"-" J,)*" 1&..
-""2 ', /" +.,*"2 1!&." '!" 2"(,.&'&,- 1,%A* $%" )-2"%1$6:  !&* 1&..
5%,@&2" $- ,55,%')-&'6 ', %">$**"** '!" 4)')%" ,4 +$'"%&-0 ,5"%$'&,-* $'
'!&* *&'" 

"L H%,5"%'6 M,*'*
D' &* "*'&($'"2 '!$' '!"%" &* $ /)20"' *!,%'4$.. ,4 7NO89 &- +."$-&-0 +,*'*
/6 %"4"%"-+" ', 5%"@&,)* 6"$%P* "E5"-2&')%": D' *!,).2 /" -,'"2 '!$' '!"*"
/)20"'* $-2 $**,+&$'"2 +,*'* 1&.. /" '%$-*4"%%"2 ', QHRD 4,..,1&-0
5"%(&**&,- 4%,( S&-$-+" $-2 T"*,)%+"* M,((&''"" ,- <F I"5'"(/"%
<8== ', '%$-*4"% /)20"'* /"'1""- *"%@&+"*:

U4L  "$+!"% I'$44&-0 M,*'*
 !" $--)$. +!$-0" &- /)20"'"2 '"$+!&-0 -)(/"%* 4,..,1&-0 '!" B)0)*'
<8== 5)5&. &-'$A"C $2V)*'&-0 4,% $55%,@"2 HWW *$@&-0*C &* $- &-+%"$*" ,4
=3 '"$+!"%*:  !&* 1&.. &-+%"$*" '"$+!"% *'$44&-0 +,*'* /6 7N889:  !"
2&%"+',%$'" !$@" $.*, /""- -,'&4&"2 ,4 $- $22&'&,-$. $..,+$'&,- ,4 (,-&"*
4%,( '!" I+,''&*! X,@"%-("-' 4,..,1&-0 $- )-2"%*5"-2 &- '!" -$'&,-$.
 "$+!"%* D-2)+'&,- *+!"(": B/"%2""- M&'6 M,)-+&.P* *!$%" ,4 '!&*
)-2"%*5"-2 &* $55%,E: 7NN89C $-2 '!&* 1&.. /" )'&.&*"2 ',1$%2* (""'&-0
'!" $22&'&,-$. '"$+!&-0 *'$44 +,*'*:

 ! "#$%&%'()
O:=  !" 4,..,1&-0 /)20"' @&%"("-'* $%" 5%,5,*"2:  !"*" @&%"("-'* %"4."+'

'!" '%$-*4"% ,4 /)20"' 5%,@&*&,- &- $%"$* 1!"%" '!"%" &* $- )-2"%*5"-2 ',
'!,*" $%"$* 1!"%" 4,%"+$*' "E5"-2&')%" &* 0%"$'"% '!$- /)20"':  !"*"
/)20"' '%$-*4"%* 2, -,' $44"+' '!" -"' 4&-$-+&$. 5,*&'&,- ,4 '!" Y&%"+',%$'"
/)' 1&.. /" %"4."+'"2 &- 4,%"+$*'* 5,*&'&,-* 1&'!&- '!,*" /)20"' ($-$0"2
/6 &-2&@&2)$. J"$2* ,4 I"%@&+"

O:<

Page 26



 !"#$%
&$'()*+%*,-

 !"#$%
.*)$/$-%
01222 3$)4*($

 !"#$%! &'( )"*##+! ,-.  ./",%0#-,+ )1$20"1!
)%,33 4#!%! &56( )"*##+! ,-.  ./",%0#-,+ )1$20"1!
7$1&)"*##+
7$#20.1$! '( )"*##+! ,-.  ./",%0#-,+ )1$20"1!
7$#81$%9 :1-%,+ ;( )"*##+! ,-.  ./",%0#-,+ )1$20"1!
</% <3 =/%*#$0%9
7+,"1>1-%! 6?( 4#>>/-0%01!@ 4/+%/$1 A )8#$%
)%,33 4#!%! &B( 4#>>/-0%01!@ 4/+%/$1 A )8#$%
4,%1$0-C D-"#>1 B( 4#>>/-0%01!@ 4/+%/$1 A )8#$%

56 789:;<

EF6 4#$8#$,%1 G ,! , $1"#C-0!1. %#8 8$0#$0%9@ %*1 4#/-"0+ >/!% %,H1 %*1
-1"1!!,$9 >1,!/$1! %# I,+,-"1 0%! I/.C1%F J*1$13#$1 "#>>0%%11! ,-.
)1$20"1! ,$1 $1K/0$1. %# L#$H L0%*0- , 30-,-"0,+ "#-!%$,0-%F  21$9 133#$% 0!
I10-C 3#"/!!1. #- .1+021$0-C !1$20"1! >#$1 1330"01-%+9 ,-. 1331"%021+9F

EF5 7/I+0" G %*0! $18#$% 0! +0H1+9 %# I1 #3 8/I+0" 0-%1$1!% ./1 %# %*1 !0M1 #3 %*1
I/.C1%! 0-2#+21. ,-. %*1 -,%/$1 #3 %*1 !1$20"1! 8$#20.1. I9  ./",%0#-@
4/+%/$1 A )8#$%@ , -/>I1$ #3 L*0"* ,$1 3$#-% +0-1 !1$20"1! .1+021$1.
.0$1"%+9 %# "0%0M1-! L0%*0- %*1 "0%9F

=26 :><?@A73B& 37CD:<@AE

=--1%%1 N$/%#- N,$$9 O1-H0-!
P0$1"%#$ #3  ./",%0#-@ 4/+%/$1 ,-. )8#$% Q1,. <3 R0-,-"1
,I$/%#-S,I1$.11-"0%9FC#2F/H I,T1-H0-!S,I1$.11-"0%9FC#2F/H
(655U '5?U'; (655U '55''6

==6 AB9@A< :><?@A &B<:7F3

N$0,- P#L
R0-,-"1 7,$%-1$
I.#LS,I1$.11-"0%9FC#2F/H
(655U ;6UV6(

=..0%0#-,+ "#-%$0I/%0#-! %# ,-,+9!0! #3 $0!H! ,-. >,-,C1>1-% ,"%0#- I9
P0$1"%#$ A Q1,.! #3 )1$20"1 G  ./",%0#-@ 4/+%/$1 A )8#$%

Page 27



 
!"
#
$
#%
&
'
(
)!
*
#)
)
+
,%
*
-.
/
,#
.
#*
0%
0!
1
*

 
!!
"#
$%
&
 

2
0%
0(
)
3
&!
4
(
)#
)
0&
%5
5!
6
7
!8
9
0
):
)0
#.

3
&#
#*

!*
4
!6
%0
#)

1
*
0%
&8
#0

$
#,
,1
;
!*
4
!6
%0
#)

)1
.
#
/
&1
8
&#
))

.
%4
#<
5(
&0
9
#&

;
1
&=

&#
>
(
!&
#4

?
#4

!*
4
!6
%0
#)

)!
8
*
!5
!6
%*
0
;
1
&=

&#
>
(
!&
#4

?
#)
/
1
*
)!
@
,#
A
55
!6
#&

+
1
)!
0!
1
*
2
0%
0#
.
#*
0
%)

%0
BC
DE
DB
B

'
"(
)
*

+,
-*
*.
*,
/

'
"(
)
,

+,
-*
,.
*0
/
'
"(
)
0

+,
-*
0.
*1
/
'
"(
)
1

+,
-*
1.
*2
/
'
"(
)
2

+,
-*
2.
*3
/

3
&#
#*

F
66
#/
0#
4

G
?
F
H
2
 
A
?
I
F
G
-A
H
A
+
G
-A
H
2

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:*
;3
--

:,
;1
--

:,
;1
--

:,
;1
--

:,
;1
--

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

-
E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:*
;3
--

:,
;1
--

:,
;1
--

:,
;1
--

:,
;1
--

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:1
F-

:F
*-

:G
2-

:*
;*
0-

:*
;0
*-

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:1
F-

:F
*-

:G
2-

:*
;*
0-

:*
;0
*-

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

-
-

:*
11

:*
11

:*
11

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

,2
-

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

,2
-

-
:*
11

:*
11

:*
11

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

-
:H
2

:H
2

:H
2

:H
2

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

*-
-

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

*-
-

:H
2

:H
2

:H
2

:H
2

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

-
-

:G
1

:G
1

:*
;1
*-

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

22
-

*;
0*
3

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

-
22
-

:G
1

:G
1

:G
1

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

-
-

:0
2

:0
2

:0
2

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#
D
56
?6

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

-
-

:0
2

:0
2

:0
2

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

-
:1
2-

:1
2-

:1
2-

:1
2-

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

12
-

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

-
-

:1
2-

:1
2-

:1
2-

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:*
-1

:0
10

:F
,3

:*
;,
2*

:*
;H
G-

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

1-
3-

F-
H-

G-
E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:3
1

:,
H0

:3
23

:*
;*
F*

:*
;H
--

2
(
@
JG
1
0%
,

JB
<K
LM

JN
<E
NL

JM
<L
BM

JO
<O
PE

JC
<Q
BL

R
 
 
-S
-R
H
S
-R
2

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:0
H2

:2
FH

:2
FH

:2
FH

:2
FH

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

,F
1

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:*
**

:2
FH

:2
FH

:2
FH

:2
FH

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:*
33

:,
2-

:,
2-

:,
2-

:,
2-

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:*
33

:,
2-

:,
2-

:,
2-

:,
2-

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:*
*,

:*
3H

:*
3H

:*
3H

:*
3H

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:*
*,

:*
3H

:*
3H

:*
3H

:*
3H

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:*
3H

:*
3H

:*
3H

:*
3H

:*
3H

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:*
3H

:*
3H

:*
3H

:*
3H

:*
3H

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:2
0

:H
-

:H
-

:H
-

:H
-

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:2
0

:H
-

:H
-

:H
-

:H
-

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:*
FF

:,
32

:,
32

:,
32

:,
32

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:*
FF

:,
32

:,
32

:,
32

:,
32

I,
3J

6(
8%
#9

$"
>%8
")
"$
K
<#
L5
)=
(?
%5
#
%6
(M
(%
?"
$
L)
5=

7
7
N
 
(6

?5
M
O"
?O
")

!5
6%
?%5
#
B(
#
P"

6A
6?
(%
#"
$K

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:,
3

:,
3

:,
3

:,
3

:,
3

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:,
3

:,
3

:,
3

:,
3

:,
3

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

-
-

:*
;H
1G

:,
;F
F0

:*
;1
2F

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#
D
56
?6

*;
-*
*

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

-
-

:H
0H

:,
;F
F0

:*
;1
2F

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:0
,*

:2
,*

:2
,*

:2
,*

:2
,*

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

*3
-

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:*
3*

:2
,*

:2
,*

:2
,*

:2
,*

7
AP
:Q
5?
(>

:G
F1

:,
;-
23

:,
;H
G1

:1
;H
,G

:0
;2
*0

2
G
A
+
T?
R
U
V
S
R

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:*
;,
12

:*
;H
3F

:*
;H
3F

:*
;H
3F

:*
;H
3F

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

*;
2*
H

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

,F
0

:*
;H
3F

:*
;H
3F

:*
;H
3F

:*
;H
3F

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:1
0F

:3
22

:3
22

:3
22

:3
22

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

12
2

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

*H
:3
22

:3
22

:3
22

:3
22

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:1
--

:3
--

:3
--

:3
--

:3
--

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

,0
0

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:*
3F

:3
--

:3
--

:3
--

:3
--

4
)5
66
7
(8
%#
9

:0
00

:2
--

:2
--

:2
--

:2
--

<=
!>
"=

"#
?(
?%5
#.
@
"$
A#
$(
#B
C
D
56
?6

E
"?
 
##
A(
>7
(8
%#
9

:0
00

:2
--

:2
--

:2
--

:2
--

2
(
@
JG
1
0%
,

JN
PE

JQ
<C
NN

JQ
<C
NN

JQ
<C
NN

JQ
<C
NN

-
-

-
-

G
A
G
F
7

JN
<E
CK

JL
<C
PC

JB
B<
QQ
P

JB
Q<
EC
P

JB
Q<
MO
Q

R
6"

S
L
Q
"(
BO
")
6
N
)5
?"
B?
%5
#
4
)(
#?

T
(8
%$
U"
#9

R
6"

Q
"(
BO
")
6
N
)5
?"
B?
%5
#
4
)(
#?
?5
5L
L6
"?
V
2
PA
$9
"?
5!
?%5
#
5#

)"
$A
B?
%5
#
5L

#A
)6
")
C
?"
(B
O"
)6
K

V
D
7
WV
1-

X
(&
%=
%6
%#
9
B>
(6
6
6%
Y"
6
%#
A!
!"
)
6?
(9
"6

5L
6"
B5
#$
()
C
6B
O5
5>

T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.T
")
"J

7
(=

65
#

E
5
Z
A6
%#
"6
6
D
(6
"K
T
")
"J

?5
A!
$(
?"
5#

!)
59
)"
66
K

E
"M

6?
)A
B?
A)
"
%#
!>
(B
"K
X
(#
(9
"$

[
7
.V
@
!)
5B
"6
6
M
">
>(
$8
(#
B"
$K
I*
K3
X
6(
8%
#9

5#
?(
)9
"?
K
 
))
(#
9"
=
"#
?6
L5
)
C5
A?
O
M
5)
J
6?
(L
L
6?
%>>
5A
?6
?(
#$
%#
9K

N
(?
)%B
%(
D
(6
6%
$C
.4
(%
>\

55
$B
5B
J

V
D
7
*:
D
*

<#
?"
9)
(?
"$

B5
=
=
A#
%?%
"6

?"
(=

6
6"
)8
%B
"
:
@
"8
%6
"$

S
!?
%5
#

V
D
7
*W
D
0

]
A?
A)
"
$"
>%8
")
C
5L
D
A>
?A
)(
>7
")
8%
B"
6
+#
"M

?%?
>"
/

N
(?
)%B
%(
D
(6
6%
$C
.E
"%
>Z
)A
B"

X
""
?%#
9
M
%?O

^
N
X
4
(6
6"
66
"$

?O
(?
($
$%
?%5
#(
>6
!"
B%
(>
%6
?
6A
!!
5)
?
M
%>>
P"

)"
_A
%)"
$K
<#
%?%
(>
N
)5
`"
B?
Z
5(
)$
=
""
?%#
9
(9
)"
"$

?O
(?

!)
5B
A)
"=

"#
?
5L
(#

"&
?"
)#
(>

6!
"B
%(
>%6
?
P"

!)
59
)"
66
"$
K
'
"(
)
0
$"
>%8
")
CK

V
D
7
*W
D
,3

@
"$
AB
"
?O
"
#A
=
P"
)
5L
5A
?
5L
(A
?O
5)
%?C
!>
(B
"=

"#
?6
PC

)"
$"
6%
9#

(#
$
6=
(>
>(
$$
%?%
5#

?5
"&
%6
?%#
9

>5
B(
>6
")
8%
B"
6

7
A6
(#

T
"8
>%#
.N
(?
)%B
%(
D
(6
6%
$C

3
BO
%>$
)"
#
)"
?A
)#
%#
9
L)
5=

,3
S
S
N
?5
?(
>K
@
"6
!5
#6
%P
>"
a
57

%6
B5
#L
%$
"#
?
6(
8%
#9

M
%>>

P"
(B
O%
"8
"$
K
+V
D
7
PA
$9
"?
%6
BA
))
"#
?>C
58
")
B5
=
=
%??
"$

PC
I*
0-
^
/

V
D
7
WV
**

@
"$
"6
%9
#
5L
6"
#%
5)
6"
B5
#$
()
C
6B
O5
5>
?5
M
()
$6

(
D
%?C
D
(=

!A
6

T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.T
")
"J

7
(=

65
#

S
#
?(
)9
"?
K
D
%?C
:M
%$
"
(B
B"
66
?5
*2

($
$%
?%5
#(
> 
$8
(#
B"
$
a
%9
O"
)6
(#
$
B5
A)
6"
:

$"
8"
>5
!=

"#
?
M
5)
J
5#
95
%#
9
M
%?O
7
O"
?>(
#$

D
5A
#B
%>
M
%?O
!5
?"
#?
%(
>L
5)
)"
$A
B"
$

6?
(L
L%#
9K
]
A)
?O
")
BA
))
%B
A>
()
$"
8"
>5
!=

"#
?
(#
$
A6
"
5L
<D
Q
(>
65

P"
%#
9
"&
!>
5)
"$
K

X
5)
"
$"
?(
%>"
$
B5
6?
%#
96

%#
!)
5B
"6

5L
P"
%#
9
M
5)
J"
$
A!
K

N
(?
)%B
%(
D
(6
6%
$C
.7
O"
%>(
7
(#
6P
A)
C

Z
A6
%#
"6
6
N
>(
#
%#
!>
(B
"
M
%?O
>%#
J
?5
V
D
7
WV
,2
;
7
O(
)"
$
7
")
8%
B"
6K
X
5)
"
$"
?(
%>"
$

M
5)
J
#5
M
)"
_A
%)"
$
?5
!>
(#

L5
)
$"
>%8
")
C
%#
'
"(
)
0K

V
D
7
*W
D
*F

V
$A
B(
?%5
#(
>N
6C
BO
5>
59
Cb
Q
5
$"
8"
>5
!
(
`5
%#
?
V
N
7
")
8%
B"

M
%?O
#"
%9
OP
5A
)%#
9
(A
?O
5)
%?%
"6

Q
O%
#J
!%
"B
"
(#
$
5A
?B
5=

"6
L)
5=

c5
%#
?
T
%)"
B?
5)
d6
=
""
?%#
9;
P"
%#
9
M
5)
J"
$
A!

%#
?5
(

!)
5`
"B
?
!>
(#

L5
)
'
"(
)
,
$"
>%8
")
CK

V
D
7
*W
D
,2

N
5?
"#
?%(
>6
O(
)"
$
6"
)8
%B
"6

M
%?O
5?
O"
)
>5
B(
>(
A?
O5
)%?
%"
6
+V
D
e
7
/

D
O(
)>%
"
N
"#
=
(#
.c
(#
"
E
%B
J>
"#

V
D
7
WV
*G

@
(?
%5
#(
>%6
"
7
BO
55
> 
$=

%#
%6
?)
(?
%5
#

T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.U
"6
>"
C
^
%)J

I*
**
J
6(
8%
#9

(B
O%
"8
"$
K

V
D
7
WV
0-

D
O(
#9
"6

?5
?"
)=
6
5L
"#
9(
9"
=
"#
?
5L
B(
6A
(>
?"
(B
O"
)6

T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.^
%)6
?"
#
]
5>
"C

3-
f
6(
8%
#9
6
B5
A>
$
P"

(B
O%
"8
"$

?O
)5
A9
O
6(
8%
#9
6
5#

*6
?
2
$(
C6
B(
6A
(>
B5
8"
)
(?

7
B
*K

I*
0-
J
6O
5)
?L
(>
>=
"?
L)
5=

Q
"(
BO
")
6
N
)5
?"
B?
%5
#
4
)(
#?
K
D
O(
#9
"
B5
#?
)5
>$
5B

B5
=
!>
"?
"$
K

V
D
7
WV
02

D
5#
?)
(B
?%#
9
B(
6A
(>
?"
(B
O"
)6
L5
)
!A
!%
>(
??
"#
$(
#B
"
?%=
"
5#
>C
:
,2

O)
6
%#
N
)%=

()
C
e
,F
K2
O)
6
%#

7
"B
5#
$(
)C
(#
$
7
!"
B%
(>
7
BO
55
>6

T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.^
%)6
?"
#
]
5>
"C

3-
f
6(
8%
#9
6
B5
A>
$
P"

(B
O%
"8
"$

?O
)5
A9
O
6(
8%
#9
6
5#

*6
?
2
$(
C6
B(
6A
(>
B5
8"
)
(?

7
B
*K

I*
0-
J
6O
5)
?L
(>
>=
"?
L)
5=

Q
"(
BO
")
6
N
)5
?"
B?
%5
#
4
)(
#?
K
D
O(
#9
"
B5
#?
)5
>$
5B

B5
=
!>
"?
"$
K

V
D
7
*:
D
,-

V
$A
B(
?%5
#(
>N
6C
BO
5>
59
Cb
T
5
#5
?
L%>
>B
A)
)"
#?
8(
B(
#?
!5
6?
6

N
(?
)%B
%(
D
(6
6%
$C
.Z
%>>
S
da
()
(

7
(8
%#
9
(B
O%
"8
"$
K

V
D
7
WV
0,

N
"#
6%
5#
6
@
"$
AB
?%5
#b
E
5
D
5#
?)
%P
A?
%5
#
L5
)
?"
=
!5
)(
)C
!)
5=

5?
"$

!5
6?
6

T
(8
%$
U"
#9

V
D
7
WV
2

E
A)
6"
)C
E
A)
6"
6
?5
!)
58
%$
"
#5
#
B>
(6
6
B5
#?
(B
?
B5
8"
)
L5
)
#A
)6
")
C
?"
(B
O"
)6

T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.U
%Y
4
%>>
%"
6

7
(8
%#
9
(B
O%
"8
"$
K
a
5A
)6
!%
BJ
"$

A!
PC

"&
%6
?%#
9
E
A)
6"
)C
E
A)
6"
6
%#
6B
O5
5>
6

)"
_A
%)"
$K
E
A=
P"
)
5L
O5
A)
6
6?
%>>
)"
_A
%)"
$
%#
1
 
7
4
6
(#
$
a
@
PA
6%
#"
66
B(
6"

!)
"!
()
"$

L5
)
,
!"
)%!
(?
"?
%B
!5
6?
6
?5
B5
8"
)
(6

!"
)
N
Z
Z
Z
A6
%#
"6
6
D
(6
"K

V
D
7
WV
0F

@
"8
%6
"$

=
A6
%B
6"
)8
%B
"
5!
?%5
#

T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.T
")
"J

7
(=

65
#

7
?(
LL
6(
8%
#9
6
(B
O%
"8
"$

?O
)5
A9
O
1K
0G

]
Q
V
6?
(L
L
)"
$A
B?
%5
#
(#
$
6A
!!
>C
(#
$

58
")
?%=
"
PA
$9
"?
(>
?"
)(
?%5
#6
K
]
""

>"
8"
>6
O"
>$
?5
 
!)
%>
,-
*,

(#
$
6A
!!
>"
=
"#
?"
$
PC

%#
B)
"(
6"

%#
L"
"
%#
B5
=
"
(#
$
=
5)
"
"L
L%B
%"
#?
L"
"
=
5#
%?5
)%#
9K

V
D
7
WV
,,

@
"$
AB
"
N
A!
%>
7
A!
!5
)?
 
66
%6
?(
#?
6
N
)5
8%
6%
5#

PC
00
f
%#
N
)%=

()
C
7
BO
55
>6

T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.7
5O
(%
>]
()
A_
%

D
5=

P%
#"

V
,,

(#
$
V
,1

%#
?5
5#
"
PA
$9
"?
>%#
"K
a
@
B5
#L
%$
"#
?
5L
$"
>%8
")
CK
V
&(
B?

6(
8%
#9
6
P"
%#
9
B(
>B
A>
(?
"$

%#
=
5#
"?
()
C
(#
$
]
Q
V
?"
)=
6K

V
D
7
WV
,1

@
"$
AB
"
N
A!
%>
7
A!
!5
)?
 
66
%6
?(
#?
6
N
)5
8%
6%
5#

PC
00
f
%#
7
"B
5#
$(
)C
7
BO
55
>6

T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.7
5O
(%
>]
()
A_
%

D
5=

P%
#"

V
,,

(#
$
V
,1

%#
?5
5#
"
PA
$9
"?
>%#
"K
a
@
B5
#L
%$
"#
?
5L
$"
>%8
")
CK
V
&(
B?

6(
8%
#9
6
P"
%#
9
B(
>B
A>
(?
"$

%#
=
5#
"?
()
C
(#
$
]
Q
V
?"
)=
6K

V
D
7
WV
*F
(
 
$$
%?%
5#
(>
7
A!
!5
)?
E
""
$6
b
<#
B)
"(
6"

Q
"(
BO
")
.N
A!
%>
@
(?
%5
6
?5
*b
*-

:
7
"B
5#
$(
)C

T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.7
5O
(%
>]
()
A_
%

7
(8
%#
9
(B
O%
"8
"$

 
A9
A6
?
,-
**
(#
$
6A
P`
"B
?
?5
=
5#
?O
>C
=
5#
%?5
)%#
9K

V
D
7
WV
*H
(
 
$$
%?%
5#
(>
7
A!
!5
)?
E
""
$6
b
<#
B)
"(
6"

?"
(B
O"
).
!A
!%
>)
(?
%5
6
?5
*b
*-

%#
!)
%=
()
C
6B
O5
5>
 
7
E
Z
(6
"6
K
T
(8
%$
U"
#9
.7
5O
(%
>]
()
A_
%

7
(8
%#
9
(B
O%
"8
"$

 
A9
A6
?
,-
**
(#
$
6A
P`
"B
?
?5
=
5#
?O
>C
=
5#
%?5
)%#
9K

V
D
7
*W
D
*-

@
55
?
(#
$
P)
(#
BO
)"
8%
"M

5L
B5
=
=
%6
6%
5#
"$

()
?6
(#
$
6!
5)
?6
6"
)8
%B
"6

N
(?
)%B
%(
D
(6
6%
$C
.E
"%
>Z
)A
B"

'
"(
)
*
6(
8%
#9

=
"?
K
7
B5
!%
#9

)"
8%
"M

5L
LA
#$
%#
9
5)
9(
#%
6(
?%5
#6
(#
$
L%)
6?

5)
9(
#%
6(
?%5
#6
5#
95
%#
9
?O
)5
A9
O
J"
C
5L
L%B
")
6
M
5)
J%
#9

9)
5A
!K

Q
O"

5!
?%5
#6
(!
!)
(%
6(
>!
)5
B"
66
L5
)
?O
"
D
A>
?A
)(
>Q
)A
6?
M
%>>
($
$)
"6
6
?O
"
!5
66
%P
>"

%#
B>
A6
%5
#
5L
?O
"
#5
#:
6?
(L
L
(#
$
#5
#:
6B
O5
5>
B(
?"
)%#
9
6"
)8
%B
"K

D
5#
?)
(B
?
S
A?
E
5#

7
?(
LL
(#
$
E
5#

7
BO
55
>D
(?
")
%#
9
(?
Z
"(
BO
Z
(>
>)5
5=

. 
)?
4
(>
>"
)C

N
(?
)%B
%(
D
(6
6%
$C
.E
"%
>Z
)A
B"

V
D
7
*W
D
,,

Page 28



 !"#$""% &'() &*+%&',  !!"#$%& '
#"-"%+" .*%'(*#'%/ 012230120

$'#"&(*# (" 4 "()*+,-./0 1)2,)34 5 67.3,

89::: 89::: 89::: 89::: 89::: 89::: ;

<=0>:= ?=0@>? ?>0A:B C?0D?<E <=0=@A >@F :GB;

?=>0::> D:0:?= @B0@BF C?0<>AE ?=>0<>? <?A :G>;

=0<== ?0D<D ?0>?A CF?BE =0<== : :G:;

2516771 5869:0 506522 ;96782< 252629= 75= 1>9?(*( , !+$/"(

H4+3 ,. $+,4

I4+( .J 643K-*4 L 1.MM)/-,-4N0 1)2,)34 5 67.3,

I4+( .J 643K-*4 L 6*O..2N +/( "()*+,-./+2 643K-*4N

I4+( .J 643K-*4 L !.2-*P 5 !43J.3M+/*4

 **.)/,-/Q !43-.( @

R)22 H4+3
S4K-N4(
')(Q4,

S4K-N4(
')(Q4,

R.34*+N, ,. H4+3 "/(

 *,)+2
"T74/(-,)34

U+3-+/*4
 M.)/,

V),,)3/
U+3-+/*4
 M.)/,

U+3-+/*4
!43*4/,

 N +, 4/( .J 647,4MW43 >:??

Page 29



 !"#$""% &'() &*+%&',
#"-"%+" .*%'(*#'%/ 012230120
4"#-'&" 5 &67789:;:<=> &8?;8@< A 4B6@;
$'#"&(*# (" 5"C8DE;:69 &8?;8@< A 4B6@;

F" $ *G 4"#-'&" 5 H &E==:CI

 !  " #$ !%&'%()%* +$,,
 --. /
0.123"

4/ --31  5". / 6 78 -53 "9" /!

:;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ <

,+=+,> ?=>$@ ?=#>A B,CDE ,+=,@> BC$E F$G#<

#=$>D ,=>$C ,=C,# BD,E #=$>D $ $G$<

?C+ +>A ,?D BADE ?C+ $ $G$<

#>C ,@@ @> B,$+E #>C $ $G$<

>=,$? +=>># ,=C@$ B,=$A#E >=+$? ,$$ +G$<

#=#>D ,=?A$ ,=C#@ B+C#E #=CAD ,#$ #GD<

D=#,A C=?>D C=@+> ?? D=#,A $ $G$<

>=>@D $ $ $ >=>@D $ $G$<

JK>LJ0 2M>JJN 2O>LPM Q2>LK2R JK>N00 2K1 1SOT

B,D+E BD?E BA#AE B@C+E B,D+E $ $G$<

BA+E BC?E BC?CE BC,AE BA+E $ $G$<

B+=#@CE B,=,A@E BD?+E ++> B+=#@CE $ $G$<

B#?#E B,A$E $ ,A$ B#+AE #> FDG?<

B+=C,@E B,=+$AE BC@>E @## B+=#@@E C$ F,G@<

QO>P0NR Q0>M2MR Q0>MJKR Q00R QO>JOJR MO U2SPT

JP>01P 2P>L02 20>K1N Q2>M2JR JP>PLK 0LO 1SNT

6873H3-" 47949! /!
-IJ% 'KLM NONP%

479Q35"31
6 78 -53

0.123" "9 1 "3 H9-8"978-2 6 78 -53 -9"3! :;$$$
4;EVV &6=;=

BC$E

48BB?:<= A 4<@W:D<
,$$

&677:==:69:9X 4<@W:D<=
,#$

/6W<@97<9; /@E9;=

*;Y<@ /@E9;=

G<<= A #<DYE@X<=
#>

*;Y<@ '9D67<
C$"K% RSSL'LIJRP LJNI(% *%TP%N'M *%NKR*U%M 'I !&I*'  )%*S%%J TI* 5*%NK% !%*VLN%M WKLNK W%*% JI' )XSU%'%SG "KLM WLPP )% XM%S 'I

29637-H3-" 27 -"!

YKLPM' O%R* 'I SR'% %Z&%JSL'X*% LM :,G+H P%MM 'KRJ )XSU%'%S= 'KLM LM (R'NK%S WL'K U*%R'%* 'KRJ )XSU%'%S LJNI(% IT 'K% MR(%
VRPX%G 8JNPXS%S WL'KLJ 'KLM K%RSLJU LM XJ)XSU%'%S LJNI(% LJ *%M&%N' IT HR*L'L(% 4KRM% # 9LP [ 2RM B:+A>\E= HR*L'L(% 3SXNR'LIJ
7II( B:D$\E RJS !'*R'%ULN HXMLN 4R*'J%*MKL& B:,,$\E RJS 5/1 HRJRU(%J' TXJSM IT :,HG

(*( , '%&*."

%"( "ZH"%$'(+#"

]33! [ 5^ 723!

9"^37 27 -"!

9"^37 8-59H3

59HH8!!89-8-2 !376853!

!.44/83! [ !376853!

"7 -!]37 4 _H3-"! "9" /

0.123" "9 1 "3 479Q35"89- "9 _3 7 3-1

6 78 -53

 559.-"8-2 437891 ?

!" ]] 59!"!

5 48" / ]8- -58-2 59!"!

479437"_ 59!"!

 1H8-8!"7 "89- 59!"!

"7 -!497" 59!"!

/#*44 "ZH"%$'(+#"
/3!!` 8-59H3

_%R* 'I SR'% 8JNI(% LJ *%M&%N' IT NR'%*LJU R' 'K%  *' 2RPP%*O= 4*IVIM' !a%J% ^IXM% RJS 'K% HR*L'L(% HXM%X( LM :#$\ XJS%*
)XSU%'G  P'KIXUK 'K%*% R*% ITTM%''LJU MRVLJUM LJ !'RTTLJU RJS !X&&PL%M RJS !%*VLN%M IT :C$\ RJS :?>\ *%M&%N'LV%PO= 'K%*% LM R
O%R* 'I SR'% S%TLNL' IT :#$\ LJ 'K% J%' &IML'LIJ IT 'K%M% # %M'R)PLMK(%J'MG

8' MKIXPS )% JI'%S 'KR' :@$\ IT 'KLM XJS%*M&%JS *%PR'%M 'I NR'%*LJU I&%*R'LIJM R' 4*IVIM' !a%J% ^IXM% RJS 'K% HR*L'L(%
HXM%X(= WK%*% O%R* 'I SR'% S%TLNL'M KRV% R*LM%JG

YL'KLJ 'KLM K%RSLJU LM RJ XJS%*M&%JS IT :?>\ LJ *%PR'LIJ 'I 5R'%*LJU &*IVLMLIJM R' "K%  *' 2RPP%*O= 4*IVIM' !a%J% ^IXM% RJS 'K%
HR*L'L(% HXM%X(= WK%*% LJNI(% P%V%PM R*% P%MM 'KRJ )XSU%'%SG

"K% )XPa IT 'K% RSSL'LIJRP 8JNI(% IT :@C$\ *%TP%N'M 'K% %Z&%N'%S RSSL'LIJRP %Z&%JSL'X*% WL'KLJ !X&&PL%M [ !%*VLN%MG

7%NIV%*L%M T*I( 5I((IJ 2IISG 8J PLJ% WL'K +$,$F,, P%V%PM 'KLM LM PLa%PO 'I )% :#>\ P%MM 'KRJ )XSU%'%SG

"K% )XPa IT 'K% RSSL'LIJRP 8JNI(% IT :C+$\ *%TP%N'M 'K% %Z&%N'%S RSSL'LIJRP %Z&%JSL'X*% WL'KLJ !X&&PL%M [ !%*VLN%MG

9X' 9T  X'KI*L'O 4PRN%(%J'M F "K% &*%M%J' &IML'LIJ IJ 'K% RPLUJ%S )XSU%' MKIWM RJ IV%*M&%JS IT :C@$\= IT WKLNK :,#$\ LM
R''*L)X'R)P% 'I 3SXNR'LIJ= 5XP'X*% [ !&I*'G "K% M%*VLN% KRV% LS%J'LTL%S 'KR' R MKI*'RU% IT !3- &PRN%M LM R &I'%J'LRP )R**L%* 'I
*%'RLJLJU NKLPS%J WL'KLIJ 'K% NL'O RJS )*LJULJU I'K%*M )RNa T*I( 9X' 9T  X'KI*L'O &*IVLMLIJG

735^ 723!

Page 30



 !"#$""% &'() &*+%&',
#"-"%+" .*%'(*#'%/ 012230120

$'#"&(*# (" 4"56789:;< &6=96>? @ AB;>9
A"#-'&" 4 A7C;;=D 8<5 "56789:;<8= A?>E:7?D
F" $ *G A"#-'&" 4 $ ,?<H

 !  " #$ !%&'%()%* +$,,
 --. /
0.123"

4/ --31  5". / 6 78 -53 "9" /!

:;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ <

,$,=>?@ A,=>@A @B=?B> C+=>ABD ,$,=EA@ C,@$D F$G,<

+E=B#E ,@=A?A ,A=$+$ @+A +>=#?E AE$ +G,<

@+? +,A ,E? C@ED @+? $ $G$<

+=BE@ ,=@#+ ,=A?@ ,E+ +=?E@ ,$$ #GA<

A=+@$ +=E+$ ,=#$B C,=#,+D A=,@$ C,$$D F,G?<

+=@BA ,=+@# ,=#?, ,@B +=ABA ,$$ @G$<

+=+B, ,=,@$ ,=+,@ >@ +=+#, CA$D F+G+<

E=$?> $ $ $ E=$?> $ $G$<

2IJK10L M0KNN1 LNKLJO POKO1MQ 2IJKINL IM1 1ROS

C,=A>#D C>EED C+?+D @>@ C,=>+#D C,A$D ?GA<

C,#$D CEAD CEAD $ C,#$D $ $G$<

C?$#D C@#ED C#BED A$ C?$#D $ $G$<

C?@D C@>D $ @> C?@D $ $G$<

C#=#+AD C,=EE+D C+AAD ,=@$> C#=#+AD $ $G$<

PLK10TQ P0KNMLQ PNNJQ 2KNMJ PLK2MTQ P2T1Q 0RTS

2I0K110 M1K12I LJKLJT P2KO0NQ 2I0KO02 O01 1R0S

6873H3-" 47949! /!
-IJ% 'KLM NONP%

479Q35"31
6 78 -53

0.123" "9 1 "3 H9-8"978-2 6 78 -53 -9"3! :;$$$
A98UU &;D9D

@@$

C@A$D

C,#$D

V>;B?>9W &;D9D
AE$

(>8<DB;>9 &;D9D
,$$

A6BB=:?D @ A?>E:7?D
C,$$D

&;XX:DD:;<:<H A?>E:7?D
,$$

(>8<DU?> V8WX?<9D
CA$D

/;E?><X?<9 />8<9D
C,A$D

*9C?> '<7;X?
$

#+$

R%S* 'I TS'% %U&%JTL'V*% *%WP%N'M 'K% NIM'M IW X*%% !NKIIP (%SPM= K%*% %U&%JTL'V*% LM JI' SPYSOM IJ S M'*SLZK'
PLJ% )SMLMG .MLJZ +$,$[,, %U&%JTL'V*% P%\%PM SM SJ LJTLNS'I*= L' LM %U&%N'%T 'KS' WLJSP %U&%JTL'V*% YLPP )% MPLZK'PO
)%PIY )VTZ%'G

R%S* 'I TS'% %U&%JTL'V*% *%WP%N'M &SO(%J'M (ST% WI* &*% MNKIIP &*I\LT%*MG 8' MKIVPT SPMI )% JI'%T 'KS' )SM%T
V&IJ &*%\LIVM O%S*M NKS*Z%M= 'KLM )VTZ%' LM PL]%PO 'I )% I\%*M&%J' )O :,$$^G

"K% (SLJ *%SMIJ WI* 'K% VJT%* *%NI\%*O IW Z*SJ' *%PS'%M 'I 'K% NKSJZ% LJ M'S'VM IW 'K% 1%'%*(LJ%T "I !VNN%%T
(IJL%M YKLNK S*% )VTZ%'%T SM S Z*SJ'= )V' YKLNK S*% JIY LJNPVT%T YL'KLJ 'K% SJJVSP M%''P%(%J' WLZV*%G "KLM
SNNIVJ'M WI* :#$$] IW 'K% O%S* 'I TS'% \S*LSJN%G  J STTL'IJSP Z*SJ' LJ *%M&%N' IW S !NI''LMK 2I\%*J(%J'
VJT%*M&%JT WI* 'K% "%SNK%*M 8JTVN'LIJ !NK%(% KSM SPMI )%%J LJNPVT%T YL'KLJ 'K% WI*%NSM'G

"K% (SLJ *%SMIJ WI* 'K% O%S* 'I TS'% \S*LSJN% *%PS'%M 'I 13H "S*Z%' !S\LJZM YKLNK S*% JI' JI*(SPPO SNKL%\%T
VJ'LP PS'%* LJ 'K% WLJSJNLSP O%S*G

%"( "YV"%$'(+#"

"K% SJJVSP *IPP NKSJZ% LJ  VZVM' LJTLNS'%M STTL'IJSP '%SNKLJZ M'SWWLJZ %U&%JTL'V*% IW :@@$]G "KLM YLPP )% WVJT%T
W*I( SJ STTLI'JSP Z*SJ' *%N%J'PO JI'LWL%T 'I 'K% M%*\LN%G

"K% (SLJ *%SMIJ WI* 'K% O%S* 'I TS'% SJT WI*%NSM' \S*LSJN% *%PS'%M 'I 5P%SJLJZ 5IM'MG 8' MKIVPT )% JI'%T 'KS'
'K%M% )VTZ%'M SJT SMMINLS'%T NIM'M S*% %U&%N'%T 'I )% '*SJMW%**%T 'I 34_8 TV*LJZ  VZVM' S' 'K% NIJNPVMLIJ IW S
*%\L%Y )O 5I*&I*S'% XLJSJN% SJT &%*(LMMLIJ W*I( XLJSJN% SJT 7%MIV*N%M 5I((L''%% 'I '*SJMW%* )VTZ%'M
)%'Y%%J M%*\LN%MG

"K% (SLJ *%SMIJM WI* 'K% \S*LSJN% *%PS'% 'I S &*%\LIVM O%S*M VJT%*M&%JT IJ 1%'%*(LJ%T 'I !VNN%%T C:+$$]D
&PVM 'K% !NKIIPM 4*I'%N'LIJ 2*SJ' C :#$>^D KSM JI' O%' )%%J WVPPO NI((L''%TG  J %US(LJS'LIJ IW NS'%*LJZ *%PS'%T
NIM'M WI* +$,$[,, SZSLJM' 'K% NV**%J' O%S* )VTZ%' KSM LJTLNS'%T SJ VJT%*M&%JT IW :,$$]G

"K%*% S*% WI*%NSM' 'I )% SJJVSP M'SWWLJZ MS\LJZM IW :@A$^ LJ *%M&%N' IW 4*I)S'LIJ%* "%SNK%*M )VTZ%'G

"K% (SLJ *%SMIJ WI* 'K% O%S* 'I TS'% SJT WI*%NSM' \S*LSJN% *%PS'%M 'I !NKIIP "*SJM&I*' NIJ'*SN'MG 8' MKIVPT )%
JI'%T 'KS' 'K%M% )VTZ%'M SJT SMMINLS'%T NIM'M S*% %U&%N'%T 'I )% '*SJMW%**%T 'I 'K% 4V)PLN "*SJM&I*' .JL' TV*LJZ
9N'I)%* S' 'K% NIJNPVMLIJ IW S *%\L%Y )O 5I*&I*S'% XLJSJN% SJT &%*(LMMLIJ W*I( XLJSJN% SJT 7%MIV*N%M
5I((L''%% 'I '*SJMW%* )VTZ%'M )%'Y%%J M%*\LN%MG 8' KSM SPMI )%%J SMMV(%T 'KS' *%F'%JT%*LJZ MS\LJZM IW :+A$^
YLPP )% S''*L)V'%T 'I 'KLM )VTZ%'G

"K%*% S*% WI*%NSM' 'I )% SJJVSP M'SWWLJZ MS\LJZM IW :,#$^ LJ *%M&%N' IW 3MNI*'M SJT 'K% 3TVNS'LIJ `HSJSZ%*M

/#*AA "YV"%$'(+#"

(*( , '%&*."

735a 723!

9"a37 8-59H3

9"a37 27 -"!

5 48" / X8- -58-2 59!"!

59HH8!!89-8-2 !376853!

"7 -!X37 4 RH3-"!

X33! _ 5a 723!

29637-H3-" 27 -"!

479437"R 59!"!

/3!!b 8-59H3

 1H8-8!"7 "89- 59!"!

"7 -!497" 59!"!

!.44/83! _ !376853!

 559.-"8-2 437891 E

!" XX 59!"!

0.123" "9 1 "3 479Q35"89- "9 R3 7 3-1

6 78 -53

Page 31



 !"#$""% &'() &*+%&',
#"-"%+" .*%'(*#'%/ 01223 0120

$'#"&(*# (" 4"56789:;< &6=96>? @ AB;>9
A"#-'&" 4 C;=:7D 8<5 C?>E;>F8<7?
G" $ *H A"#-'&" 4 & C?<F8<

 !  " #$ !%&'%()%* +$,,
 --. /
0.123"

4/ --31  5". / 6 78 -53 "9" /!

:;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ :;$$$ <

+=$>$ ,=$#? @++ A,,#B +=$>$ $ $C$<

D?D #E$ +D# A,,>B D?D $ $C$<

D$? +$, ,,, A@$B D$? $ $C$<

D, +$ ++ + D, $ $C$<

EF, #D$ ,,F A+++B EF, $ $C$<

$ $ $ $ $ $ $C$<

, $ $ $ , $ $C$<

,=,D$ $ $ $ ,=,D$ $ $C$<

IJKL0 2JLMN 2JI2N OMI1P IJKL0 1 1Q1R

A,$B $ $ $ A,$B $ $C$<

$ $ $ $ $C$<

A,$B AEB A#B # A,$B $ $C$<

A#@DB A,@>B A,EDB ## A#@DB $ $C$<

A#DB A,EB A#$B A,DB A#DB $ $C$<

OIISP O02LP O2LKP 00 OIISP 1 1Q1R

IJTII 2JKTK 2J02L OM2SP IJTII 1 1Q1R

6873G3-" 47949! /!
-HI% 'JKL MNMO%

479P35"31
6 78 -53

0.123" "9 1 "3 G9-8"978-2 6 78 -53 -9"3! :;$$$

A98EE &;U9U
$

C>?F:U?U &;U9U
$
Q

 5F:<:U9>89:;< 7;U9U
$

A6BB=:?U @ A?>V:7?U

$

"J% (RKI R*%RL HS TIU%*L&%IU R*% 'J% #7L 1%V%OH&(%I' STIU A :E$WB= 1KLR)KOK'N  UXTL'(%I' YH*ZL A:?$WB RIU
85" GRL'%*MORLL%L A:E$WBC 8' KL TIU%*L'HHU 'JR' YH*Z KI *%L&%M' HS (HUKSNKI[ *HH(L KI ? LMJHHOL SH* 'J%  T[TL' *HOO
KI'RZ% Y%*% MH(KLLKHI%UC "J%L% MHL'L YKOO )% L%' R[RKIL' 'J% #7;L 1%V%OH&(%I' 4*H[*R((% (HIK%LC

"J% (RKI R*%RL HS TIU%*L&%IU YK'JKI 'JKL J%RUKI[ *%OR'%L 'H 5T**KMTOR* !'RSS 1%V%OH&(%I' A:+$WB= 5JKOU*%IL
!%*VKM% 1%V%OH&(%I' 0TU[%' A:+$WB RIU 1KLMOHLT*% !MH'ORIU 5J%MZL A:+$WB

"J% N%R* 'H UR'% TIU%*L&%IU *%SO%M'L R N%R* 'H UR'% TIU%*L&%IU KI 'J% 4JH%IK\ 4*HX%M' UT% 'H U%ORNL KI
*%M*TK'(%I' HS R&&*H&*KR'% L'RSS &OTL 'J% UK*%M'H*R'% JHOUKI[ &HL'L VRMRI' KI H*U%* 'H (%%' L'RSSKI[ LRVKI[L 'R*[%'L=

%"( "WC"%$'(+#"

"J% (RKI *%RLHI SH* 'J% N%R* 'H UR'% TIU%*L&%IU HS :E?W KI *%OR'KHI 'H !MJHHO !%MT*K'NC

(*( , '%&*."

/3!!] 8-59G3

^33! _ 5` 723!

9"`37 8-59G3

9"`37 27 -"!

735` 723!

29637-G3-" 27 -"!

 559.-"8-2 437891 E

/#*AA "WC"%$'(+#"

!" ^^ 59!"!

"7 -!497" 59!"!

479437"a 59!"!

 1G8-8!"7 "89- 59!"!

0.123" "9 1 "3 479P35"89- "9 a3 7 3-1

6 78 -53

!.44/83! _ !376853!

5 48" / ^8- -58-2 59!"!

59GG8!!89-8-2 !376853!

"7 -!^37 4 aG3-"!

Page 32



 !"##$%&

'($)) *"#(#

+%",-%(& *"#(#

./0121#(%$(1"2 *"#(#

3%$2#,"%( *"#(#

'4,,!1-# 5 '-%617-# *"#(#

*"001##1"2128 '-%617-#

3%$2#)-% +$&0-2(#

*$,1($! 912$27128 *"#(#

:27"0- ; 9--# 5 *<$%8-#

:27"0- ; =(<-% :27"0-

 !" #$%%$&'() )%$**+,- ,"#",* .$ .",/* 0*"1 &'.!'( .!" 2$1- $# .!" ,"3$,. +(1 '.* +33"(1'4"*

 !'* !"+1'() '(4%01"* +%% 4$*.* +**$4'+."1 &'.! .!" 035""3 $# 20'%1'()* +(1 ),$0(1*6  !'*
'(4%01"* *04! "73"(1'.0," +* ,+."*8 "(",)-8 3,$3",.- ,"3+',*8 4%"+('()8 ),$0(1*
/+'(."(+(4" +(1 .!" 9 :;* 0('.+,- 4!+,)"6

 !'* !"+1'() ,"%+."* .$ .!" +1/'('*.,+.'<" #0(4.'$(* +**$4'+."1 &'.! .!" *",<'4"6  !'*
'(4%01"* *04! "73"(1'.0," +* 4$0,*"*8 3,'(.'() = *.+.'$(",-8 ."%"3!$("*8 1'*4%$*0," 4!"45*
+(1 +1<",.'*'()6

 !'* !"+1'() '(4%01"* 3+-/"(. #$, *",<'4"* 4+,,'"1 $0. 2- "7.",(+% +)"(4'"*6  !'* '(4%01"*
3+-/"(.* '( ,"*3"4. $# >7.",(+% ?%+4"/"(.*8 *&'//'() 3$$%*8 @,+/3'+( A"+%.! B$+,16

 !'* 4$*. 4+.")$,- '(4%01"* +%% 1',"4. *.+## 4$*.* *04! +* *+%+,'"* +(1 &+)"* +* &"%% +*
'(1',"4. *.+## 4$*.* *04! +* 3"(*'$( +(1 %0/3 *0/ 3+-/"(.*6

 !'* !"+1'() ,"%+."* .$ + (0/2", $# .-3"* $# "73"(1'.0,"8 +(1 '(4%01"* 30,4!+*"8 !',"8
,"3+', +(1 /+'(."(+(4" $# "C0'3/"(.8 4+.",'() 4$*.*8 "7+/ #""*8 D$//0('.- D"(.,"
/+(+)"/"(. #0(1* 30,4!+*"*8 *4!$$%* 3", 4+3'.+ 201)".*6

 !'* !"+1'() '(4%01"* .!" 4$*.* $# 1+- .$ 1+- .,+<"% #$, +%% *.+##8 4+, 3+,5'() 3+**"*8 A$/"
.$ E4!$$%  ,+(*3$,. +(1 +(- ,"%$4+.'$( .,+<"% "73"(*"*6

 !'* '* '(4$/" )"(",+."1 #,$/ .!" *+%" $# *",<'4"*6  !'* '(4%01"* +1/'**'$( 4!+,)"*8
3,"/'*"* !',"8 /0*'4 +(1 4$+4!'() #""* 4+.",'() *+%"* +(1 .!" *+%" $# *"+*$( .'45".*6

 !'* ."(1* .$ "(4$/3+** "73"(1'.0," ,"4$<",'"* +(1 '(4%01"* "104+.'$( /+'(."(+(4"
+%%$&+(4" ,"4%+'/* #,$/ .!" E4$..'*! @$<",(/"(.8 F>G  +,)". E+<'()*8 #0(1'() 4+,,'"1
#$,&+,1 #,$/ 3,"<'$0* -"+,* +(1 /'*4"%%+("$0* '(4$/" 4+.")$,'"*6

 !'* '* .!" ,"3+-/"(. 4$*.* +**$4'+."1 &'.! 3,$H"4.* 3,"<'$0*%- +33,$<"1 &'.!'( .!" I$(
A$0*'() D+3'.+% ?,$),+//"6  !" 201)". ,"#%"4.* .!" 3%+(("1 ,"3+-/"(. $# 2$.! 4+3'.+%
+(1 '(.","*. "%"/"(.*6

 !'* /+'(%- ,"#%"4.* 3+-/"(.* .$ .!',1 3+,.'"* *04! +* 4%$.!'() ),+(.*8 #,"" *4!$$% /"+%
4$*.* +(1 "104+.'$( /+'(."(+(4" +%%$&+(4" 3+-/"(.*8 ),+(.* +(1 4$(.,'20.'$(* .$ "7.",(+%
2$1'"*6

Page 33



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   Education Culture and Sport    
  
DATE     24/11/11   
 
DIRECTOR    Annette Bruton 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Capital Monitoring – Education, Culture & Sport 

Projects 
 
REPORT NUMBER:  ECS/11/075 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To advise the Committee of the capital spend to date for the Education 
Culture & Sport projects included within the Non-Housing Capital 
Programme.  

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
 The Committee note the current position. 
 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The monies required to fund these projects are achieved through 
external borrowing, capital receipts and grant income. These projects 
are all accommodated within the Non-Housing Capital Programme. Any 
under-spend, carry forward or overspend will have implications for the 
programme. An under-spend is currently predicted as detailed in 
section 5. 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no other implications at this time but as projects progress or 
indeed fail to progress then other implications may arise and will be 
reported at an appropriate Committee. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
As reported at the previous meeting of this Committee the 
monitoring/management of the Capital Programme lies with the Head 
of Asset Management & Operations. The Planning & Monitoring Officer 
within Asset Management & Operations is in regular contact with the 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 35



 

Service Representative and the Capital Accountant, reporting in the 
first instance to the Corporate Asset Group. This is the second capital 
monitoring report of 2011/12 flowing from this arrangement.  
 
Education Culture & Sport has a total of £958,000 million allocated to it 
from the Non-Housing Capital Programme. The projects included in the 
programme are:- 
 
1) Dyce Music School Accommodation 

 
2) Outdoor Education Move to Kingswells 

 
3) Information Communication Technology Connectivity 

 
4) Replacement of Education Management Information System 

 
5) Bucksburn / Newhills Proposed Amalgamation 

 
6) Provision for Children with Complex Needs 

 
7) Oldmachar Academy Heating/Ventilation 

 
The total expenditure at the end of period 7 is £289,000, a spend of 
30%, with a further 20% legally committed. Appendix A provides a 
detailed breakdown of this spend. 
 
The Service currently forecast that there will be an overall underspend 
against budget of £185,000. Officials from Asset Management & 
Operations will continue to work closely with the Service to assess the 
robustness of the forecast outturn.  

 
An update on the Capital position will be reported to this Committee in 
February.  

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate - The capital programme encompasses projects which link to 
the Community Plan, Single Outcome Agreement, Corporate and 
Individual Service Plans and Vibrant, Dynamic & Forward Looking. 
 
Public - This report will be of interest to the public as it outlines the 
Council’s capital spending to date on Education Culture & Sport 
Projects. 

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Non-Housing Capital Programme 2011/12 – Monitoring Report 
approved at Finance & Resources Committee on 29 September 2011 

Page 36



 

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR’S DETAILS  

 
David Marshall 
Planning & Monitoring Officer 
� damarshall@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
� 01224 523191 

 
 David Wright 

Service Manager (Assets & Finance)  
� dwright@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
� 01224 523042 

 

Page 37



 

Appendix A - Non Housing Capital: Education, Culture & Sport spend to 
Period 7 (October) 

 
 

Education, Culture & Sport: 
All Projects spend to October 
 

    

Capital  Total Year Spend to 
no.  Budget Projection  October 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 
     

751 Replacement of Education M.I.S. 474 363 38 
776 Provision for Children with Complex 

Needs 
316 222 174 

750 I.C.T. Connectivity 105 173 66 
773 Bucksburn / Newhills Proposed 

Amalgamation 
50 8 5 

742 Outdoor Education Move to 
Kingswells 

6 1 0 
682 Music School Accommodation 5 6 6 
780 Oldmachar Academy 

Heating/Ventilation 
2 0 0 

     
 Totals 958 773 289 

 
 
Education, Culture & Sport: 
By Project 
 
 
Capital Item 751: Replacement of Education M.I.S. 
 

Total Year Spend to  Spend to 
Budget Projection October  Date 
£'000 £'000 £'000   % 

     
474 363 38  8 
     

• Legal commitment has been made for cost of training. 
• Expenditure will increase when seconded staff salaries begin to appear 

in the ledger. 
• Current profile showing an anticipated underspend of £111,000. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



 

Capital Item 776: Provision for Children with Complex Needs 
 

Total Year Spend to  Spend to 
Budget Projection October  Date 
£'000 £'000 £'000   % 

     
316 222 174  55 
     

• Current  spend profile indicates a projected underspend of £94,000. 
• Remaining expenditure exclusively on Design Team fees. 
 
 
 
 

Capital Item 750: I.C.T. Connectivity 
 

Total Year Spend to  Spend to 
Budget Projection October  Date 
£'000 £'000 £'000   % 

     
105 173 66  63 
     

• Current profile shows projected overspend.  
• Overspend may be a result of budget holder not budgeting for the 

involvement of a team to administer health & safety regulations, resulting 
in the need for Design team involvement. This project has moved from 
being an Education, Culture & Sport project to a joint venture with 
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure involvement.  

• Budget holders to investigate alternative means of funding projected 
overspend. 

 
 
 
 
Capital Item 773: Bucksburn / Newhills Proposed Amalgamation 
 

Total Year Spend to  Spend to 
Budget Projection October  Date 
£'000 £'000 £'000   % 

     
50 8 5  10 
     

• Spend for this financial year exclusively on Design team fees.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 

 
Capital Item 742: Outdoor Education Move to Kingswells 
 

Total Year Spend to  Spend to 
Budget Projection October  Date 
£'000 £'000 £'000   % 

     
6 1 0  0 
     

• Final account profiled to be settled in late November, £5,000 under 
budget. 

 
 
 
 
Capital Item 682: Music School Accommodation 
 

Total Year Spend to  Spend to 
Budget Projection October  Date 
£'000 £'000 £'000   % 

     
5 6 6  120 
     

• Project completed £1,000 over budget due to settlement of final account. 
 
 
 
 
Capital Item 780: Oldmachar Academy Heating/Ventilation 
 

Total Year Spend to  Spend to 
Budget Projection October  Date 
£'000 £'000 £'000   % 

     
2 0 0  0 
     

• Project has been completed and final account settled with no further fees 
to pay. The £2,000 contingency budget allocated to this project is not 
required and therefore reported as a saving. 

 

Page 40



 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE   Education, Culture and Sport   
 
DATE     24th November 2011    
 
DIRECTOR    Annette Bruton    
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Bank Holiday – 

Tuesday 5th June 2012  
 
REPORT NUMBER:   ECS/11/067 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To seek the approval of the Education, Culture & Sport Committee to: 
(1) close schools to pupils and staff on Tuesday 5th June 2012, the 
Queen’s Diamond Jubilee Bank Holiday; and 
(2) move the planned school in-service training day on Tuesday 8th 
May 2012 to Monday 4th June 2012. 
 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
1. To instruct officers to request from the Scottish Government an 
exceptional closure day for schools, so that staff and pupils can benefit 
from the additional Bank Holiday for the Queen’s Diamond Jubilee on 
Tuesday 5th June 2012. 
 
2. To approve the proposal to move the 8th May in-service training day 
for school staff to Monday 4th June 2012, allowing pupils to benefit from 
the four day weekend to celebrate the Queen’s Diamond Jubilee. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no financial implications 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

Schools are required to remain open for a minimum of 190 days per 
year. However Scottish Ministers are permitted to make modifications 
to this regulation, providing they are satisfied it would be unreasonable 
for the regulation to apply.  

 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 41



Should the local authority wish to close schools for an additional day on 
5th June 2012, it will be necessary to write to Scottish Ministers to 
request this. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
In March 2010, the First Minister confirmed that the additional bank 
holiday to celebrate the Queen’s Diamond Jubilee on 5th June 2012, 
previously announced by the UK Government, would apply to Scotland.  
 
It is a matter for each local authority to determine whether or not 
schools are closed for Bank Holidays. The Committee is therefore 
requested to consider approving the closure of schools for this 
additional day, Tuesday 5th June, allowing staff and pupils to celebrate 
the Diamond Jubilee. 
 
The First Minister also confirmed that the late May Bank Holiday, 
originally due to take place on 28th May, would be moved to Monday 4th 
June, to allow for a four day weekend to celebrate the Diamond 
Jubilee. 
 
The late May Bank Holiday is not currently a closure day for schools, 
however, so Monday 4th June would be a normal school day for staff 
and pupils. If the Committee were to agree to the additional closure day 
on 5th June, this would require pupils to attend school as normal on 
Monday 4th June, to remain at home on Tuesday 5th June, and to return 
to school again on Wednesday 6th June. This may create difficulty or 
inconvenience for some parents, and it would not provide pupils with a 
four day weekend to celebrate the Diamond Jubilee, as had been 
intended by the Scottish Government. 
 
It is therefore proposed that, in addition to the approval of the closure 
day on Tuesday 5th June, the planned in-service training day for school 
staff on Tuesday 8th May 2012, is moved to Monday 4th June. This 
would allow pupils to remain at home for both the 4th and 5th June, and 
would provide them with the four day weekend. 
 
In considering this proposal the Committee is reminded of the 
principles adopted when producing the current holiday arrangements, 
namely: 
 
1. There is a need to establish a holiday pattern that avoids schools 

opening during public and local holidays. 
2. Whole weeks of holiday and school term time are preferable to 

incomplete weeks 
3. In any school year, the stipulated number of attendances for pupils 

is 190 days and the number of working days for teachers is 195 
days, the additional 5 days for teachers being in-service days. 

 

Page 42



 
6. IMPACT 
 

We require to advise parents and families as soon as possible of any 
additional closure days, so that they can make arrangements 
accordingly. 
 
Parents have already been advised of the in-service day that was 
planned to take place on Tuesday 8th May. This was to follow the Bank 
Holiday on Monday 7th May, which will be a closure day for schools. It 
is possible that some families will have made plans for these two days, 
as they will have been expecting pupils to be at home for both days. 
Moving the in-service day to the 4th June could have an adverse impact 
on these plans, as pupils would now be required to attend school on 8th 
May. 
 
An early decision on the above proposals is therefore requested, so 
that parents can be informed of the changes as soon as possible. 
 
Officers’ plans for professional development activities on the 8th May in-
service training day are at an early stage, and would not be adversely 
affected by a change of the date to the 4th June. 

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Aberdeen City School Terms and Holiday Dates 2010 – 2015 
 

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/education_learning/schools/scc_Schoo
lHols.asp  
   

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Andrew Jones 
CPD Coordinator 
ajones@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
522886 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 !"#$""% &'() &*+%&',

 !""#$$%% "-./012345 &.61.78 04- 9:371

&'$% ;< %3=8>?87 ;@AA

&#(% $!(  448118 !7.134

$#$)% !* (%+!($ &3>>.421B $8=863:>841 C.4- D &E26-/078 F *.1 3G
9/E336 H73=2I234

(%+!($ ,-".%(/ "&9JAAJ@K<

AL H+#H*9" *C #"H*#(

*012341 25 6 147512 859:;<414< 62 234 *;96984 69< (4:50184:  5==;2244 59 >6;=3;??
 5==09;2@ *68;?;2;4:A 5BB;841: C414 ;9:210824< 25 147512 D68E 59 4:26D?;:3;9F 6
85==09;2@ <4G4?57=492 B09< 5B HIJAJJJ 741 6990= 2362 869 D4 D;< B51 D@
85==09;2@ F1507: 25 715G;<4 952 B51 715B;2 14F;:2414< 83;?<8614 69< 502 5B :8355?
715G;:;59K

$3;: 147512 715G;<4: ;9B51=62;59 59 234 ;=7?;862;59: 5B 4:26D?;:3;9F :083 6
<4G4?57=492 B09<K

;L #"&*MM"%$ ('*%N9O

#2 ;: 1485==49<4< 2362 234  5==;2244/

 59B;1= 2362 234 8011492  5098;? 75?;8;4: L!02 5B M8355?  614 +5?;8@ 69< .55E;9F:
69< )422;9F: +5?;8@N ;9 14?62;59 25 715G;<;9F B144 6884:: B51 959O715B;2 =6E;9F
14F;:2414< 83;?<8614 69< 714O:8355? 715G;<41: C;?? 8592;904 25 677?@ ;9 14?62;59 25
235:4  5098;? 4:26D?;:3=492: 2362 D485=4 ?46:4< 51 4P0;G6?492K

PL C'% %&' , 'MH,'& ('*%9

#B "696F4=492  5==;2244: C414 25 8361F4 B51 83;?<8614 715G;:;59 ;9 85==09;2@
849214:A 234 B;9698;6? ;=7?;862;59 25 4Q;:2;9F 83;?<8614 715G;<41: 850?< D4 69 ;98146:4
5B D42C449 67715Q;=624?@ HRJJAJJJ 69< HSJJAJJJ 741 @461K  011492 715G;:;59 ;:
<4?;G414< D@ 234  5098;? 69< 52341 959O715B;2 =6E;9F D5<;4:K +61492: 85921;D024 25
234 :41G;84 23150F3 83;?<8614 B44: 69< B09<16;:;9FK *51 234  5098;? 715G;<4<
:41G;84:A 23414 ;: 95 6G6;?6D?4 D0<F42 25 85G41 3;14 8361F4: C;23;9 85==09;2@
849214:K

$34 4:26D?;:3=492 5B 6 <4G4?57=492 B09< C50?< 85:2 HIJAJJJ 741 @461K $3414 ;: 95
6G6;?6D?4 D0<F42 B51 23;: C;23;9 234 %<0862;59A  0?2014 69< M7512 D0<F42K $34
4:26D?;:3=492 5B :083 6 <4G4?57=492 B09< C50?< 6?:5 14:0?2 ;9 6<=;9;:2162;G4 85:2:A
C3;83 614 952 D0<F424< B51K ' <4G4?57=492 B09< D0<F42 5B HIJAJJJ C50?< 952 =442
6?? 234 752492;6? 6<<;2;596? 3;14 8361F4: 6: <426;?4< 6D5G4K

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 45



 !""#$%&' %(# )"*+,-,*$ .$/ 0.,$%#$.$1# *2 (,3( 4!.&,%' 1(,&/1."# ,$ 1*00!$,%,#-
1(.".1%#",-#/ 5' (,3( 61*%%,-( ,$/#7 *2 8!&%,)&# /#)",+.%,*$ -1*"#- *" %* +!&$#".5&#
1(,&/"#$ .$/ 2.0,&,#- ,- -!))*"%#/ %("*!3( -#"+,1# 5!/3#%- ,$1&!/,$3 6!"#-%."% .$/
 (,&/1."# 6%".%#3' 2!$/,$3 %*%.&&,$3 9:;:<=== )#" '#.">

 ! "#$%& '()*'+,#'"-.

?2 . 2!$/,$3 -1(#0# @#"# %* 5# )!% ,$ )&.1#< 0#1(.$,-0- @*!&/ 5# "#4!,"#/ %*
#$-!"# %(.% *"3.$,-.%,*$- .@."/#/ 2!$/,$3 !-#/ ,% 2*" %(# ,$%#$/#/ )!")*-# .$/
1*0)&,#/ @,%( %(#  *!$1,&A- B*&&*@,$3 %(# C!5&,1 C*!$/ C*&,1'>

/! 0,+12&"3-45(,'- '..3%.

D>E  !""#$% C*-,%,*$

F(#"# ."# . ".$3# *2 1(,&/1."# .1%,+,%,#- )"*+,/#/ %("*!3(*!% %(#  *!$1,&A-
1*00!$,%' 1#$%"#-> F(# 1(,&/1."# .1%,+,%,#- ,$1&!/# 5#2*"# .$/ .2%#" -1(**& 1."#<
(*&,/.' 1."#< )&.'3"*!)-< 1"G1(#- .$/ CHHC 3"*!)-> F(#-# -#"+,1#- ."# /#&,+#"#/
/,"#1%&' 5' %(#  *!$1,& .$/ %("*!3( *%(#" $*% 2*" )"*2,% *"3.$,-.%,*$->

F(,- )"*+,-,*$ 1!""#$%&' ,$1!"- $* 1(."3# 2*" %(# !-# *2 1*!$1,& )"#0,-#-> F(,- ,- ,$
&,$# @,%( %(#  *!$1,&A- I**J,$3- .$/ K#%%,$3- C*&,1'< .))"*+#/ .% %(# H/!1.%,*$<
 !&%!"# .$/ 6)*"%  *00,%%## *$ EL B#5"!."' M=E= @(,1( -%.%#- %(.% %(#"# @,&& 5#
$* 1(."3# &#+,#/ 2*" N*$O)"*2,% 0.J,$3 "#3,-%#"#/ 1(,&/1."# .$/ )"#O-1(**&
)"*+,/#"-< .$/ %(#  *!$1,&A- P!% *2 61(**&  ."# C*&,1'< Q P1%*5#" M==L @(,1(
-%.%#- %(.% R%(#  *!$1,& @,&&S>)"*+,/# 2"## .11#-- %* &*1.& .!%(*",%' #-%.5&,-(0#$%->T

D>M I#$#2,%- *2  (,&/  ."#

F(# 2!$/.0#$%.& )",$1,)&# *2 ,$+#-%,$3 ,$ #."&' '#."- .$/ ,$ #."&' ,/#$%,2,1.%,*$ .$/
,$%#"+#$%,*$ -#"+,1#- .$/ -!))*"% %* )."#$%- ,- %* ,0)"*+# %(# &*$3 %#"0 *!%1*0#-
2*" .&& 1(,&/"#$ .$/ ,$ )."%,1!&."< 2*" %(*-# 1(,&/"#$ @(* $##/ .//,%,*$.& -!))*"%>

D>M>E P!% *2 61(**&  ."#

F(#"# ."# . ".$3# *2 5#$#2,%- *2 )"*+,/,$3 *!% *2 -1(**& 1."# .- )."% *2 %(# 1,%'A-
-*1,.& .$/ #1*$*0,1 )",*",%,#-U %* ,0)"*+# *!%1*0#- 2*" 1(,&/"#$V %* 0.J# %(# 1,%' .$
.%%".1%,+# )&.1# %* &,+# .$/ @*"JV %* .%%".1% ,$@."/ ,$+#-%0#$%V .$/ %* 0##% %(#
$##/- *2 #7,-%,$3 @*"J,$3 )."#$%- .$/ %(*-# "#%!"$,$3 %* #0)&*'0#$% .$/ .- )."% *2
%(#  *!$1,&A- )*&,1' 1*00,%0#$% %* 2!&&' ,$%#3".%#/ 1(,&/"#$A- -#"+,1#->

F(#  *!$1,&A- P!% *2 61(**&  ."# C*&,1'< .3"##/ Q P1%*5#" M==L .$/ "#.22,"0#/ ,$
M==;< -%.%#- %(.% %(#  *!$1,& @,&&U

 )"*0*%# %(# +.&!# %(.% 4!.&,%' 1(,&/1."# -#"+,1#- (.- .- )."% *2 ,$%#3".%#/
1(,&/"#$A- -#"+,1#-V

 )"*+,/# 2"## .11#-- %* &*1.& .!%(*",%' #-%.5&,-(0#$%- .- W5#"/##$  ,%'
 *!$1,&A- 1*$%",5!%,*$ %* %(# #1*$*0,1 /#+#&*)0#$% *2 %(# 1,%'V

 #$-!"# %(.% &*1.& .!%(*",%' #-%.5&,-(0#$%- ."# .11#--,5&# 2*" %(# )"*+,-,*$ *2
@".) ."*!$/ 1(,&/1."# -#"+,1#- ,$1&!/,$3 5"#.J2.-% 1&!5-< (*&,/.' )&.'

Page 46



 !"#$# %&' %()#*  !"++, !,-. %&' )"%) )"# # %*# %!!#  /.,# )+ !"/,'*#&
0/)" '/ %./,/)/# 1

 #& -*# )"%) 0"#*# +-) +(  !"++, !%*# / .% #' /&  !"++, 2 !+$$-&/)3 !#&)*# 
+* (%$/,3 !#&)*# )"%)  )%(( 0+*4 /& 5%*)&#* "/5 0/)" )"# 5*+6/'#* )+ +6#*!+$#
%&3 +*7%&/ %)/+&%, .%**/#* 0"/!" !+-,' 5*#6#&) 8-%,/)3  #*6/!# .#/&7
'#,/6#*#' )+ !"/,'*#& %&' 5%*#&) 1

 #& -*# )"%) ,+!%, %-)"+*/)3 # )%.,/ "$#&) %&' !"/,'!%*# 5*+6/'#* 9+/&),3
5%*)/!/5%)# /& 5,%&&/&7 )+ !*#%)# 0*%5 %*+-&' !"/,'!%*#  #*6/!# )"%) $##)
:%*# :+$$/  /+& *#8-/*#$#&) 1

 #& -*# )"%) #((#!)/6# !+$$-&/!%)/+&  3 )#$ %*# # )%.,/ "#' .#)0##& ,+!%,
%-)"+*/)3 # )%.,/ "$#&)  )%(( %&' )"# !"/,'!%*# 5*+6/'#* )+ %,,+0 *#7-,%*
'/ !-  /+& +& )"# &##' +( )"# !"/,'*#& %))#&'/&7 )"#  #*6/!#1

 5*+$+)# !"/,'!%*#  #*6/!# % % 5+ /)/6# % 5#!) +( )"#  !"++,;!#&)*#< 
5%!4%7# +(  #*6/!# )+ 0+*4/&7 5%*#&) 1 %&'

 *#!+7&/ # )"# 6%,-# %&' 8-%,/)/# +( 5,%3 !#&)*#' !"/,'!%*# 5*+6/ /+&2 % %
5+ /)/6# %''/)/+& )+ )"# !"/,'< '%/,3 ,#%*&/&7 #=5#*/#&!# %&' % %  /7&/(/!%&)
!+&)*/.-)/+& )+ )"# :-**/!-,-$ (+* >=!#,,#&!#?

@?A?A B,%37*+-5 %&' !*C!"# 5*+6/ /+&

D"# *%&7# +( .#&#(/) +(  -55+*)/&7 )"# 5*+6/ /+& +( !*C!"# %&' 5,%37*+-5 
/&!,-'# E $##)/&7 )"# &##' +( 0+*4/&7 5%*#&) 1 #&%.,/&7 5%*#&) %&' !%*#* )+
/$5*+6# )"#/*  4/,, )+  -55+*) % *#)-*& )+ +* )+ !+$$#&!# #$5,+3$#&)1 #&%.,/&7
5%*#&) %&' !%*#* )+ 5%*)/!/5%)# /& ,+!%, !+$$-&/)3 %&' '#$+!*%)/! %!)/6/)/# 1
'#6#,+5/&7 )"# .+&' .#)0##& 5%*#&); !%*#* %&' !"/,'1 *#%,/ /&7 )"# /$5+*)%&!# +(
5,%3 0/)"/& % !"/,'< ,#%*&/&7 #=5#*/#&!#1  -55+*)/&7 )"# !*#%)/+& +( .+&' 0/)"/&
(%$/,/# %&' &#/7".+-*"++' )+ "#,5 '#6#,+5 !+"# /6# !+$$-&/)/# 1 %&' % 5%*) +(
)"# :+-&!/,< 5+,/!3 !+$$/)$#&) )+ (-,,3 /&)#7*%)#' !"/,'*#&<  #*6/!# ?

@?A F-'7#) G#!/ /+&

@?A?H I& J#.*-%*3 AKHH2 % 5%*) +( /) .-'7#) 5*+!#  2 )"# :+-&!/, %7*##' )+ $+6# %,,
!+$$-&/)3 !#&)*# )+ ,#% #' !#&)*#  )%)- ? L % *# -,) +( )"/ '#!/ /+&2  +$#
*#5*# #&)%)/6# (*+$ 6+,-&)##* M%&%7#$#&) :+$$/))## 2 0"+ 0/,, .# *# 5+& /.,#
(+* *-&&/&7 ,+!%, %-)"+*/)3 # )%.,/ "$#&) "%6# /&)/$%)#' )"*+-7" $##)/&7 %&'
(+*-$ )"%) )"#3 (##, )"%) /) 0+-,' .# -&*#% +&%.,# (+* )"# :+-&!/, )+ ,/$/) )"#/*
%./,/)3 )+ 7#&#*%)# *#6#&-# (*+$ &+&N5*+(/) $%4/&7 *#7/ )#*#' !"/,'!%*# %&' 5*#N
 !"++, 5*+6/'#* )"*+-7" )"# !+&)/&-%)/+& +( )"# # 5+,/!/# ?

@?A?A D"#*# %*# % &-$.#* +( !+ ) %  +!/%)#' 0/)" )"# 5*+6/ /+& +( !"/,'!%*# %&' 5*#N
 !"++, %!)/6/)/# ? :-**#&),3 )"# $+ )  /7&/(/!%&) !+ ) (+* )"# # 5*+6/'#* / /&
5*+6/'/&7  -/)%.,3 8-%,/(/#' %&' )*%/&#'  )%((? O)%)-)+*3 *#8-/*#$#&) (+* $/&/$-$
,#6#, +( 8-%,/(/!%)/+& (+*  )%(( 0+*4/&7 /& !"/,'!%*# 5*+6/ /+& %*# /&!*#% /&7 P(*+$
G#!#$.#* AKHH2 ,#%' 5*%!)/)/+&#* 0/,, *#8-/*# )+ .# '#7*## 8-%,/(/#'?Q D"#*# / 
!+&!#*& )"%) )"# !+ ) %  +!/%)#' 0/)" #& -*/&7 %55*+5*/%)#,3 8-%,/(/#'  )%(( %*# /&
5,%!#2 %,+&7 0/)" 5+)#&)/%,,3 /&!*#% /&7 *++$ "/*# !"%*7# (+* )"# #  #*6/!# $%3
$%4# )"#$ -&6/%.,#?

@?A?R S# #%*!" +( (## !"%*7#' (+* 5,%37*+-5 0"/!" !-**#&),3 -)/,/ # &+&NL.#*'##& :/)3
:+-&!/, (%!/,/)/# PL55#&'/= LQ  "+0 )"%) )"#*# / % ,%*7# 6%*/%)/+& /& *#&)%, !"%*7# 
PT@ N TUU 5#*  #  /+&?Q L) )"# !-**#&) )/$#2 )"#*# / &+ /&(+*$%)/+& (*+$

Page 47



 !"!#$%$"& '(%%)&&$$* !+(,& -.!& &.$/ %)#.& 0.!1#$ 2(1 &.$ ,*$ (2 '(%%,")&/
2!0)3)&)$* 2(1 &.$*$ !0&)4)&)$*5

65756 8+$19$$" ')&/ '(,"0)3 :1(4)9$9 0.)390!1$ !0&)4)&)$* 0,11$"&3/ .!4$ !" ,:&!;$ (2
!1(,"9 <=>?76= 0.)390!1$ :3!0$* :$1 /$!1 0(4$1)"# (4$1 !3%(*& <6?=== .(,1* :$1
/$!15 @.$*$ )"03,9$ :1$ !"9 !2&$1 *0.((3 0!1$ A,:&!;$ (2 6B?CB= 0.)39 :3!0$* :$1
/$!1D? .(3)9!/ 03,+* A,:&!;$ (2 E?>6= :3!0$* :$1 /$!1D? !"9 ! 1!"#$ (2 :3!/#1(,:*
!"9 01F0.$* A,:&!;$ (2 EG?=6= :3!0$* :$1 /$!15D H*)"# &.$ )"2(1%!&)(" !+(4$ !+(,&
0.!1#$* 0,11$"&3/ +$)"# 3$4)$9 +/ "(" 8+$19$$" ')&/ '(,"0)3 2!0)3)&)$*I )2
 !"!#$%$"& '(%%)&&$$* -$1$ &( 0.!1#$ J6 :$1 .(,1 2(1 &.$*$ !0&)4)&)$*? &.)* -(,39
0(*& &.$ *$14)0$ !" !99)&)("!3 JG6?===K L2  !"!#$%$"& '(%%)&&$$* -$1$ &( 0.!1#$
JCC :$1 *$**)("? &.$ 0(*& &( &.$ *$14)0$ -(,39 +$ !" !99)&)("!3 JEM6?=== :$1 /$!15

6575B 8" )"9$:$"9$"& "(& 2(1 :1(2)& 0.!1)&!+3$ (1#!")*!&)("? :1(4)9$* CG?<EE 0.)390!1$
:3!0$* :$1 /$!1? )" 0(%%,")&/ 0$"&1$*? (4$1 !1(,"9 C?CB= .(,1*5 @.)* :1(4)*)("
)"03,9$* :1$ !"9 !2&$1 *0.((3 0!1$ !"9 0.)390!1$ 9,1)"# .(3)9!/* !"9 )" *$14)0$
9!/*5 H*)"# &.$ )"2(1%!&)(" !+(4$ !+(,& 0.!1#$* 0,11$"&3/ +$)"# 3$4)$9 +/ "("
8+$19$$" ')&/ '(,"0)3 2!0)3)&)$*I )2  !"!#$%$"& '(%%)&&$$* -$1$ &( 0.!1#$ J6 :$1
.(,1 2(1 &.$*$ !0&)4)&)$*? &.)* -(,39 0(*& &.$ )"9$:$"9$"& "(& 2(1 :1(2)& 0.!1)&!+3$
(1#!")*!&)(" !" !99)&)("!3 J<B?>==K L2  !"!#$%$"& '(%%)&&$$* -$1$ &( 0.!1#$ JCC
:$1 *$**)("? &.$ 0(*& -(,39 +$ !" !99)&)("!3 J<<=?>>= :$1 /$!15

65756 L" !99)&)("? &.1$$ *$14)0$*? -.)0. !1$ $)&.$1 :1)4!&$3/ 1," (1 %!"!#$9 +/ :!1$"&
0(%%)&&$$* $N)*& -)&.)" '(%%,")&/ '$"&1$*5 @.$*$ :1(4)9$ !1(,"9 C6?===
0.)390!1$ :3!0$* :$1 /$!1? 9,1)"# C?7== .(,1*5 L2 %!"!#$%$"& 0(%%)&&$$* -$1$ &(
0.!1#$ J6 :$1 .(,1 2(1 &.$*$ !0&)4)&)$*? &.)* -(,39 0(*& !" !99)&)("!3 J<B?===? (1 !&
JCC :$1 .(,1 J<=6?B==5

65C '(%%,")&/ O$4$3(:%$"& P,"9

@( %)&)#!&$ !#!)"*& &.$ 1)*; &.!& )2 &.$ $N)*&)"# '(,"0)3 :(3)0/ -$1$ &( +$ 9)*Q!::3)$9?
&.$ )%:3$%$"&!&)(" (2 0.!1#)"# +/  !"!#$%$"& '(%%)&&$$* -)&.)" 0(%%,")&/
0$"&1$* 0(,39 %!;$ 0.)390!1$ :1(4)*)(" ,"*,*&!)"!+3$? )& .!* +$$" *,##$*&$9 &.!& !
'(%%,")&/ O$4$3(:%$"& P,"9 0(,39 +$ *$& ,:5 @.)* 2,"9 -(,39 +$ !4!)3!+3$ 2(1
"("Q:1(2)&%!;)"# 1$#)*&$1$9 0.)390!1$ !"9 :1$Q*0.((3 :1(4)9$1* &( !::3/ 2(1 2,"9)"#
&( .$3: *,+*)9)*$ 0.!1#$* )%:3$%$"&$9 +/  !"!#$%$"& '(%%)&&$$*5 8& &.$
P)"!"0$ !"9 R$*(,10$* '(%%)&&$$ (" <B S,"$ 7=<<? )& -!* *,##$*&$9 &.!& &.$
4!3,$ (2 *,0. ! 2,"9 -(,39 +$ J6=?===5

@.$1$ -(,39 !3*( +$ ! 0(*& &( &.$ *$14)0$ )" :1(%(&)"# !"9 !9%)")*&$1)"# *,0. !
2,"9? -.)0. )* "(& +,9#$&$9 2(15

L2 %$%+$1* -)*.$9 &( :,1*,$ &.$ )%:3$%$"&!&)(" (2 *,0. ! '(%%,")&/
O$4$3(:%$"& P,"9? #)4$" &.!& &.$1$ )* "( +,9#$& !4!)3!+3$ -)&.)" &.$ T9,0!&)("
',3&,1$ !"9 U:(1& *$14)0$? )& -(,39 +$ 1$0(%%$"9$9 &.!& &.)* 1$:(1& +$ 1$%)&&$9 &(
&.$ P)"!"0$ !"9 R$*(,10$* '(%%)&&$$ -)&. ! 1$0(%%$"9!&)(" &.!& &.$ 2,"9)"# 2(1
&.)* 9$4$3(:%$"& 2,"9 +$ *(,10$9 21(% !" !#1$$9 !3&$1"!&)4$ +,9#$&5 L2 !::1(4$9?
(22)0$1* -(,39 &.$" *$$; &( 9$4$3(: 01)&$1)! !"9 !" (:$1!&)("!3 */*&$% 2(1 &.$
$V,)&!+3$ 9)*+,1*!3 (2 &.)* 2,"9 -.)3$ :1)(1)&)*)"# !1$!* (2 #1$!&$*& "$$95

W)4$" &.$ 0(%:3$N)&)$* (2 )%:3$%$"&)"# *,0. ! */*&$% !"9 &.$ 3);$3).((9 &.!& &.$
2,"9 -(,39 +$ (4$1*,+*01)+$9? (22)0$1* -(,39 1$0(%%$"9 &.!& &.$ 0,11$"& :(3)0)$*

Page 48



 !"#$% &' (")*+)#'%, -!+(! -"#$% .$$"- (#//')* 0/"1+ +") *" (")*+)#' -+*! )"
.%%+*+").$ (" * 2

 ! "#$%&'

3!+ /'0"/* /'$.*' *" *!' 4"5&+)'% 4"55#)+*6 7$.) .)% 8+)9$' :#*("5'
;9/''5')* . <"$$"- =

( 7'"0$' "< .$$ .9' *.>' .) .(*+1' 0./* +) *!'+/ "-) $'./)+)9 *" .(!+'1' *!'+/ <#$$
0"*')*+.$ ?'./)+)9 .)% */.+)+)9 + .00/"0/+.*' .)% .(('  +&$' *" $'./)'/@ )''% 

( 4!+$%/') .)% 6"#)9 0'"0$' .(('  0" +*+1' $'./)+)9 ')1+/")5')* .)% %'1'$"0
*!'+/  >+$$ , (")<+%')(' .)%  '$< ' *''5 *" *!' <#$$' * 0"*')*+.$

( 4!+$%/'), 6"#)9 0'"0$' .)% *!'+/ <.5+$+' A(./'/ ./' +)1"$1'% +) %'(+ +") *!.*
.<<'(* *!'52 3!'+/ 1"+(' !'./% .)% *!'6 0$.6 .) .(*+1' .)% /' 0") +&$' /"$' +)
*!'+/ ("55#)+*+' 

( 4!+$%/')@ $'./)+)9 .)% '%#(.*+").$ .**.+)5')* +) ;&'/%'') + (")*+)#"# $6
 # *.+)'% .)% +50/"1'%

( 8(!""$ $'.1'/ ')*'/ 0" +*+1' %' *+).*+") "< '50$"65')*, */.+)+)9 "/ <#/*!'/ .)%
!+9!'/ '%#(.*+") -+*! . <"(# ") .)%  #00"/* <"/ 6"#)9 0'"0$' -!" /'B#+/' C"/'
4!"+(' .)% C"/' 4!.)(' 

( 4!+$%/') .)% 6"#)9 0'"0$' .(*+1'$6 0./*+(+0.*' +) *!'+/ ("55#)+*+' .)% !.1'
"0*+5#5 +)1"$1'5')* +) %'(+ +") 5.>+)9

( ;$$ (!+$%/'), 6"#)9 0'"0$' .)% *!'+/ <.5+$+' !.1' .(('  *" !+9! B#.$+*6  '/1+(' 
-!') /'B#+/'% .)%  '/1+(' 0/"1+%' *+5'$6, 0/"0"/*+").*' .)% .00/"0/+.*'
/' 0") ' *!.* 5''*+)9 *!' )''% "< (!+$%/') .)% 6"#)9 0'"0$' -+*!+) D'**+)9 +*
E+9!* <"/ F1'/6 4!+$%, GDHEIF4J /'B#+/'5')* 

( H50/"1' *!' B#.$+*6 "< $+<' +) "#/ 5" * %'0/+1'% ./'. 
( 4+*+K') ./' +)(/'. +)9$6 5"/' .(*+1' +) *!'+/ ("55#)+*+' /'9./%$'  "< .9',

9')%'/,  'L#.$ "/+')*.*+"), '*!)+( "/+9+), -!'/' *!'6 $+1', %+ .&+$+*6 "/
<.+*!A/'$+9+")A&'$+'< .)% (")*/+&#*' *" M.(*+1' (+*+K') !+0@

( N'1'$"0 0.*!-.6 *" 0./*+(+0.*+") -!+(! ')!.)(' *!' %+1'/ +*6 "< $"(.$
/'0/' ')*.*+") .* .)% ')9.9'5')* -+*! /'9+").$, ).*+").$ .)% +)*'/).*+").$ ./* ,
!'/+*.9' .)%  0"/*+)9 '1')* 

( :#/ 0#&$+(  '/1+(' ./' (") + *')*$6 !+9! B#.$+*6, (")*+)#.$$6 +50/"1+)9, '<<+(+')*
.)% /' 0") +1' *" $"(.$ 0'"0$'@ )''% 

7#&$+( O 3!+ /'0"/* -+$$ &' "< +)*'/' * *" *!' 0#&$+(, . *!' /'("55')%.*+") -+$$
+50.(* ")  '/1+(' %'$+1'/'% *!/"#9!"#* *!' (+*62

)! *%&+,-./01 $%$2-3

PQARAPP I+).)(' S E' "#/(' 4"55+**'', T.+5!+$$ 4"55#)+*6 I.(+$+*+' O U0%.*'
") 7/"9/'  "< C.).9'5')* ;9/''5')*

4! -2$.-' %/'5.- 12'%"63

D.+$ V""%("(>
8'/1+(' C.).9'/ 4"55#)+*+' 
9-""%("(>W.&'/%'')(+*629"12#>
XPYYZ [YYQ\Y

Page 49



 !"#!$"% &' ()"#*""+ ,$-. /01.2#&34 5"+- ,&6-6 7 8"4-"9)"# :;<<

 !"#$ %&'( %#')(! "*
+(,,-".,

/",0 $(!
+(,,-".

1..#&2
/",0

%" "*
/3-24!(.
5(6-,0(!(4 0"
/&!( *"!

144-0-".&2
7.*"!'&0-".

,&993+$-.
/01.2#&34 (

= /01.2#&34
< (*9$+
< 5$6$+2 =>6

?@@ /01.2#&34
?:AB=; &-C"#

?AAA; :; 4"# 6"66$&+ =D $+E#"16" "1EC
."1#B

,&993+$-.
/01.2#&34 F

G ?<G ?::G; :: 4"# 6"66$&+ H663"6 16
,&993+$-.
,"+-#" C16 &!"#
?IIJ $+ )1+JB

/01.2#&34 , = /01.2#&34 ?<ABG< ?@KA: <G 4"# 6"66$&+

/01.2#&34 L M /01.2#&34
< (*9$+

?MB=; ?:G;; :< 4"# 6"66$&+

/01.2#&34 N @ /01.2#&34 ?<<B:; ?<@GG :; 4"# 6"66$&+ M;4 4"# EC$0* 4"#
6"66$&+O )16"*
&+ <K EC$0*#"+

/01.2#&34 P @ /01.2#&34 ?= ?K;; :; 4"# 6"66$&+

/01.2#&34 Q = /01.2#&34 ?:K ?=MA: :G 4"# 6"66$&+

R3#6"#. S ?K;;;; /#$!1-" R3#6"#.

/01.2#&34 H G /01.2#&34
< (*9$+

?IB=;
/01.2#&34
?:;
(*9$+T,0"1+$+2

?:@:; :; 4"# 6"66$&+

/01.2#&34 U <;
/01.2#&34

?<; ?G;;; :<

Q#&34 V @ /01.2#&34 ?<; ?<:;; :<

/01.2#&34 W = /01.2#&34 ?<A ?@K;; :<

/0"16" '$+* 1)&!" $+'&#91-$&+ '#&9 6&9" &' -C" /01.2#&346 %$-C$+ ()"#*""+ ,$-. %$-C #"21#*6 -&
-C"$# 1!"#12" #"+- E&6-6B

XC"#" 1#" 1 +39)"# &' '1E-&#6 1''"E-$+2 -C" '$+1+E$10 6-1)$0$-. &' 401. 2#&346B XC"6" $+E03*"Y

 L3" -& -C" E3##"+- '$+1+E$10 E0$91-" 91+. 41#"+-6 *& +&- C1!" -C" *$64&61)0" $+E&9" -&
E&+-#$)3-" -& '3+*#1$6$+2 !"+-3#"6 401++"* -& )3. #"6&3#E"6 1+* E&!"# #"+-6B

 XC" $+E#"16" $+ 9$+$939 6-1'' Z310$'$E1-$&+6 C16 0"* -& "940&.""6 )"$+2 41$* 1 '1# C$2C"#
#1-" &' 41. -C1+ "!"# )"'&#"B

F3- -C" 91$+ %&##. '&# 9&6- &' -C"6" 2#&346 $6 $+E#"16$+2 #"+- E&6-6B

(41#- '#&9 6-1'' %12" E&6-6O #"+- $6 -C" 01#2"6- &3-2&$+2 -& -C"6" 2#&346B ,3##"+-0. 100 &' -C" 1)&!"
2#&346 1440. '&# 1 2#1+- -C#&32C -C" 8//( '#&9 -C" ()"#*""+ N1#0. ["1#6 1+* ,C$0*E1#" /1#-+"#6C$4B

Page 50



 !"#!$"% &' ()"#*""+ ,$-. /01.2#&34 5"+- ,&6-6 7 8"4-"9)"# :;<<

=>$6 $6 '&# )"-%""+ ?<;;; 1+* ?:;;; 1+* 2&"6 *$#"@-0. -&%1#*6 #"+-A6-1''$+2 @&6-6B C$->&3- ->$6
->"6" 2#&346 %&30* @3##"+-0. )" #3++$+2 1- 1 *"'$@$-B

(6 @1+ )" 6""+ '#&9 ->" 1)&!" $+'&#91-$&+ ->"#" $6 1 >32" !1#$1-$&+ $+ #"+- @>1#2"6D @3##"+-0.
#1+2$+2 '#&9 ?E 7 ?FF 4"# 6"66$&+B

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 
COMMITTEE    Education, Culture and Sport    
 
DATE      24 November 2011  
 
DIRECTOR     Annette Bruton  
 
TITLE OF REPORT   Community Centres 
 
REPORT NUMBER:   ECS/11/071 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

This report provides an update on the progress towards the move of Community 
Learning Centres to leased centre status. 
 
The report specifically provides feedback on the following decisions taken at the 
Education, Culture & Sport Committee on 15 September 2011: 
 

• Rosemount Community Centre – an update on progress with a range of 
organisations about potentially being based in this facility; 

• Hillylands Youth Centre – information about Mastrick Young People’s 
Project; 

• Management Agreement, Constitution and Lease – feedback on progress in 
relation to the decision taken to continue negotiations on these legal 
documents with Management Committees, in consultation with the 
Conveners and Vice Conveners of Education, Culture and Sport; Finance 
and Resources; and Corporate Policy and Performance; 

• Insurance – the outcome of further investigations regarding the provision of 
more comprehensive cover for members of the Community Centre 
Management Committees including volunteers, including financial 
implications. 

 
The report also brings to the attention of members correspondence from the 
Management Committee of Pittodrie Community Centre; a proposal from SHMU 
regarding the management of Tilly Youth Project; recommendations about janitorial 
cover in community schools; and seeks agreement from the Committee on how a 
decision taken by Finance and Resources Committee on 29 September 2011 about 
introducing a “Residents Pass” on the accord card can be implemented in relation 
to the use of community centres. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 

It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

a. Note that Officers will refer the Centre at Hillylands to the Corporate Asset 
Group  as surplus to the requirements of the Education, Culture and Sport 

Agenda Item 6.3

Page 53



 

 

Service. This is in accordance with the new Surplus Property Procedure as 
approved at the meeting of the Finance and Resources Committee on 29 
September 2011. 

 
b. Agree that Loirston Community Wing ceases operating formally as a 

community centre and instead be managed by the school for school and 
community use as required, with bookings being administered through the 
bookings and lettings team. 

 
c. Note the ongoing work in relation to Rosemount Community Centre.  

 
d. Declare Pittodrie Community Centre surplus to the requirements of the 

Education, Culture and Sport Service, and refer this matter to the Corporate 
Asset Group. 

 
e. Instruct officers to continue to progress negotiations with Station House 

Media Unit with a view to them managing the operation of the Tilly Youth 
Project. 

 
f. Instruct officers to complete the negotiations with community centre 

representatives to finalise the management agreement, lease and model 
constitution and to report back to the next committee meeting on 23 February 
2012. 

 
g. Agree whether they would wish to include Community Centres into the 

decision of the Finance and Resources Committee that a “Residents Pass” 
be introduced to the Accord Card, that would permit discounted local access 
to Community Centres. If so, to confirm whether they would wish a standard 
discount (i.e. 10%) to apply across all community centres, or require each 
community centre to set their own discount, and to instruct officers to include 
this requirement within the relevant legal agreements between the Council 
and Management Committees. 

 
h. Agree that Council activities in community school and 3Rs facilities outwith 

core hours are supported via the 10,000 floating hours for 3Rs facilities and 
spare janitorial hours resulting from the cessation of janitorial cover within 
standalone facilities for community school facilities as per section 5.6. 

 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
3.1  Budget Position 

The Council decision on 10 February 2011 was to reduce the budget for an 
Integrated Communities team by £1.6million in 2011/12 and by £2.4million in 
2012/13. At the current time, the service is on target to deliver within the available 
budget for 2011/12 and projected budget for 2012/13. 

 
3.2 Fixed building costs 

Annual revenue costs, for existing and proposed leased centres is approximately 
£2.6million per year. (This figure does not include development grants, repayment 
charges, and other services costs). 

 

Page 54



 

 

3.3 Grants for leased centres 
Leased centres currently receive an annual development grant of £10,565 per 
annum. To assist Management Committees of centres which are to become leased, 
the Education, Culture and Sport Committee approved a transition grant to be made 
available to these committees based on a pro-rata equivalent of the maximum 
development grant.  

 
3.4  Pittodrie Community Centre 

Pittodrie Community Centre has an annual revenue budget of approximately 
£8,500. Officers recommend that this property is declared surplus to the 
requirements of Education, Culture and Sport and once the associated revenue 
costs are not required for this building, this budget will be used for youth 
development and adult learning activities in the local area. 

 
3.5  Arts Development 

The proposal would see the arts development and arts education teams relocate 
from current offices at AECC Balgownie 1. Arts Development has a budget of 
£16,648.00 including repairs and maintenance associated with the former venue, 
WhiteSpace.  Should the move to Rosemount present the most viable option for the 
future of the services, for the duration of that relocation, the budget requires to be 
retained to support the delivery of related activities in the centre. It is highlighted 
that there is no capital funding available from the sale of Frederick Street to support 
the move of the Arts Development Service from Whitespace to Rosemount 
Community Centre. 

 
3.6  Following the Public Pound 

The provision of Community Centres by the Council represents a considerable 
value to the public purse (approximately £3.3million per year). The public costs in 
providing these centres includes the buildings costs such as repairs and energy 
costs that are covered by the Council, as well as the annual Development Grant. 
Effective governance requires councils to ensure that funds and resources provided 
to arms-length organisations are used for the purpose intended. Audit Scotland 
highlights in their 2004 report, that the true cost of funding may exceed the value of 
the funds transferred to the arms length organisation. 

 
Guidance on ‘Following the Public Pound’ is available from Audit Scotland, and the 
Council has recently approved its revised ‘Following the Public Pound’ policy. 
Following the public pound means ensuring that there is proper accountability for 
public funds used in delivering services, irrespective of the means of service 
delivery. In their 2004 report, Audit Scotland note that in many cases councils rely 
heavily on audited accounts and annual report submitted by arms length 
organisations as the main monitoring mechanism, but state that these are of limited 
use in monitoring the overall performance of funded organisations, and that as well 
as financial information, non-financial measures are necessary to ensure that 
specified results are being achieved and that the quality of service is in line with the 
funding agreement. 

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1  Property Implications 
 

Page 55



 

 

There are 27 community centre properties owned by Aberdeen City Council and 
previously managed by Community Learning and Development to deliver 
community learning and development activities. Work is ongoing to move these 
facilities to a “leased” centre type model.  

 
4.2  Legal Implications 
  
4.3.1  Management Committees require to have a constitution in place and Council 

officers have prepared a model constitution to assist in this process. 
 

4.3.2 The relationship between the Management Committees and the Council will be 
managed via a Lease in relation to the responsibilities in relation to the building 
(stand alone centres only), and a Management Agreement setting out the 
responsibilities in relation to the services that are being delivered from the 
community centre in return for the use of the premises and the development grant 
(for all centres.) 

 
4.3.3 Running a community centre puts community individuals in a position of power and 

authority. While this is desirable in terms of ensuring that local decisions are taken 
by local people, there are examples, both locally, nationally and internationally, 
where this opportunity has been abused by individuals and groups of individuals 
with criminal intent. The implications of this may result in community centres being a 
cover for drug dealing, money laundering and child protection issues including 
sexual abuse. 

 
4.3.4 Mitigations require to be developed for a range of legal risks related to the decision 

to move centres to a “leased” centre type model. These include: 
 

• Ensuring appropriate governance arrangements are in place between the 
council and the Management Committee, and between the Management 
Committee and its employees/ volunteers, to protect the interests of the Council, 
Management Committee members, Community Centre staff, and the wider 
community including children and vulnerable adults. 

• Ensuring protections are in place to protect the interests of Management 
Committee members and the wider community in terms of preventing possible 
infiltration by individuals with criminal intent. 

• Ensuring that members of Management Committees are aware of the full range 
of their responsibilities and requirements, particularly in relation to statutory 
legislation. 

 
 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1  Move centres to leased centre status. 
 
5.1.1 There are currently 51 Community Centre type facilities throughout the city which 

are owned by the Council. The current routine costs for servicing these facilities 
amounts to some £2.6million per year (this figure includes £1.1million for 3Rs 
community centres), in addition to this approximately £500,000 per year is spent on 
development grants and a further £200,000 is spent on other costs including capital 
financing costs. Additional costs are incurred in relation to wind and watertight 

Page 56



 

 

repairs. Many of these buildings will require significant repair and maintenance over 
the next 5 – 10 years.  
 

5.1.2 Twenty-four of these centres already operate under a “leased” type model. Some of 
the centres have no lease in place, one operates under a letter of comfort, and the 
other existing leases are dated and varied, with many being beyond their initial 
lease term and therefore being renewed on an annual basis under tacit relocation. 
Once a standard lease and Management Agreement is required, these will replace 
the existing leases where these are ready for renewal. 
 

5.1.3 Twenty-seven of these centres are currently classed as Community Learning 
Centres and are in transition towards becoming “leased” type centres. 
 

5.1.4  Rosemount Community Centre 
 
The Rosemount Community Centre is a particularly large and complex building. 
Officers are facilitating discussions with the Management Committee and a number 
of arts organisations currently looking for alternative accommodation. These include 
the City Council’s Arts Development, Arts Education and City Moves teams, and 
Music for You. In addition, the Management Committee have set up a steering 
group, including actively encouraging volunteers who have innovative ideas, and 
exploring opportunities to ensure that the facility reaches its full potential as a local 
and city-wide community, lifelong learning and creative hub.  
 
A draft financial plan has now been prepared, and a detailed business plan is well 
underway. The Management Committee will employ a number of staff to run the 
building, and will oversee a steering group consisting of key stakeholders and users 
to develop the business model. 
 
It is anticipated that the new model will be fully operational by April 2011.  
 
It should be noted that there are a number of capital requirements with the buiding, 
and the Management Committee are currently discussing mechanisms of delivering 
these requirements. To address future requirements, a moderate “sinking fund” 
allowance has been built into the draft financial plan. It is noted that, due to the size 
of the building, Rosemount is more expensive than other more traditional 
community centres for its facility costs. 

 
5.1.5  Hillylands Centre/ Mastrick Young Peoples Project 
 

Further to the closure of the Summerhill Centre in 2010, it had been planned that 
the Mastrick Young People’s project would relocate to a new development at 
Hillylands. Since that time, recent budget decisions have resulted in a significant 
reduction in the number of staff available to deliver the service. In addition, since 
prior to the closure of Summerhill, the focus of planning of local youth activities by 
the Mastrick Young People Committee has reduced, with local youth activities 
primarily being planned and delivered by the Council. This is now being addressed 
through the local Learning Partnership, which includes young people, working 
towards planning the overall youth development activity within the local area. 
 
There are a number of points that require to be taken into consideration when 
deciding whether to progress with a new community youth centre at Hillylands: 

Page 57



 

 

 
• Since the closure of Summerhill, City Wardens have reported little noticeable 

impact in anti-social behaviour in that area of the city. 
• Local residents are against the development, and have compiled a 500 name 

petition supporting their position. 
• Local activists in favour of the project are understood to have compiled a 450 

name petition supporting their position. 
• There are other local community facilities which are suitable for the provision 

of youth work, including Northfield Community Centre, Mastrick Community 
Centre, Cummings Park Flat, Cummings Park Community Centre, 
Sheddocksley Community  Centre, Mastrick Scout Hut, streets, local 
churches, etc  

• “The Box” community facility is currently rented from the Police and this 
facility will has been handed back to the police at the end of October 2011. 

• All Management Committees have been requested to forward their 
requirements for Youth work via the Youth work Team. 

• The recently completed audit on Community Centres has identified that 
Aberdeen funds significantly more Community Centres per head of 
population than our comparators. 

• Revenue funding for this centre is not currently budgeted for. To run the 
centre as a fully staffed youth centre, would cost around £60,000 - £80,000 
per year. The total annual budget for youth work across the whole city is 
£100,000. 

• An alternative option would be to set up a volunteer Management Committee 
who would be responsible for running this facility. A similar approach was 
explored in respect of Tilly Youth Project, however this steering group have 
decided that they would rather than another organisation (SHMU) took 
responsibility for this building. This approach would still require some 
revenue funding (approx £20,000 per year, which is not budgeted for), and 
resource support to set up such an approach. 

• Asset Management are currently marketing the site of the adjacent Burnside 
Centre, and the potential to incorporate the Hillylands Centre site may help 
make this a more attractive proposition for sale.  

• There have been a number of break-ins of the Hillylands building and it is 
anticipated that this site will continue to be a target for vandalism, fire-raising 
and theft while it remains vacant.  

• Performance information shows that there are 64 participants from the 
Northfield/ Mastrick area and 49 participants from the Northfield Academy 
Catchment area involved in youth activities organised by the Communities 
team since April 2011. 

• The delivery of a range of activities are supported by the Active Schools 
team within the Northfield area, these activities include basketball, football, 
netball, touch rugby, curling, tennis, volleyball. These activities seek to be 
sustainable through links to local clubs etc. 

• Annual funding of over £100,000 is provided to the Middlefield Community 
Project which runs weekly youth work sessions during term time; a varied 
range of work for primary school age children during term time and school 
holidays; and the youth flat which is open for 1250 sessions per year for a 
range of age groups; 50 outreach sessions; a residential for 20 young 
people; and 10 youth committee meetings per year. The Middlefield 

Page 58



 

 

Community Project is exploring the potential of extending the reach of the 
initiative to cover the wider Northfield area over the coming year. 

• The Scottish Leavers Destination Report (SLDR) information regarding 
Northfield Academy show that of 144 leavers in 2009/10: 

o 80:6% into positive destinations                     Aberdeen City Average 
86:9% 

o Other Destination 19:4%                                Aberdeen City Average 
13:1%  

o Unemployed seeking work 15:3%                  Aberdeen City Average 
11:1% 

o Unemployed not seeking work  2:8%             Aberdeen City Average  
1:3%  

o % change in positive destinations 4:9% +  
o Total number of school leavers in the city moving into  and remaining 

in a positive destination is 1:7% above the national average 
o There are 16 young people in the Northfield Area considered MCMC 

unemployed  
o Northfield Academys absence  rate for pupils has reduced from 13:4% 

in 2007/08 to 12:8% in 2009/10  
• Benefit Claimant Information 28th September 2011 for Mastrick area show 

that for 17 to 19 yrs, there are 5 male claimants and 0 female claimants.  
 

During the writing of this report, Social Care and Wellbeing (who originally had the 
Hillylands facility within their portfolio), have advised that they may wish to return 
Hillylands to their property portfolio for a joint service development with NHS 
colleagues.  
Given the various risks in relation to leaving a building vacant, and the lack of 
resource within the Communities team to either directly provide a Youth Centre, or 
to facilitate the setting up of a new body to run such a Youth Centre, it is 
recommended that this facility is referred as surplus to the Corporate Asset Group 
to enable consideration for use by other directorates. 

  
 
5.1.6  Pittodrie Community Centre 
 

The Management Committee of Pittodrie Community Centre have formally indicated 
to the Council that they wish to end their current occupation of the building as of 31 
December 2011.  
 
The current programme of Pittodrie Community Centre is minimal, and there are a 
range of other community opportunities within the local area. These include: Seaton 
Community Centre within Seaton 3Rs School, Seaton Centre on School Road, 
Aberdeen Sports Village, Golf Club Houses. 
 
The recently completed audit on Community Centres has identified that Aberdeen 
funds significantly more Community Centres per head of population than our 
comparators. 
 
With the above in mind, it is recommended that this property is not retained as a 
Community Centre, but is declared surplus to the requirements of the Education, 
Culture and Sport service. It is understood that this building may be attractive to a 
number of potential operators as a commercial entity. Given the specific needs of 

Page 59



 

 

the local community, it is recommended that the associated building costs are 
redirected towards providing identified youth and adult learning, development and 
diversionary activities within that local area. 

 
5.1.7 Tilly Youth Project 

 
A proposal has been received from Station House Media Unit for them to manage 
and run the Tilly Youth Project building. Through this proposal, SHMU would run a 
comprehensive programme during office hours and potentially at weekends, and 
the centre would be available for youth work during the evenings. This would 
include SHMU taking on Head of Establishment responsibilities for the building 
including staffing and cleaning it. In return the Council would pay for energy costs, 
telephone rental and wind and water tight repairs. There would be no development 
grant payable by the Council. 
 
The local steering group are supportive of this proposal, and it is recommended that 
officers continue negotiations with SHMU will a view to developing formal legal 
agreements covering this arrangement. 

 
5.1.8 Loirston Community Wing 
 

At the Education, Culture and Sport Committee on 15 September 2011, the 
recommendation that Loirston Community Wing would “cease operating formally as 
a community centre and instead to be managed by the school for school and 
community use as required” was agreed in the interim, and officer instructed to 
consult with the Loirston Annex Steering Group on the future management of the 
community wing.  
 
This consultation took place with the Loirston Annex steering group during their 
meeting on 27 October, and the Steering Committee agreed that they wished the 
status quo situation to continue in the meantime, with the longer term proposal 
being considered a future elected Management Committee for Loirston Annex, who 
could then enter into negotiation with the Head Teacher of the Primary School. 
 
The current situation is that the Head Teacher is Head of Establishment, and 
bookings are managed through the Bookings and Lettings system. 

 
5.2  Model Lease, Management Agreement and Constitution  
 

There has been a significant piece of work over the last few years to develop a 
standard lease and management agreement for all leased centres that meets the 
requirements of the Council and is acceptable to Management Committees. A 
standard set of agreements is required in order to deal with the current situation 
whereby different types of arrangement have led to an inequitable situation between 
centres. 
 
At the Education, Culture & Sport Committee on 15 September 2011, officers were 
instructed to continue negotiations on these legal documents with Management 
Committees, in consultation with the Conveners and Vice Conveners of Education, 
Culture and Sport; Finance and Resources; and Corporate Policy and Performance. 
It is recommended that legal agreements are developed that can: 
 

Page 60



 

 

• Protect the interests of the Council 
• Protect the interests of Management Committee members 
• Protect the interests of staff employed by the Management Committee 
• Protect the interests of individuals within the community including children 

and vulnerable adults. 
• Prevent possible infiltration by individuals with criminal intent 
• Be clear about what is required to be delivered by the Management 

Committee in return for the significant public investment. 
 
Following the consultation evening held at Mile End Community Centre on 22 
September, the Convenor of the Education Culture and Sport Committee has 
convened a working group with representatives of community centres to finalise the 
negotiations. 
This work is ongoing, officers will report back to the next committee with the final 
draft of the management agreement, lease and model constitution. 

 
5.3 Community Learning and Development Activities  
 
5.3.1  Education Scotland ( Formerly HMIE ) 
 

A recent Education Scotland follow up inspection was carried out within the Harlaw 
ASG. Initial feedback provided as part of the inspection confirmed that the service 
was travelling in a positive direction. The full report, which will be published on 22 
November,  will be brought to the attention of the committee. 

 
5.4   Insurance 
 

The Education, Culture and Sport Committee on 15 September 2011, agreed to 
“instruct officers to carry out further investigations regarding the provision of more 
comprehensive indemnity insurance cover for members of the community centre 
management committees including volunteers, including financial implications, and 
to report back to the November meeting of the committee on the outcome.” 
 
The Council’s Insurance Officer has advised that it would be possible for 
management committee's to join the Councils “Community Council insurance 
scheme” and this would provide the following: 
  

• All Risks cover for records, books and stationary £250 per Council 
• Computer Cover    £1,000 per Council 
• Money Cover    This section provides cover for loss of 

money in transit and in the premises etc. 
• Public Liability   Limit of indemnity £5M 
• Employers Liability   Limit of Indemnity £10M 
• Libel & Slander   Sum insured £100,000 
• Fidelity Guarantee   All employees covered £2,500 
• Personal Accident   Provides various cover in the event of 

accident or assault. 
  

 
While the scheme (as above) that is available to Management Committees is fairly 
comprehensive, it is not however a belt and braces insurance solution 

Page 61



 

 

to all circumstances. For example, it does not provide cover such as trustee 
indemnity insurance.  Officers understand that it would be ultra-vires for the Council 
to buy such insurance for any of its employees who happen to be sitting on boards 
of any external organisations.   
 
Officers have investigated the issue on behalf of the community centre 
management committees and found a national broker who specialises in "not for 
profit" insurance cover and who would be able to provide a tailored service if any of 
the management committee's wanted to take this further. This broker uses Zurich 
Municipal as the main underwriter who would cover the risks.  
 

5.5  Accord Card – Citizens Roll Out 
 

At their meeting of 29 September 2011, the Finance and Resources Committee 
approved that the Accord Card would be utilised to implement a “Residents 
Discount Scheme with Visitor “buy in”. This option is described as a “city/leisure” 
discount pass that is available to residents free of charge with visitors charged a fee 
payable to have access to the scheme. In Aberdeen, residents could have this pass 
on their Accord/ National Entitlement Card and non residents could be issued with a 
“visitors” smartcard that carried the pass. 
 
If members wish this scheme to be applicable within community centres, there are a 
number of implications that need to be considered: 
 

• The requirement for Management Committees to implement this policy 
decision would require a section in the Management Agreement covering this 
requirement.   

 
• Additional technical equipment would be required for community centres 

including a card reader(s) and potentially a netbook(s) (where there are no 
PCs in place.) The cost per centre for this equipment would be £80 for a card 
reader and £200 for a netbook (depending on whether centres already had 
suitable PCs.) It is understood that these costs would be covered within an 
Accord budget approved by the Finance and Resources Committee. 

 
• In order to implement this, Management Committees would need to comply 

with the Consumer Protection From Unfair Trading Regulations 2008. In 
order to implement this discount, the Management Committee would either 
have to bear the cost of the discount offered, or increase the standard 
charge, in order to be able to provide a discount that minimised the impact 
on their revenue budgets. 

 
• Some members of the community who use community centres may not wish 

to apply for or hold an Accord* Card. A decision to implement this scheme in 
Community Centres may result in these members of the community being 
financially disadvantaged. 

 
*it should be noted that Accord cards are provided free of charge to residents 
and can be applied for at a range of Council offices throughout the City. 

 

Page 62



 

 

Members are asked to agree whether they wish this scheme to be implemented in 
community centres, and if so, whether they would wish a standard discount (i.e. 
10%) to apply across all community centres, or require each community centre to 
set their own discount. 

 
5.6  Janitorial Cover 
 

Currently janitorial cover is provided within all 3Rs schools during core hours, and is 
provided in most Community Education Centres.  
 
As the centres that are standalone become leased, it is intended that janitorial cover 
ceases to be provided by the Council, but is provided by Management Committees. 
This will therefore represent a saving to the Council in terms of a set number of 
janitorial hours that are no longer required for these centres. 
 
For centres that are part of 3Rs schools, the Council is contractually obliged to use 
the janitorial cover provided by Robertsons at an agreed fee out of the core hours. 
As part of this contract, there are 10,000 floating hours available without charge 
across the city. 
 
For centres that are part of community schools, janitorial cover is also currently 
provided during core hours (note that these core hours may vary from centre to 
centre. It is recommended that an equitable system may be to implement a similar 
system to that which will be required for community facilities within 3Rs schools, i.e. 
to require Management Committees to pay an hourly charge to the Council to cover 
janitorial cover out-with core hours.  
 
As some of the community centres within schools cannot clearly be physically 
separated from the school itself, for example Dyce Community Centre, the 
implications of not requiring council janitorial support for the operation of these 
facilities (either throughout the entire operating programme, or just outwith the core 
hours) would be as follows: 
  

• There may be serious child protection/ health and safety issues if a school/ 
community centre is not properly cleared when the community centre 
closed and a member of the public with ill intent were to hide within the 
school facility overnight. 

• There may be disagreement about who would be responsible for the 
replenishment of consumables in toilets etc. 

• There may be data protection issues as members and staff of the 
Management Committee may require to have access to school offices. 

   
If the Council agreed to accept the above risks, it would be possible to have a 2 tier 
system in place, whereby Community Schools were treated differently from 3Rs 
Community facilities, however feedback at earlier Community Learning Forum 
Meetings indicated that this would not be seen as equitable by Management 
Committees. 
  
Some activities are required by the Council to take place in local community 
facilities, often those attached to schools. These activities include Councillor 
surgeries, Parent Council meetings etc. To ensure that these activities do not 
represent an unfair burden to local management committees, it is recommended 

Page 63



 

 

that the janitorial cost for these Council activities are funded by the Council as 
follows: 
 

• Activities in 3Rs community facilities – to be delivered via the 10,000 floating 
hours available.  

• Activities in community schools – to be funded through the set number of 
janitorial hours that are no longer required for stand alone community 
facilities. 

 
If the Management Committee has other activities on in the centre at the same time 
as a Council activity, the Management Committee will not be charged for this period 
of out of core hours use.  
 
While the recommended proposal would require Management Committees in 
school to pay approx. £20.00 per hour for use out of core time, unlike stand-alone 
centres they will not have to employ a cleaner or caretaker and will not incur 
cleaning and disposables costs (such as toilet rolls and paper towels). 

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

This report relates to the Combined Community Plan and Single Outcome 
Agreement as follows: 
 
- People of all ages take an active part in their own learning to achieve their full 

potential Learning and training is appropriate and accessible to learner’s needs 
- Children and young people access positive learning environments and develop 

their skills, confidence and self esteem to the fullest potential  
- Children, young people and their families/carers are involved in decisions that 

affect them.  Their voices heard and they play an active and responsible role in 
their communities 

- Educational attainment in Aberdeen is continuously sustained and improved  
- School leavers enter positive destination of employment, training or further and 

higher education with a focus on and support for young people who require More 
Choices and More Chances 

- Children and young people actively participate in their communities and have 
optimum involvement in decision making 

- All children, young people and their families have access to high quality services 
when required and services provide timely, proportionate and appropriate 
response that meeting the needs of children and young people within Getting it 
Right for Every Child, (GIRFEC) requirements  

- Improve the quality of life in our most deprived areas 
- Citizens are increasingly more active in their communities regardless of age, 

gender, sexual orientation, ethnic origin, where they live, disability or 
faith/religion/belief and contribute to ‘active citizenship’ 

- Develop pathways to participation which enhance the diversity of local 
representation at and engagement with regional, national and international arts, 
heritage and sporting events 

- Our public services are consistently high quality, continually improving, efficient 
and responsive to local people’s needs 

 

Page 64



 

 

Public – This report will be of interest to the public, as the recommendations will 
impact on services delivered throughout the city. 
 
An Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment has been completed in respect 
of this budget decision. 

 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

15/9/11 Education, Culture & Sport Committee, Update on Implementation of 
Budget Decision - Reduce Communities Team 
17/6/11 Finance & Resources Committee, Kaimhill Community Facilities – Update 
on Progress of Management Agreement 
2/6/11 Education, Culture & Sport Committee, Update on Implementation of Budget 
Decision - Reduce Communities Team 
24/3/11 Education, Culture & Sport Committee, Implementation of Budget Decision 
– Reduce Communities Team 

 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Gail Woodcock 
Service Manager Communities 
gwoodcock@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 522732 

 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
COMMITTEE:  Education, Culture and Sport 
 
DATE:    24th November 2011    
 
DIRECTOR:   Annette Bruton 
    
TITLE OF REPORT: Sports Grants   
 
REPORT NUMBER: ECS/11/068  
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report brings before the Committee an application for financial assistance 
from two sports organisations and makes recommendations for these 
applications. 
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
(i) That the Committee considers these applications and approves the following 
recommendation: 
 
Aberdeen Amateur Athletics Club £4,000 

Aberdeen Schools Shinty Club £560 

London  2012 Pre-Games Training Camp – Cameroon £15,000 
 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The sports grants budget for the 2011/12 financial year is £103,448. Assuming 
that the recommendation is approved there will be £41,545 remaining in this 
budget.  
 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Local sports groups and organisations adopt a variety of methods to attract 
funding, however some groups would be unable to host an event or develop 
further without the financial assistance available from the City Council. Groups 
who do not meet the criteria will be assisted by officers to source alternative 
solutions.  
 
 

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 67



 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

The Financial Assistance budget for 2011/12 has been set by the Council at  
£103,448. Sports Grants application forms and guidelines are available on the 
Aberdeen City Council website. These documents are also available in hard copy 
upon request.  
 
The grant criteria is directly linked to the five key objectives of “Fit for the Future” 
the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy for Aberdeen (2009-2015). Applications 
are assessed against the criteria and recommendations made for Committee 
approval. 
 
5.1 Aberdeen Amateur Athletics Club 
 
Aberdeen Amateur Athletics Club (Aberdeen AAC) are working with 
scottishathletics to develop and implement a ‘club together’ partnership project.  
The club has a vision that falls in line with the National Strategy for Athletics in 
Scotland, to increase the number of citizens in Aberdeen participating in athletics 
and to improve the performance of athletes in the City with talent and aptitude to 
do so.  
 
The current membership of Aberdeen AAC is 279 members and for the duration 
of this project they intend to double this, ensuring that the club plays a greater 
role in broadening community participation and creating pathways to excellence. 
 
The main outcomes of the project are to: 
 
• Promote and increase opportunities for everyone in Aberdeen to participate in 

athletics no matter what their age, ability or background  
• The project will identify and remove barriers to participation in ‘hard to reach’ 

groups and increase participation in these groups as well as supporting the 
delivery of other social targets 

• The project will develop and sustain volunteer and athlete pathways that will 
nurture local to Regional and National athletics representatives as well as 
helping everyone reach their full potential 

• Work in partnership to improve the standard of coaching and volunteering 
within the City with a specific impact in athletics 

• The Club (through the project) will develop relationships with various national 
partners to promote Aberdeen Sports Village as a host to various national 
competitions with a priority on the International Celtic Games in 2012 

• Work together to maximise available funding and resource opportunities (The 
Club, Aberdeen City Council, Aberdeen Sports Village, scottishathletics and 
other local partners e.g. education) 

 
The purpose of this funding request is to allow the operational delivery of this 
partnership project over a two-year period, against which a further application will 
be presented to Committee. In 2012 –13 the estimated value of this future 
commitment is £3,500 should the grant be awarded. Aberdeen AAC will be one 
of fifteen pilot clubs in Scotland and already demonstrate a willingness to 
develop and a readiness to embrace change. Scottishathletics and Aberdeen 
Amateur Athletics Club will jointly fund the appointment of a part time club 
development officer with the grant from Aberdeen City Council being used to 

Page 68



 

support the operational implementation of this project, by up-skilling new and 
existing coaches and volunteers.  
 

Funding Requested Funding Recommended 
 

£4,000 £4,000 
 
 
5.2 Aberdeen Schools Shinty Club 
 
Aberdeen Schools Shinty Club is a newly constituted club which aims to provide 
more opportunities for children and young people to participate in Shinty 
following the Sutherland Cup final which took place at Kings College in July 
2011.  
 
The club meets once a week at Duthie Park where coaching sessions delivered 
by qualified volunteers are available to secondary aged young people. Over the 
next year the club hope to expand by entering an Aberdeen team in the 
Cammanachd Association Development Leagues allowing players to compete 
against young people of a similar age and skill level. 
 
The application received seeks support towards start up funding to allow the club 
to purchase 10 helmets. Helmets are compulsory for all young people under 17 
year of age playing competitive games and matches on the grounds of safety 
and the nature of the competitive game. 
 
 

Funding Requested Funding Recommended 
£1,000 £560 

 
5.3 London 2012 Pre-Games Training Camp – Cameroon 
 
In 2008, the London Organising Committee of the Olympic and Paralympic 
Games (LOCOG) published a list of Pre-Games Training Camp venues, based 
on an audit of elite sporting facilities across the United Kingdom. This identified 
venues in which teams and individuals could choose to prepare for London 2012 
based on strict technical criteria. 
 
These pre game camps are designed to give athletes the opportunity to train and 
acclimatise ahead of the games. Within the list four, first class Aberdeen facilities 
were rightly recognised as accredited venues by LOCOG; Aberdeen Sports 
Village, Denwood Shooting Range, Robert Gordons College and RGU:Sport. 
 
Aberdeen Sports Village and The Robert Gordon University approached 
Aberdeen City Council who jointly held discussions with the Chef de Mission of 
the National Olympic Committee of Cameroon to host the 2012 Cameroon 
Olympic Team in the city. It is envisaged that the delegation, which will be in the 
region of 45 – 60 athletes and support staff (subject to qualification) across ten 
Olympic sports, will be based at the Linksfield Halls of Residence and train at the 
Aberdeen Sports Village and RGU:Sport between the 2nd and 16th July 2012. 
 

Page 69



 

Hosting this pre games training camp will not only raise the profile of the London 
2012 games in Aberdeen but also the profile of Aberdeen in the world through 
sustainable sporting, cultural and economic relationships. In addition alongside 
the direct economic benefit of the training camp, it is likely that the city will benefit 
as the team makes use of local social and leisure facilities and cultural venues. 
 
This funding grant from Aberdeen City Council will contribute to the overall 
budget to host Cameroon and ensure that the visit has an impact and lasting 
legacy within the city. Within the guidance of the Sports Grants it states that 
grants up to £10,000 are available however in exceptional circumstances 
applications over this amount will be considered.  Due to the profile of this 
activity, its international connections and future impact on the city it is felt that 
this application demonstrates an exceptional circumstance and it is therefore 
recommended that this funding amount is agreed. 
 
During the pre games camp it is expected that local communities can experience 
engagement with the Cameroon Olympic athletes and support staff. There will 
also be opportunities from local athletes, coaches, business and school children 
to interact and learn for the international athletes and coaches. Officers will sit on 
and liaise with the Pre Games Working Group to ensure maximum benefit for the 
city is achieved. 
 

Funding Requested Funding Recommended 
£15,000 £15,000 

 
 
6. IMPACT 
 
The report relates to the Arts, Heritage and Sport strand of the Community Plan, 
specifically in relation to the Sports, Leisure and Recreation vision of developing 
Aberdeen as an “Active City”. 
 
The report also links to Vibrant, Dynamic and Forward Looking through Culture, 
Arts and Sport: 
 
• Increase participation in sport, provide support for athletes and reward 

excellence 
• Recognise the contribution of Sport, Culture and Arts to promoting the area 

as a tourist destination 
• Recognise the role of Sport and Arts in tackling anti-social behaviour 
 
Furthermore the report relates closely to the objectives of “Fit for the Future, the 
sport and physical activity strategy for Aberdeen City (2009-2015)”. These 
objectives are: 
 

• Promote and increase opportunities for participation in sport and physical 
activity for everyone in Aberdeen. 

• Provide a comprehensive and high quality range of sports facilities in 
Aberdeen. 

• Maximise social, educational, health and economic benefits of sport and 
physical activity in Aberdeen. 

Page 70



 

• Develop and sustain pathways which nurture local, regional and national 
sporting people to reach their potential.  

• Raise the profile of sport in Aberdeen.  
 
 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Jo Conlon 
Sports Policy and Partnerships Officer 
jconlon@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 523798 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



 

 
Appendix 1 

 
Summary Table of Financial Assistance Sports Awards 2011/12 
 
 
Sports Organisation Funding 

Awarded 
Committee Approval 

Aberdeen Disability Sport £600 
 

Education, Culture & 
Sport  
02/06/11 

City of Aberdeen Gymnastics £2,570 
 

Education, Culture & 
Sport  
02/06/11 

North East of Scotland Lawn Tennis 
Association 

£2,000 
 

Education, Culture & 
Sport  
02/06/11 

Aberdeen Youth Rugby Association £13,000 
 

Education, Culture & 
Sport  
02/06/11 

Scottish Schools Competition 
(Gymnastics) £1,250 

Education, Culture & 
Sport  
02/06/11 

Aberdeen Sports Council £7,000 
Education, Culture & 
Sport  
02/06/11 

The Royal Caledonian Curling Club  
£5,250 

Education, Culture & 
Sport  
02/06/11 

Scottish Ballet £8,453 
Education, Culture & 
Sport  
02/06/11 

Aberdeen Secondary Schools 
Football Association 
 

 
£1,500 

Education, Culture & 
Sport  
15/09/11 

 
Active Schools – Young Ambassadors 

 
£720 

Education, Culture & 
Sport  
15/09/11 

 
Total Grant Funding Awarded to 
date 

 
£42,343 

 

 
Grant Funding Remaining 

 
£61,105 

 
 
 

 

Page 72



 !"#$""% &'() &*+%&',

 !""#$$%% %&'()*+,-.  '/*'01 )-& 23,0*

45$% 67 8,91:;10 6<==

4#>% $!> 5--1**1 ?0'*,-

$#$@% !A >%B!>$ 5;10&11-  +*C  ,'-(+/ D)*10 ")-)E1:1-* B/)-F G3&)*1

>%B!>$ 8G"?%>F % 2H==H<IJ

=K BG>B!2% !A >%B!>$

$L+M 013,0* 30,9+&1M )- '3&)*1 ,N *L1 O,0P (,:3/1*1& ,- *L1 D)*10
")-)E1:1-* B/)- N,0 5;10&11- (+*C. *)P+-E +-*, )((,'-* *L1 &191/,3:1-*
,N *L1 -1O I<: 3,,/ )-& *L1 +:3)(* ,N *L1 ('001-* (/,M'01 ,N $'//,M 3,,/K

6K >% !""%845$#!8Q2R
#* +M 01(,::1-&1& *L)* *L1  ,::+**11F

#K 8,*1 *L1 30,E01MM ,N *L1 D)*10 ")-)E1:1-* B/)- D,0P+-E E0,'3

##K 8,*1 *L1 01M'/*M ,N *L1 N)(+/+*+1M 3/)--+-E :,&1/

###K #-M*0'(* ,NN+(10M *, &191/,3 30,3,M)/M N,0 ) M'M*)+-);/1 M*0)*1EC N,0
*L1 30,9+M+,- ,N MO+::+-E 3,,/M +- *L1 (+*C )M 3)0* ,N *L1 M3,0* )-&
/1+M'01 )MM1* 3/)- O+*L 23,0* 5;10&11-K
$L+M O,0P O+// ;1 (,:3/1*1& +- 3)0*-10ML+3 O+*L *L1 D)*10
")-)E1:1-* D,0P+-E E0,'3. +-(/'&+-E 23,0* 5;10&11-. 2(,**+ML
2O+::+-E. -./01M(,*/)-&. 5;10&11- 23,0*M S+//)E1. /,()/ MO+::+-E
(/';M )-& ,*L10 P1C M*)P1L,/&10MK
$L1 30,3,M)/M O+// ;1 /+-P1& *, *L1 (,'-(+/TO+&1 5MM1* ")-)E1:1-*
2*0)*1ECK

#SK #-M*0'(* ,NN+(10M *, )&&01MM *L1 ('001-* /)(P ,N )((1MM *, ) MO+::+-E
3,,/ +- $,00C )-& *, 019+1O *L1 1U+M*+-E 30,E0)::+-E ,N 3,,/M *, *)P1
)((,'-* ,N *L1 -11&M ,N *L1 (,::'-+*+1M +- 8,0*LN+1/&K $L+M +M *, ;1
'-&10*)P1- *L0,'EL *L1 /1+M'01 )MM1* 3/)- )-& O+// 1U3/,01
,33,0*'-+*+1M O+*L+- *L1 )MM1* 3/)- N,0 M(L,,/MK

VK A#858 #5@ #"B@# 5$#!82

$L+M 1U10(+M1 O+// 30,9+&1 ) /,-ET*10: M*0)*1EC N,0 *L1 M'M*)+-);/1
30,9+M+,- ,N 3,,/M +- 5;10&11-. )M 3)0* ,N *L1 (,'-(+/WM 5MM1* ")-)E1:1-*
B/)-K $L1 -1U* M*)E1 ,N *L1 3/)- O+// 30,9+&1 01(,::1-&)*+,-M OL+(L O+//
+:3)(* ,- ;,*L ()3+*)/ )-& 0191-'1 1U31-&+*'01K

Agenda Item 8.2

Page 73



 !" #$%& '!()$*+ ,!-().! /0#-(1"* #-(.-%00/&. %&* %''", 0%&%."0"&,+
."&"-%," -"1"&)" '%1/&.' ,( 2" -"3/&1"',"* /& ,!" ')',%/&%2$" #-(1/'/(& (4
'5/00/&. #(($' /& ,!" 6/,7+ /&6$)*/&. ,!" 890 #(($:  !" #$%& 5/$$ %**-"''
,!" #-(;"6,"* */'#$%6"0"&, (4 #(($ )'" 4-(0 "</',/&. #(($' ,( ,!" &"5 890
#(($ %&* ,!" -"')$,/&. -"*)6,/(& /& /&6(0":

=: > ?@A BCDEBFG B>HI

 !/' 5(-J 5/$$ 2" $/&J"* ,( ,!" 6()&6/$35/*" G''", C%&%."0"&, I,-%,".7
%&* 5/$$ 2" 6(&,/&)"* 5/,!/& ,!" *"1"$(#0"&, (4 % '#(-, %&* $"/')-" %''",
#$%& 5/,! I#(-, G2"-*""&:

8: KGFLMA>NHOPCGBH BIIN@I

 !" 6()&6/$ /' 6(00/,,"* ,( ,!" 6(&',-)6,/(& (4 ,!" &"5 890 #(($ /&
#%-,&"-'!/# 5/,! ,!" N&/1"-'/,7 (4 G2"-*""& %&*  !"#$'6(,$%&*:  !/'
*"1"$(#0"&, 5/$$ /&6-"%'" %&* /0#-(1" ,!" %Q)%,/6 4%6/$/,/"' /& ,!" 6/,7: B, /'
#-)*"&, /& ,!" 6)--"&, "6(&(0/6 "&1/-(&0"&, ,( -"1/"5 ,!" 6/,75/*" #(($
#-(1/'/(& ,( "&')-" ,!%, 5" !%1" ,!" %##-(#-/%," &)02"- %&* Q)%$/,7 (4
#(($' %1%/$%2$" /& %66"''/2$" $(6%,/(&' %6-('' ,!" 6/,7+ ,( 0"", ,!" &""*'
(4 ()- 6(00)&/,/"' %&* %,!$","' 5/,!/& ,!" %1%/$%2$" 2)*.",:

B: %&''" (""'
G, /,' 0"",/&. (& RS I"#,"02"- T9R9 ,!" 6(00/,,"" %.-""* ,!%, ,!" 4),)-"
(4  )$$(' #(($ 2" 6(&'/*"-"* %' #%-, (4 % 5/*"- 6/,7 ',-%,".7 4(- ,!"
#-(1/'/(& (4 #(($':

 !" ?"%* (4 F(00)&/,/"'+ F)$,)-" %&* I#(-, 6(&1"&"* % 5%,"-
0%&%."0"&, 5(-J/&. .-()# /& #%-,&"-'!/# 5/,!  !"#$'6(,$%&*+ I6(,,/'!
I5/00/&.+ I#(-, G2"-*""&+ G2"-*""& I#(-,' U/$$%."+ -"#-"'"&,%,/1"' (4
$(6%$ %Q)%,/6 6$)2'+ */'%2/$/,7 '#(-, %&* ,!" )&/1"-'/,/"' %&* 6($$".":

BB: (#")#*  

 !" V%,"- C%&%."0"&, 5(-J/&. .-()# 5%' "',%2$/'!"*:

V(-J F(0#$","*W
 I)-1"7 (4 '5/00/&. 6$)2'
 G)*/, (4 #)2$/6 %&* #-/1%," #(($'+ )'%." 27 #)2$/6 %&* 6$)2'
 O%,% 6!"6J/&. %&* %&%$7'/'
 I)-1"7 (4 6(%6!/&. %&* ,-%/&/&. &""*'
 X%6/$/,7 #$%&&/&. 0(*"$ 6(0#$","* 27  !"#$'6(,$%&*

BBB: +,-.'.$.* (',//./) 0"1*'
>& 2"!%$4 (4 G2"-*""& F/,7 F()&6/$+  !"#$'6(,$%&* !%' %''"''"* ,!"
')##$7 (4 %&* ,!" $/J"$7 *"0%&* 4(- '5/00/&. #(($' /& G2"-*""& )'/&. ,!"
X%6/$/,/"' D$%&&/&. C(*"$ YXDCZ:  !"#$'6(,$%&* 2"$/"1"' ,!%, ,!/'
%##-(%6! /' ,!" 0(', -"$"1%&, (&" 4(- #-(1/*/&. .)/*%&6" ,( $(6%$
%),!(-/,/"' /& -"$%,/(& ,( ,!"/- ',%,),(-7 *),7 ,( "&')-" %*"Q)%," #-(1/'/(&
4(- '#(-,' %&* -"6-"%,/(& /& ,!"/- %-"%:

Page 74



 !" #$%&'&(&") *'$++&+, -./"' &) $ (..' (. 01.2&/" $+ .34"%(&2" $))"))5"+(
.6 (!" 1"'$(&.+)!&0 3"(7""+ (!" '&8"'9 /"5$+/ 6.1 )0.1() 6$%&'&(&") &+ $+
$1"$ $+/ (!" $%(:$' ):00'9; <( ($8") &+(. $%%.:+( (!" /&)(1&3:(&.+ .6 (!"
'.%$' 0.0:'$(&.+ $+/ &() /"5.,1$0!&% )(1:%(:1"= :)&+, %"+):) /$($= $) 7"''
$) (!" %$0$%&(9 $+/ $2$&'$3&'&(9 .6 6$%&'&(&") &+ (!" $1"$  !" -./"' 01.2&/")
$+ .34"%(&2" &+0:( (. (!" 0'$++&+, 01.%")) $) $ ,:&/" (. 6.15:'$(&+,
0.'&%&") 6.1 (!" 01.2&)&.+ .6 6$%&'&(&") 3:( &( )!.:'/ +.( 3" :)"/ (. /"("15&+"
0.'&%9 .+ &() .7+;  !" 1"):'() 7&'' 01.2&/" .+" ).:1%" .6 &+6.15$(&.+=
7!&%! %$+ 3" :)"/ 6.1 (!" /"2"'.05"+( .6 )0.1() 6$%&'&(9 )(1$(",&")= 7!&%!
&+ (:1+ 7&'' !"'0 (. /"("15&+" 6:(:1" &+2")(5"+( $+/ 5$+$,"5"+( /"%&)&.+)
6.1 )0.1() 6$%&'&(&") &+ >3"1/""+;

#.:1 1:+) .6 (!" 5./"' 7"1" :+/"1($8"+ 6.1 )7&55&+,;  !")" 1:+)
'..8"/ $( (!" $3&'&(9 .6 (!" 0..') (. )$(&)69 /"5$+/ &+ ?@AA $+/ &+ ?@?A;
 !" 5./"' :)"/ (!" 01.4"%("/ 0.0:'$(&.+ 6.1 ?@?A ($8"+ 61.5 &+6.15$(&.+
01.2&/"/ 39 (!" B"+"1$' C",&)("1) D66&%" 6.1 E%.('$+/;

A; E7&55&+, *..') F %:11"+( 01.2&)&.+ :)&+, ?@AA
0.0:'$(&.+ 6&,:1")= "G%':/&+,  :''.) )7&55&+, 0..'H

?; E7&55&+, *..') F %:11"+( 01.2&)&.+ :)&+, ?@AA
0.0:'$(&.+ 6&,:1")= &+%':/&+,  :''.) )7&55&+, 0..'H

I; E7&55&+, *..') F *1.0.)"/ 01.2&)&.+ J&;"; +"7 K@5 0..'
$+/ +. >3"1/""+ L+&2"1)&(9 *..'M :)&+, ?@?A 0.0:'$(&.+
6&,:1")= "G%':/&+,  :''.) )7&55&+, 0..'H $+/

N; E7&55&+, *..') F *1.0.)"/ 01.2&)&.+ J&" +"7 K@5 0..'
$+/ +. >3"1/""+ L+&2"1)&(9 *..'M :)&+, ?@?A 0.0:'$(&.+
6&,:1")= &+%':/&+,  :''.) )7&55&+, 0..';

 !"#$ %

 !"#$ % & '!($)*+!,$ +$) -.../ 0$( 1$0!21 3 4(5#5*$1 ,!+!,5(6

&'())*+,
-.$/!0$ 123 % 123 4 123 5 123 6

+728 9$/ %:::
9(93

 !"#
$%&'

()
$%&'

(#"!
$%&'

(*
$%&'

)+"#
$%&'

;$) <$8!3= ,!"-+. *!",+. *-",+. *!"-+. *-"-+.

>)*#*+$=
?!9!'*)@ # "!+. )-"/+. )!"/+. (/",+. (/")+.

Page 75



 !"#$% #&' ()*'++,-. /)0 1&' -21,)-2+ /,.30' *,* -)1 ,-4+3*' 2++
4)(('04,2+ 5))+6 2-* 726 *)-' ,- 899: 6) 1&' 5)6,1,)- 7,++ &2;'
4&2-.'* ,- 1&' ,-1'0,(< #&' ()*'++,-. 50)4'66 726 2+6) *,//'0'-1 1)
7&21 ,6 -)7 36'*= 1&' 0'63+16 )/ 1&' 899: -21,)-2+ ()*'++,-. &2;'=
&)7';'0= >''- 1'61'* 7,1& 1&' ()*'++,-. 1&21 &26 >''- *)-' /)0 1&,6
?>'0*''- @AB 2-* 1&' )315316 6&)7 1&21 ,1 ,6 0'26)-2>+' 1) (2C'
4)(520,6)- 26 21 2 -21,)-2+ +';'+ 1&' )315316 *) -)1 4&2-.' >D ()0'
1&2- E<:F < @)0 4)(520,6)-= ?>'0*''-6&,0' &26 >''- ()*'++'* 26 5201
)/ 1&,6 @AB 2-* &26 2 50'*,41'* 31,+,6'* 42524,1D )/ GE<HF IJ3- EK<

 !"  !" # $%&'(&") *+,-&'&,"
#$% &'()* +,+-.)') /01, 23 4+) 5+)%6 178, *$% %9')*',: 7+**%(, 8& ;2
<8==%(<'+-> 715-'< +,6 61+- 1)% )<$88- 788-)> <8,)'6%(%6 +:+',)* *$%
7871-+*'8, +* ;?22" #$% @86%- %)*'=+*%6 *$+* *$%)% 788-) <81-6 )+*')&.
)8=% AB"CD 8& 6%=+,6 &8( )4'==',:" E<<8(6',:-. *$% -%F%- 8& 1,=%*
6%=+,6 ') F%(. -84" #$% ,+*'8,+- +F%(+:% &8( =%* 6%=+,6 ') CB"GD>
5+)%6 8, *$% ,+*'8,+- (1, 4$'<$ 4+) 1,6%(*+H%, ', ;??B" E) *$% ,+*'8,+-
(1, 4+) 1,6%(*+H%, ', ;??B> *$%(% 4'-- $+F% 5%%, <$+,:%) ', *$% ',*%('=
7%('86 *8 *$% )177-. 8& 788-)I ', +66'*'8,> *$% =86%--',: 7(8<%)) '*)%-& $+)
<$+,:%6 )',<% *$+* *'=%" E) 7+(* 8& *$') JK@ 4% $+F% (%(1, *$% ,+*'8,+-
=86%- &(8= ;??B /)177-. ,8* 176+*%6 +,6 788-) ,8* (+*%6 5. L1+-'*.3 4'*$
)'='-+( =86%--',: *8 *$% E5%(6%%, 788-) JK@> ', 8(6%( *8 *%)* $84
<8=7+(+5-% *$% *48 )%*) 8& (%)1-*) +(%"  , (%-+*'8, *8 4$+* ') 5%',:
<8=7+(%6> *$% 6'&&%(%,<% ') ,8 =8(% *$+, 2"BD" E) )1<$> &8( *$%
71(78)%) 8& *$% E5%(6%%, JK@> *$%(% ') %,81:$ <8((%-+*'8, ', *%(=) 8& *$%
=86%- 81*71*) *8 +--84 1)%&1- <8=7+(')8, *8 5% =+6%"

 , *$') (1, E5%(6%%, $+) ;M)L= 8& 4+*%()7+<% 7%( 2??? 7871-+*'8,> 4$'<$
<8=7+(%) 4'*$ + N<8**')$ +F%(+:% 8& 2B"O)L=" #$% +,,1+- 7(8P%<*%6 1)%6
<+7+<'*. &8( *$% 788-) ') %)*'=+*%6 +* MG"QD 8& *$%'( *$%8(%*'<+- <+7+<'*.> +
&':1(% *$+* ') -84%( *$+, *$% ,+*'8,+- +F%(+:% 8& O2"BD"
/01, 23 4+) 5+)%6 178, *$% %9')*',: 7+**%(, 8& ;2 <8==%(<'+-> 715-'< +,6
61+- 1)% )<$88- 788-)> <8,)'6%(%6 +:+',)* *$% 7871-+*'8, +* ;?22" #$%
@86%- %)*'=+*%6 *$+* *$%)% 788-) <81-6 )+*')&. )8=% AB"CD 8& 6%=+,6 &8(
)4'==',:" E<<8(6',:-. *$% -%F%- 8& 1,=%* 6%=+,6 ') F%(. -84"

!"  !" . / $%&'(&") &"01!2&") 3!11,'

#$% )%<8,6 (1, &8( )4'==',: <8,)'6%() *$% )+=% ;2 788-) +) ', 01, 2>
51* ',<-16%) *$% 788- +* #1--8) 4$'<$ ') <1((%,*-. <-8)%6> '"%" + *8*+- 8& ;;
788-)> <8,)'6%(%6 +:+',)* *$% 7871-+*'8, +* ;?22"

 , *$') (1, E5%(6%%, $+) ;O"B )L= 8& 4+*%()7+<% 7%( 2??? 7871-+*'8,>
4$'<$ <8=7+(%) 4'*$ + N<8**')$ +F%(+:% 8& 2B)L= /;??B &':1(%3"

#$%(% ') ,8* + )':,'&'<+,* <$+,:% &(8= *$+* 81*-',%6 ', 01, 2 ', (%-+*'8, *8
7+**%(,) 8& =8F%=%,* 5%*4%%, E5%(6%%, R'*. R81,<'- +,6 E5%(6%%,)$'(%
R81,<'- +(%+)"

Page 76



 !"  !" # $ %&'( )*+ ,--./ 012.!3&"4 5!..-6 7"3 890:300"
;"&<0:6&'= >--. $ 7' ?*?@

#$%& '() %& *+ ,-,. +*/%)0 *112()+ 23 +$4 +%54 %+ 6%77 +*/4 +$4 )46 8-5 9227
+2 :4 12)&+'(1+4;" #$4 <)%=4'&%+> 9227 $*& *7&2 :44) '452=4; *); *&
6%+$ '() . #(772& 9227 $*& )2+ :44) %)17(;4;" #$4 ?2;47 4&+%5*+4; +$*+
9227& 6%77 &*+%&3> &254 @8"AB 23 ;45*); 32' &6%55%)0" C112';%)07> +$4
74=47 23 ()54+ ;45*); %& 726"

D%+$ +$4 )46 9227 E4F17(;%)0 +$4 <)%=4'&%+> *); #(772& 9227G +$4'4 %&
,@&H5 23 6*+4'&9*14 94' .--- E1(''4)+ 3%0('4 %& ,I&H5 *); )*+%2)*7
*=4'*04 .8&H5J 6%+$ 9'2=%&2& 9'4=%2(&7> )2+4; %) K() .G"

#$4 (&4; 1*9*1%+> 024& ;26) +2 ,L"MB 3'25 IA"LB E)*+%2)*7 *=4'*04
N."8B O ,--8 3%0('4G" #$%& 1259*'4& 6%+$ C:4';44)&$%'4J 6$%1$ $*&
52;4774; (&4; 1*9*1%+> 23 NI"MB *+ ,-,." #$%& *=4'*04 3%0('4 %& :*&4;
2) *77 (&4; 1*9*1%+%4& 32' 9227& %) +$4 P%+> *'4* *); +$4&4 *'4 &$26) %)
#*:74 ," !+ 1*) :4 &44) +$*+ +$4'4 %& &%0)%3%1*)+ =*'%*+%2) %) 9'4;%1+4;
1*9*1%+%4& 32' ;%334'4)+ 9227&"

D$*+ +$4 52;47 9'4;%1+& %& +$*+ &254 23 +$4 4F%&+%)0 ;45*); %& '4721*+4;
+2 +$4 8-5 9227" C& +$%& *;;%+%2)*7 6*+4'&9*14 $*& :44) 9'2=%;4;J :*&4;
2) +$4 ;45*); 74=47&J 6$%1$ *'4 ()1$*)04;J +$4 *52()+ 23 (&4'& (&%)0
+$4 4F%&+%)0 9227& %) +$4 *'4* )4*'4&+ +$4 8-5 9227 6%77 ;41'4*&4J *7+$2(0$
+$%& 43341+ %& 74&& *& >2( 52=4 *6*> 3'25 +$4 8-5 9227"

#$4'4 %& )2+ * &%0)%3%1*)+ 1$*)04 3'25 +$*+ 2(+7%)4; %) K() . %) '47*+%2) +2
9*++4')& 23 52=454)+ :4+644) C:4';44) P%+> P2()1%7 *); C:4';44)&$%'4
P2()1%7 *'4*&"

#$4 ;45*); 54+ ;24& )2+ 1$*)04 +2 *)> )2+%14*:74 4F+4)+ 6%+$ +$4 )46
9227Q +$4 3%0('4& *'4 &%5%7*' +2 +$2&4 2(+7%)4; %) K() ." #$%& %& :41*(&4
+$4 4F%&+%)0 9227& *'4 *7'4*;> 544+%)0 +$4 ;45*); 3'25 +$4%' 1*+1$54)+&J
*); +$4 )46 8-5 9227 ;24& )2+ '4*1$ *)> 23 +$2&4 6$2 &%+ 2(+6%+$ +$4&4
1*+1$54)+&" !+ &$2(7;J $264=4'J :4 12)&%;4'4; %) +$4 12)+4F+ 23 +$4
R4*1$ S4%&('4 P4)+'4 6$%1$ %& 1(''4)+7> 294'*+%)0 )4*' %+& )2+%2)*7 *))(*7
1*9*1%+>" !+ &$2(7; *7&2 :4 12)&%;4'4; %) +$4 12)+4F+ 23 +$4 8-5 9227
:4%)0 * )*+%2)*7 9'%2'%+> 32' &6%55%)0 ;4=472954)+ %) +$%& *'4* 23 +$4
12()+'>" !) +$%& '4&941+ %+ %& 7%/47> +$*+ 1*' (&4'& 6%77 +'*=47 52'4 +$*) +$4
,- 5%)(+4&J 6$%1$ +$4 52;47 *&&(54&J +2 +$4 )46 8-5 9227"
!) '47*+%2) +2 +$4 <)%=4'&%+> T227 )2+ :4%)0 %)17(;4;J +$%& *'4* 23 +$4 1%+> %&
6477 9'2=%;4; 32' 9227& &2 %+ %& )2+ 4F941+4; +$*+ +$4 172&('4 23 +$%& 6%77
'4&(7+ %) ;45*); 3'25 %+& 1*+1$54)+ *'4* )2+ :4%)0 54+J *& +$4'4 *'4 2+$4'
9227& +$*+ (&4'& 1*) ;%=4'+ +2"

!) '47*+%2) +2 #(772& T227J *& 6%+$ K() .J 5(1$ 23 +$%& *'4* 6%77 )2+ $*=4 *
9227 6%+$%) * ,- 5%)(+4 6*7/" U264=4'J *& 6%+$ K() .J +$4 )(5:4'& 23
=%&%+& 94' 644/ %) +$4 94*/ 94'%2; )2+ 54+ *& * '4&(7+ 23 +$%& %& )2+
9'4;%1+4; +2 :4 7*'04 V 8II =%&%+& 94' 644/ *'4 )2+ 54+ 1259*'4; 6%+$ N-L
)2+ :4%)0 54+ %) K() N V %"4" =%&%+& )2+ 54+ ;(4 +2 #(772& 9227 )2+ :4%)0
*=*%7*:74 %& .,A 94' 644/" #$4 97*)& *++*1$4; *& C994);%F . &$26
6*7/%)0 1*+1$54)+& %) +$4 1%+>"

Page 77



 !!"  !" # $ %&'( )*+ ,--./ &"0.!1&"2 3!..-4 5"1 670.!1&"2
896:166" ;"&<6:4&'= >--. $ 5' ?*?@

#$% &%'()*' +, *$-' &(. /&% '-0-)/& *+ 1(. 2" #$% /3-)-*4 ,+& *$+'% -. *$%
#())+' 5&%/ *+ 6/)7 *+ / 8++) &%0/-.' /' 6/' *$% 9/'% 6-*$ 1(. : 3(* )-**)%
0+&% ;%0/.; -' 0%* < =>">? /' 9+08/&%; *+ =@">? -. &(. 2< *$-'
%A(/*%' *+ B:> C-'-*' -. *$% 8%/7 8%&-+; 8%& 6%%7 3%-.D 0%* 6$-9$ 6+();
.+* $/C% 3%%. *$% 9/'% -, *$% 8++) 6/' 9)+'%;"

#$% 6/*%&'8/9% 8%& BEEE -' 2E"F'A0"

 !!!" A!++5:= -B '(6 :64!.'4 -B '(6 AC&++&"2 >--.4 8"5.=464

#$% 8++)' -. 53%&;%%. /&% ,/-&)4 6%)) )+9/*%; &%)/*-C% *+ 8+8()/*-+." #$%&%
-' / D++; '(88)4 +, 8++)' 8%& BEEE 8+8()/*-+. GD&%/*%& *$/. *$% ./*-+./)
/C%&/D% < :EE@ ,-D(&%H /.; /99+&;-.D *+ *$% 0+;%) 0+'* ;%0/.; -' 0%*I
/.; 0+'* 8++)' /&% +8%&/*-.D 9+0,+&*/3)4 6-*$-. *$%-& .+*-+./) 9/8/9-*4" !.
&%)/*-+. *+ *$% ./*-+./) 0+;%) *$/* 6/' (.;%&*/7%. -. :EE@I 9+08/&-'+.
'$+6' *$/* *$% '(88)4 +, 8++)' -. 53%&;%%. &%'()*' -. ;%0/.; 3%-.D 0%*
*$/* -' D&%/*%& *$/. *$% ./*-+./) /C%&/D%" J%0/.; *$/* -' .+* 0%* -' 0/-.)4
;(% *+ 6/)7%&' )-C-.D +(*6-*$ *$% 9/*9$0%.* 8+8()/*-+. +, *$% .%/&%'* 8++)I
3(* *$%'% .(03%&' /&% &%)/*-C%)4 '0/))"

K-*$ *$% .%6 @E0 8++) -* -' 8&%;-9*%; *$/* *$% ('%; 9/8/9-*4 )%C%)' 6-))
;%9&%/'%" #$-' 6-)) $/C% &%C%.(% -''(%' ,+& +8%&/*+&'" !* -'I $+6%C%&I
%L8%9*%; *$/* *$% @E0 8++) -' )-7%)4 *+ $/C% / D&%/*%& ;&-C-.D 9/*9$0%.*
*-0% *$/. *$% :E 0-.(*%' ('%; -. *$% 0+;%) < D-C%. *$/* *$-' -' / ./*-+./)
)%C%) '6-00-.D ,/9-)-*4 /.; *$% 0+;%))%; ('%; 9/8/9-*4 ,-D(&%' /.;
/''+9-/*%; ('%; 9/8/9-*4"

#$% )+'' +, *$% 8++) /* #())+' 0%/.' *$-' /&%/ ;+%' .+* $/C% /99%'' *+ /
8++)I 6$-9$ 8%+8)% 9/. 6/)7 *+ 6-*$-. :E 0-.(*%'" #$-' -' .+* -;%/) /' /
'-D.-,-9/.* 8&+8+&*-+. +, 8++) ('%&' /99%'' *$% ,/9-)-*4 34 6/)7-.D <
%'8%9-/))4 9$-);&%." M+6%C%&I D-C%. -*' 8&+L-0-*4 *+ +*$%& 8++)' -. *$% 9-*4I
*$+'% ('-.D 9/& *&/C%) +& 8(3)-9 *&/.'8+&* 9/. /99%'' *$%'% /.; /' .+*%;
/3+C% *$% ;-,,%&%.9%' -. *%&0' +, ;%0/.; 0%* -' .+* '-D.-,-9/.* /* / 9-*4
'9/)% < -. :E:B 1(. F '$+6' /. /;;-*-+./) B:> C-'-*' 8%& 6%%7 -. *$% 8%/7
8%&-+; /&% 0%* 6$%. #())+' 8++) -' +8%."

!* '$+(); /)'+ 3% &%0%03%&%; *$/* +, *$% %L-'*-.D 8++)'I / .(03%& /&% .+*
+8%. ,+& /)) +, *$% @: $+(&' -. *$% 8%/7 8%&-+;I '+ *$%&% -' /;;-*-+./) 8%/7
8%&-+; 9/8/9-*4 /C/-)/3)% *$/* 9+(); 3% ,&%%; (8 ;%8%.;-.D +. $+(&' +,
+8%.-.DN8&+D&/00-.D"

O&+0 *$% ,-.;-.D' +, *$% P+;%) *$%&% -' .+ .%%; ,+& /.4 /;;-*-+./) 8++)' -.
53%&;%%.I /.; &%'+(&9%' '$+(); 3% 9+.9%.*&/*%; +. -08&+C-.D *$%
,/9-)-*-%' *$/* /)&%/;4 %L-'*I /.; 9+.'-;%&/*-+. D-C%. *+ 8&+D&/00%' +, ('%
+.9% *$% @E0 8++) -' +8%."

Page 78



 !"  !""#$% &' ()* +*% ,!(-&"*. &' /&0*1

 # $%&$ '()(' *+ ,(-./, %0 -(1 2 345 6%1$*71 87''*0 ./, 395 6%1$
87''*0

 :(-./, /*1 -(1 %0 +;*- 1$*0( 6%1$*71 .<<(00 1* . <.; '%)%/& *716%1$
6.'=%/& <.1<$-(/10

 >0(, <.?.<%1@ *+ ?**'0 %0 AB5 C/.1%*/.' .)(;.&( DA5E
 87''*0 <'*07;( 2 .++(<10 1$*0( 6%1$*71 .<<(00 1* . <.;

2#31* 4 5*6-)"#$7869 :8() &()*$ -8(8*.

 !"#$%& '()' *+, -)( ... -!-"&'/%!# 0"12)( !3 -!!&4

 !"#$""%
&' ()#"*"%+ ",-./$0%1 2/..3*4

56 7+ &889:
&5 ()#"*"%+4

",-./$0%1 2/..3*:
 !"#$""%*;0#" 5< 59
=/%$"" 55 >
?$0%!/#1; &8 &@
A.7*13B 59 &&
C"#+; D E0%#3** 5@ @
F-3++0*; 7G"#71" 59 %H7

!" ;!(!$* :&$7

F7;1$(; 6*;= %0 /*6 ;(G7%;(, 1* ,()('*? 1$( ;(07'10 *+ 1$( H*,(' %/1* .
<*-?;($(/0%)( 6.1(; -./.&(-(/1 ?'./ +*; 1$( <%1@ .0 ?.;1 *+ 1$( '(%07;(
.00(1 ?'./" 8$%0 6%'' 1.=( %/1* .<<*7/1I

 1$( /((,0 *+ '*<.' <*--7/%1%(0J
 1$( ?;*&;.--%/& *+ (K%01%/& ?**'0
 1$( <*01 ?(; 06%- ./, 07L0%,@ '()('0
 1$( *??*;17/%1%(0 +*; ?.;1%<%?.1%*/ %/ .G7.1%< 0?*;10
 #1$'(1( ,()('*?-(/1
 8$( ;(&%*/.' ?'./ +*; 06%--%/&
 8$( ,()('*?-(/1 *+ 1$( MN- ?**'
 8$( .00(1 -./.&(-(/1 ?'./0 +*; '(%07;(
 O.?%1.' ./, ;()(/7( <*010
 8$( ?;*P(<1(, ;(,7<1%*/ %/ %/<*-( ./, ?;*?*0.'0 +*; 0701.%/.L%'%1@

Q++%<(;0 6%'' <*/1%/7( 1* 6*;= 6%1$ .<&$(0<*1'./, ./, 1$( R.1(;
H./.&(-(/1 &;*7? 1* ;(?*;1 L.<= 1* <*--%11(( 6%1$ *?1%*/0 +*;
<*/0%,(;.1%*/ L@ ('(<1(, -(-L(;0 .0 ?.;1 *+ 1$( <*7/<%' .00(1
-./.&(-(/1 ?'./ +*; '(%07;( +.<%'%1%(0" 8$( <7;;(/1 #L(;,((/ O%1@ O*7/<%'
?**'0 .;( '%01(, L('*6 %/ 8.L'( S"

Page 79



 !"#$ %& '()* +, -"$./$$0 1(*2 1+304(# 5++#)

 !!" #$%"&%'( )*+,
 !"#$""% &#'(('# )*+,,-  ..'*+"$ ., )*+,,-

/"'*+ 0"123#" 4"%.#" 5#""2.'%$1%6 70"123#"8
/#1$6" ,9 :,%  *'$"(;  ..'*+"$ ., )*+,,-

/3*<2!3#% )=1((1%6 >,,- 5#""2.'%$1%6 7?'#. ,9 /"'*,% 4"%.#" 4,(?-"@8
43-.2  *'$"(;  ..'*+"$ ., )*+,,-
:;*"  *'$"(;  ..'*+"$ ., )*+,,-

:;*" >#1('#; >,,-  ..'*+"$ ., )*+,,-
A'B-"+"'$ )=1((1%6 >,,-  ..'*+"$ ., )*+,,-

A'B-"=,,$ )*+,,- >,,-  ..'*+"$ ., )*+,,-
C1%*,#.+  *'$"(;  ..'*+"$ ., )*+,,-

D,#.+91"-$ )=1((1%6 >,,- 5#""2.'%$1%6
E3--,2 )*+,,- E"(?,#'#1-; 4-,2"$ 7 ..'*+"$ ., )*+,,-8

 !"  3##+) 6++#

#$$%&'() *%++ &,-.%-/' ., ('0%'* .1' 2&&')) ., )*%33%-4 5,,+) 2&(,)) .1'
&%.6 2-7 $/(.1'( '85+,(' 1,* ., 277(')) .1' .'35,(2(6 &+,)/(' ,$ 9/++,)
5,,+ .1(,/41 .1' +'%)/(' 2))'. 5+2- 2-7 .1' 2))'. 5+2- $,( )&1,,+)"

91' (')/+.) ,$ .1' $2&%+%.%') 5+2--%-4 3,7'+ )1,* .12. .1' &%.6 12) 2 +'0'+ ,$
5,,+ &252&%.6 .12. %) )%4-%$%&2-.+6 1%41'( .12- .1' -2.%,-2+ 20'(24'" 91'
+'0'+ ,$ 3'. 7'32-7 :;<"=>? 3'2-) .12.@ ,-&' .1' <A3 5,,+ %) ,5'-@ %. %)
5(,B'&.'7 .12. '8%).%-4 5,,+) *%++ '85'(%'-&' 2 7(,5 %- /)24' 2-7 %-&,3'"
91%) *%++ 2+), %352&. ,- .1' 0%2C%+%.6 ,$ 5,,+) 5(,0%7'7 ,/. *%.1 .1' &%.6
&,/-&%+" 91' &,/-&%+ -''7) ., &,-)%7'( *1'(' %. 5(,0%7') 5,,+) ., '-)/('
2&&')) ., 5,,+) 2&(,)) .1' &%.6 2-7 ., 3''. .1' -''7) ,$ &,33/-%.%')
*%.1%- 2('2) ,$ 3/+.%5+' 7'5(%02.%,- 91'('$,(' .1' +'%)/(' 2))'. 5+2- *%++
-''7 ., 277(')) *1'.1'( .1' &,/-&%+ )1,/+7 (2.%,-2+%)' .1' -/3C'( ,$
5,,+) ., '-)/(' .1' $%-2-&%2+ 0%2C%+%.6 ,$ %.) ,*- 2-7 ,.1'( $2&%+%.%')" 91'
&,/-&%+ -''7) ., &,-)%7'( 1,* .1' &/(('-. 5(,4(233%-4 &2- C' %35(,0'7

DC'(7''- '-B,6) 2 4,,7 +'0'+ ,$ 5,,+ 5(,0%)%,- 2-7 *%++ 120' 2- '8&'++'-.
<A3 5,,+" 91' &12++'-4' %) ., 7'0'+,5 2 +,-4E.'(3 5+2- ., )/).2%- 2 4,,7
+'0'+ ,$ 2$$,(72C+' 1%41 F/2+%.6 $2&%+%.%') .12. 3''. .1' -''7) ,$ ,/(
&,33/-%.%')"

=" !GHDI9

I,(5,(2.' E 91' ('5,(. ('+2.') ., .1' J'6 2%3) )'. ,/. %- .1' D(.)@ K'(%.24'
2-7 L5,(. ).(2-7 ,$ .1' I,33/-%.6 H+2-@ )5'&%$%&2++6 %- ('+2.%,- ., .1'
)5,(.)@ +'%)/(' 2-7 ('&('2.%,- 0%)%,- ,$ 7'0'+,5%-4 DC'(7''- 2) 2- MD&.%0'
I%.6N"

91' ('5,(. 2+), +%-J) ., .1' )5,(. 2-7 &/+./(2+ ,CB'&.%0') +2%7 ,/. %-
MO%C(2-.@ P6-23%& 2-7 Q,(*2(7 +,,J%-4NR

Page 80



  !"#$%&$ '%#()")'%()*! )! &'*#(+ '#*,)-$ &.''*#( /*# %(01$($&
%!- #$2%#- $3"$11$!"$

 4$"*5!)&$ (0$ "*!(#)6.()*! */ &'*#(+ ".1(.#$ %!- (0$ %#(& (*
'#*7*()!5 (0$ %#$% %& % (*.#)&( -$&()!%()*!

 4$"*5!)&$ (0$ #*1$ */ &'*#( %!- (0$ %#(& )! (%"81)!5 %!()
&*")%1 6$0%,)*.#

90$ :)(;<& &'*#( %!- '0;&)"%1 %"(),)(; &(#%($5;+ =>)( /*# (0$ >.(.#$< 0%& /),$
&(#%($5)" *6?$"(),$&@

 A#*7*($ %!- )!"#$%&$ *''*#(.!)()$& /*# '%#()")'%()*! )! &'*#(
%!- '0;&)"%1 %"(),)(; /*# $,$#;*!$ )! B6$#-$$!

 A#*,)-$ % "*7'#$0$!&),$ %!- 0)50 C.%1)(; #%!5$ */ &'*#(&
/%")1)()$& )! B6$#-$$!

 D%3)7)&$ (0$ &*")%1+ $-."%()*!%1+ 0$%1(0 %!- $"*!*7)"
6$!$/)(& */ &'*#( %!- '0;&)"%1 %"(),)(; )! B6$#-$$!

 E$,$1*' %!- &.&(%)! '%(02%;& 20)"0 !.#(.#$ 1*"%1+ #$5)*!%1
%!- !%()*!%1 &'*#()!5 '$*'1$ (* #$%"0 (0$)# '*($!()%1

 4%)&$ (0$ '#*/)1$ */ &'*#( )! B6$#-$$!

 F  !"#$%

90$#$ )& 1)8$1; (* 6$ "*!&)-$#%61$ '.61)" )!($#$&( )! (0)& #$'*#( /#*7 (0$
"*77.!)()$& )! 9*##; "*!"$#!$- %6*.( (0$ /.(.#$ */ 9.11*& '**1 %!- (0$
'*($!()%1 (* #$G*'$! *# #$'1%"$ )(F

B--)()*!%11; 7$76$#& */ (0$ '.61)" %!- 7$76$#& */ %C.%()" &'*#(& "1.6&
2)11 6$ )!($#$&($- )! (0$ /.(.#$ */ 1*"%1 &2)77)!5 %!- 1$)&.#$ '**1& %!- (0$
'**1 "%'%")(; /*# '%#()")'%()*! )! &'*#( %!- %(01$($ -$,$1*'7$!(F

HF IB:JK4LMNE ABAO4P

O:P QR P$'($76$# STQT 9.11*& P2)77)!5 A**1 G  !($#!%1 U*#8& G
4$/$##$- /#*7 >)!%!"$ %!- 4$&*.#"$& :*77)(($$ */ QH V.!$ STQT

O:P S V.!$ STQQ WT D$(#$ A**1 G 9$!-$# 4$'*#( G O:PXQQXTYY

ZF 4OAL49 BM9[L4 EO9B \P

A%(#)")% :%&&)-;
[$%- */ :*77.!)()$& :.1(.#$ %!- P'*#(
'"%&&)-;]%6$#-$$!")(;F5*,F.8
TQSSY WSSYH^

B''$!-)3 Q _ U%18)!5 :%("07$!( D%'&

Page 81



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

� �
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
lB
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

D
yc
e

Pe
te
rc
ul
te
r

St
on
ey
w
oo
d

W
es
th
ill

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

M
ap
pr
od
uc
ed
by
Th
e
Pl
an
ni
ng
Da
ta
M
an
ag
em
en
tS
er
vi
ce
06
/0
7/
11
Jo
b
DH

us
in
g
M
ap
in
fo
fo
r
sp
or
ts
co
tla
nd

A
B
ER
D
EE
N
PO
O
LS
FP
M

N
U
M
B
ER
O
F
A
C
C
ES
SI
B
LE
PO
O
LS
W
IT
H
IN
W
A
LK
IN
G
C
A
TC
H
M
EN
TS

K
ey

5 4 3 2 1 0 A
dd
iti
on
al
m
at
er
ia
l©
sp
or
ts
co
tla
nd
20
11

©
Cr
ow
n
co
py
rig
ht
.D
ata
su
pp
lie
d
by
G
en
er
al
Re
gi
ste
rO
ff
ice
fo
rS
co
tla
nd
.

So
ur
ce
:2
00
1
Ce
ns
us
,O
ut
pu
tA
re
aB
ou
nd
ar
ies
,I
TN
Ro
ad
sd
ata
.

Th
is
m
ap
is
ba
se
d
on
th
eO
S
m
ap
by
sp
or
tsc
ot
lan
d
w
ith
th
ep
er
m
iss
io
n
of
Th
eC
on
tro
lle
ro
fH
er
M
aje
sty
's
St
ati
on
ar
y
O
ff
ice
©
Cr
ow
n
Co
py
rig
ht
.

A
llr
ig
ht
sr
es
er
ve
d
20
11
.U
na
ut
ho
ris
ed
re
pr
od
uc
tio
n
in
fr
in
ge
sC
ro
w
n
Co
py
rig
ht
an
d
m
ay
lea
d
to
pr
os
ec
ut
io
n
or
civ
ilp
ro
ce
ed
in
gs
.L
ice
nc
en
um
be
rG
D
03
13
5G
00
12

R
U
N
1
-P
R
ES
EN
T
PR
O
V
IS
IO
N
,E
X
C
LU
D
IN
G
TU
LL
O
S

�
P
oo
lS
ite

O
A
bo
un
da
ry

N
um
be
ro
fp
oo
ls
w
ith
in

20
m
in
s
w
al
ki
ng
tim
e

(A
pp
ro
x
1
M
ile
)

of
O
A
ce
nt
ro
id
s

Page 82



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

� �
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
lB
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

D
yc
e

Pe
te
rc
ul
te
r

St
on
ey
w
oo
d

W
es
th
ill

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

T
ul
lo
s
S
ch

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
lB
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

Ab
er
de
en
U

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

M
ap
pr
od
uc
ed
by
Th
e
Pl
an
ni
ng
Da
ta
M
an
ag
em
en
tS
er
vi
ce
06
/0
7/
11
Jo
b
DH

us
in
g
M
ap
in
fo
fo
r
sp
or
ts
co
tla
nd

A
B
ER
D
EE
N
PO
O
LS
FP
M

N
U
M
B
ER
O
F
A
C
C
ES
SI
B
LE
PO
O
LS
W
IT
H
IN
W
A
LK
IN
G
C
A
TC
H
M
EN
TS

K
ey

5 4 3 2 1 0 A
dd
iti
on
al
m
at
er
ia
l©
sp
or
ts
co
tla
nd
20
11

©
Cr
ow
n
co
py
rig
ht
.D
ata
su
pp
lie
d
by
G
en
er
al
Re
gi
ste
rO
ff
ice
fo
rS
co
tla
nd
.

So
ur
ce
:2
00
1
Ce
ns
us
,O
ut
pu
tA
re
aB
ou
nd
ar
ies
,I
TN
Ro
ad
sd
ata
.

Th
is
m
ap
is
ba
se
d
on
th
eO
S
m
ap
by
sp
or
tsc
ot
lan
d
w
ith
th
ep
er
m
iss
io
n
of
Th
eC
on
tro
lle
ro
fH
er
M
aje
sty
's
St
ati
on
ar
y
O
ff
ice
©
Cr
ow
n
Co
py
rig
ht
.

A
llr
ig
ht
sr
es
er
ve
d
20
11
.U
na
ut
ho
ris
ed
re
pr
od
uc
tio
n
in
fr
in
ge
sC
ro
w
n
Co
py
rig
ht
an
d
m
ay
lea
d
to
pr
os
ec
ut
io
n
or
civ
ilp
ro
ce
ed
in
gs
.L
ice
nc
en
um
be
rG
D
03
13
5G
00
12

R
U
N
2
-P
R
ES
EN
T
PR
O
V
IS
IO
N
,I
N
C
LU
D
IN
G
TU
LL
O
S

�
P
oo
lS
ite

O
A
bo
un
da
ry

N
um
be
ro
fp
oo
ls
w
ith
in

20
m
in
s
w
al
ki
ng
tim
e

(A
pp
ro
x
1
M
ile
)

of
O
A
ce
nt
ro
id
s

Page 83



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

� �
�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�

�

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
lB
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

D
yc
e

Pe
te
rc
ul
te
r

St
on
ey
w
oo
d

W
es
th
ill

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

50
m
P
oo
l

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

B
ea
ch
LC

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

P
at
io
H
ot
el

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

H
ilt
on

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

Ab
er
de
en
G
S
ch

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

C
an
no
ns

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
oo
d
S
ch

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
l

H
az
le
he
ad
P
oo
lB
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

B
ri
dg
e
of
D
on
Ac
ad
em
y

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
na
lS
ch

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

C
ul
ts
Ac
ad
em
y

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

N
or
th
fie
ld

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

M
ar
ri
ot
tH
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

Ar
do
e
H
ou
se
H
ot
el

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
an
na
ty
ne
s

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

B
uc
ks
bu
rn

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

D
yc
e
Ac
ad
em
y

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
in
co
rt
h
Ac
ad
em
y

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

K
ip
pi
e
Lo
dg
e

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

M
ap
pr
od
uc
ed
by
Th
e
Pl
an
ni
ng
Da
ta
M
an
ag
em
en
tS
er
vi
ce
06
/0
7/
11
Jo
b
DH

us
in
g
M
ap
in
fo
fo
r
sp
or
ts
co
tla
nd

A
B
ER
D
EE
N
PO
O
LS
FP
M

N
U
M
B
ER
O
F
A
C
C
ES
SI
B
LE
PO
O
LS
W
IT
H
IN
W
A
LK
IN
G
C
A
TC
H
M
EN
TS

K
ey

5 4 3 2 1 0 A
dd
iti
on
al
m
at
er
ia
l©
sp
or
ts
co
tla
nd
20
11

©
Cr
ow
n
co
py
rig
ht
.D
ata
su
pp
lie
d
by
G
en
er
al
Re
gi
ste
rO
ff
ice
fo
rS
co
tla
nd
.

So
ur
ce
:2
00
1
Ce
ns
us
,O
ut
pu
tA
re
aB
ou
nd
ar
ies
,I
TN
Ro
ad
sd
ata
.

Th
is
m
ap
is
ba
se
d
on
th
eO
S
m
ap
by
sp
or
tsc
ot
lan
d
w
ith
th
ep
er
m
iss
io
n
of
Th
eC
on
tro
lle
ro
fH
er
M
aje
sty
's
St
ati
on
ar
y
O
ff
ice
©
Cr
ow
n
Co
py
rig
ht
.

A
llr
ig
ht
sr
es
er
ve
d
20
11
.U
na
ut
ho
ris
ed
re
pr
od
uc
tio
n
in
fr
in
ge
sC
ro
w
n
Co
py
rig
ht
an
d
m
ay
lea
d
to
pr
os
ec
ut
io
n
or
civ
ilp
ro
ce
ed
in
gs
.L
ice
nc
en
um
be
rG
D
03
13
5G
00
12

�
P
oo
lS
ite

O
A
bo
un
da
ry

N
um
be
ro
fp
oo
ls
w
ith
in

20
m
in
s
w
al
ki
ng
tim
e

(A
pp
ro
x
1
M
ile
)

of
O
A
ce
nt
ro
id
s

P
ro
po
sa
l

�

R
U
N
3
-P
R
O
PO
SE
D
PR
O
V
IS
IO
N
W
IT
H
50
M
PO
O
L,
EX
C
LU
D
IN
G
A
B
ER
D
EE
N
U
N
IV
ER
SI
TY
&
TU
LL
O
S

Page 84



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

� �
�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�

�

�

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
lB
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

D
yc
e

Pe
te
rc
ul
te
r

S
to
ne
yw
oo
d

W
es
th
ill

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

50
m
p
o
o
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

P
at
io
H
o
te
l

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

B
e
ac
h
L
C

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

T
u
llo
s
S
ch

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

H
ilt
o
n

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

A
b
e
rd
e
e
n
G
S
ch

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

C
an
n
o
n
s

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
w
o
o
d
S
ch

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
l

H
az
le
h
e
ad
P
o
o
lB
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

B
ri
d
g
e
o
f
D
o
n
A
ca
d
e
m
y

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

In
te
rn
at
io
n
al
S
ch

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

C
u
lt
s
A
ca
d
e
m
y

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

N
o
rt
h
fi
e
ld

M
ar
ri
o
tt
H
o
te
l

M
ar
ri
o
tt
H
o
te
l

M
ar
ri
o
tt
H
o
te
l

M
ar
ri
o
tt
H
o
te
l

M
ar
ri
o
tt
H
o
te
l

M
ar
ri
o
tt
H
o
te
l

M
ar
ri
o
tt
H
o
te
l

M
ar
ri
o
tt
H
o
te
l

M
ar
ri
o
tt
H
o
te
l

A
rd
o
e
H
o
u
se
H
o
te
l

A
rd
o
e
H
o
u
se
H
o
te
l

A
rd
o
e
H
o
u
se
H
o
te
l

A
rd
o
e
H
o
u
se
H
o
te
l

A
rd
o
e
H
o
u
se
H
o
te
l

A
rd
o
e
H
o
u
se
H
o
te
l

A
rd
o
e
H
o
u
se
H
o
te
l

A
rd
o
e
H
o
u
se
H
o
te
l

A
rd
o
e
H
o
u
se
H
o
te
l

B
an
n
at
yn
e
s

B
an
n
at
yn
e
s

B
an
n
at
yn
e
s

B
an
n
at
yn
e
s

B
an
n
at
yn
e
s

B
an
n
at
yn
e
s

B
an
n
at
yn
e
s

B
an
n
at
yn
e
s

B
an
n
at
yn
e
s

B
u
ck
sb
u
rn

B
u
ck
sb
u
rn

B
u
ck
sb
u
rn

B
u
ck
sb
u
rn

B
u
ck
sb
u
rn

B
u
ck
sb
u
rn

B
u
ck
sb
u
rn

B
u
ck
sb
u
rn

B
u
ck
sb
u
rn

D
yc
e
A
ca
d
e
m
y

D
yc
e
A
ca
d
e
m
y

D
yc
e
A
ca
d
e
m
y

D
yc
e
A
ca
d
e
m
y

D
yc
e
A
ca
d
e
m
y

D
yc
e
A
ca
d
e
m
y

D
yc
e
A
ca
d
e
m
y

D
yc
e
A
ca
d
e
m
y

D
yc
e
A
ca
d
e
m
y

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

JJ
B

K
in
co
rt
h
A
ca
d
e
m
y

K
in
co
rt
h
A
ca
d
e
m
y

K
in
co
rt
h
A
ca
d
e
m
y

K
in
co
rt
h
A
ca
d
e
m
y

K
in
co
rt
h
A
ca
d
e
m
y

K
in
co
rt
h
A
ca
d
e
m
y

K
in
co
rt
h
A
ca
d
e
m
y

K
in
co
rt
h
A
ca
d
e
m
y

K
in
co
rt
h
A
ca
d
e
m
y

K
ip
p
ie
L
o
d
g
e

K
ip
p
ie
L
o
d
g
e

K
ip
p
ie
L
o
d
g
e

K
ip
p
ie
L
o
d
g
e

K
ip
p
ie
L
o
d
g
e

K
ip
p
ie
L
o
d
g
e

K
ip
p
ie
L
o
d
g
e

K
ip
p
ie
L
o
d
g
e

K
ip
p
ie
L
o
d
g
e

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

R
G
U

M
ap
pr
od
uc
ed
by
Th
e
Pl
an
ni
ng
D
at
a
M
an
ag
em
en
tS
er
vi
ce
06
/0
7/
11
Jo
b
D
H
us
in
g
M
ap
in
fo
fo
r
sp
or
ts
co
tla
nd

A
B
E
R
D
E
E
N
PO
O
LS
FP
M

N
U
M
B
E
R
O
F
A
C
C
E
SS
IB
L
E
PO
O
L
S
W
IT
H
IN
W
A
L
K
IN
G
C
A
TC
H
M
E
N
TS

K
ey

5 4 3 2 1 0 A
dd
iti
on
al
m
at
er
ia
l©
sp
or
ts
co
tla
nd
20
11

©
Cr
o
w
n
co
p
y
ri
gh
t.
D
at
as
u
p
p
lie
d
b
y
G
en
er
al
Re
g
is
te
rO
ff
ic
e
fo
r
S
co
tla
n
d
.

S
o
u
rc
e:
2
0
0
1
C
en
su
s,
O
u
tp
ut
A
re
a
Bo
u
n
d
ar
ie
s,
IT
N
R
o
ad
s
d
at
a.

T
h
is
m
ap
is
ba
se
d
o
n
th
e
O
S
m
ap
by
sp
o
rts
co
tla
n
d
w
ith
th
e
p
er
m
is
si
o
n
of
T
h
e
Co
n
tr
o
lle
r
o
f
H
er
M
aj
es
ty
's
S
ta
tio
n
ar
y
O
ff
ic
e
©
C
ro
w
n
C
o
p
yr
ig
h
t.

A
ll
ri
g
ht
s
re
se
rv
ed
2
0
11
.U
n
au
th
o
ri
se
d
re
p
ro
d
u
ct
io
n
in
fr
in
g
es
C
ro
w
n
C
op
y
ri
g
ht
an
d
m
ay
le
ad
to
p
ro
se
cu
tio
n
o
r
ci
v
ilp
ro
ce
ed
in
g
s.
Li
ce
n
ce
n
u
m
b
er
G
D
0
31
3
5
G
00
1
2

�
P
oo
lS
ite

O
A
bo
un
da
ry

N
um
be
r
of
po
ol
s
w
ith
in

20
m
in
s
w
al
ki
ng
tim
e

(A
pp
ro
x
1
M
ile
)

of
O
A
ce
nt
ro
id
s

P
ro
po
sa
l

�

R
U
N
4
-P
R
O
PO
SE
D
PR
O
V
IS
IO
N
W
IT
H
50
M
PO
O
L,
EX
C
LU
D
IN
G
A
B
ER
D
EE
N
U
N
IV
ER
SI
T
Y
,I
N
C
LU
D
IN
G
T
U
LL
O
S

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ED
UC

AT
IO

N 
CU

LT
UR

E 
AN

D 
SP

O
RT

 C
O

M
M

IT
TE

E 
- C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

BU
SI

NE
SS

 
24

 N
O

VE
M

BE
R 

20
11

 
 

No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

1.
 
Ed

uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
27

 M
ay
 20

10
 

Ar
tic
le 
11
 

 Sp
ec
ial
 

Ed
uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
28

 O
cto

be
r 

20
10

 
Ar
tic
le 
2 

Le
arn

ing
 Es

tat
e S

tra
teg

y (
Sc
ho
ols

) –
 

Re
zo
nin

g E
xe
rci
se
 (S

ec
on
da
ry)

 
 At 

its
 m

ee
tin
g 

of 
28

 O
cto

be
r 
20

10
, t

he
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
, 

am
on
gs
t 

oth
er 

thi
ng

s:-
 

to 
req

ue
st 

tha
t 

off
ice

rs 
de

ve
lop

 
ful
ly 

de
tai
led

 p
rop

os
als

 f
or 

the
 l
on
ge

r 
ter

m 
ma

na
ge

me
nt 

an
d 

pro
vis

ion
 o

f s
ec
on

da
ry 

sc
ho

ols
 

wh
ich

 
wil

l 
res

ult
 

in 
tw
elv

e 
ac
ad

em
ies

 i
n 

tot
al,
 a

s 
ou

tlin
ed

 i
n 

the
 

rep
ort

. 
 Fo

llo
win

g t
he

 de
cis

ion
 on

 28
 O

cto
be
r 2

01
0 

tha
t 
off

ice
rs 

ful
ly 

de
ve
lop

 p
rop

os
als

 t
o 

red
efi
ne

 th
e c

atc
hm

en
t a

rea
s o

f A
be

rde
en
 

Gr
am

ma
r S

ch
oo

l a
nd

 H
arl

aw
 A
ca
de

my
, a

t 
its
 
me

eti
ng

 
of 

24
 
Ma

rch
 
20

11
, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

co
ns
ide

red
 a

 r
ep

ort
 o

n 
the

 
ca
tch

me
nt 

are
as
 o

f 
the

se
 s

ch
oo

ls 
an

d 
ag

ree
d 

tha
t 
off
ice

rs 
sh
ou

ld 
inc

lud
e 

the
 

po
ten

tia
l r

e-z
on

ing
 o

f t
he

 tw
o 

se
co
nd

ary
 

sc
ho

ols
 in

 a
 co

mp
reh

en
siv

e 
rev

iew
 o
f t
he

 
pri

ma
ry 

sc
ho

ol 
es
tat

e, 
to 

be
 co

mp
let
ed

 by
 

De
ce
mb

er 
20

11
 w
ith
 a 

rep
ort

 to
 E
du

ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt C

om
mi
tte

e e
arl
y i
n 2

01
2. 

 An
 u
pd

ate
 w

as
 p
rov

ide
d 
in 

the
 b
ull
eti
n 
on
 

15
 S

ep
tem

be
r 

20
11

. 
 T

his
 s

pe
cif
ica

lly 
ad

dre
ss
ed

 p
rim

ary
 sc

ho
ol 

pro
vis

ion
 in

 th
e 

no
rth

 w
es
t o

f t
he

 ci
ty,
 in

 lig
ht 

of 
pro

po
se
d 

ne
w 
ho

us
ing

 de
ve
lop

me
nts

 at
 M

ug
gie

mo
ss
 

Ro
ad

 an
d S

ton
ey
wo

od
 Es

tat
e. 

 Th
is 

ite
m 

wi
ll 
be
 r
oll
ed
 to

ge
the

r 
int

o 
on
e r

ep
or
t t
o 
be
 p
res

en
ted

 to
 

Co
mm

itte
e i
n e

arl
y 2

01
2. 

     

He
ad

 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt,

 
Po

licy
 an

d 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 

Ea
rly
 

20
12

 
23

.02
.12

 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 87



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

2.
 
Po

licy
 & 

Str
ate

gy
 

(E
du

ca
tio
n) 

 
9 J

un
e 2

00
9 

Ar
tic
le 
11
 

 Ed
uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

  
8 O

cto
be

r 2
00

9 

St
rat

eg
ic 
Mu

sic
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 – 
Bi
g N

ois
e: 

Sis
tem

a S
co
tla
nd
 

At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 2

 J
un

e 
20

11
, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e r

es
olv

ed
:- 

(i) 
 to

 no
te 

the
 re

po
rt a

nd
 th

e p
ote

nti
al 
for

 a 
sim

ila
r p

roj
ec
t i
n 
Ab

erd
ee

n; 
(ii)

 to
 in

str
uc
t 

off
ice

rs 
to 

inv
es
tig
ate

 a 
bu

sin
es
s m

od
el 

for
 

the
 d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
a 

pro
jec

t 
wo

rki
ng

 w
ith
 

Sis
tem

a 
Sc

otl
an

d; 
 a

nd
  

(iii
) 
to 

ins
tru

ct 
off

ice
rs 

to 
rep

ort
 to

 a 
fut

ure
 m

ee
tin
g o

f th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

on
 t

he
 p

rop
os
ed

 b
us
ine

ss
 

mo
de

l, c
rite

ria
 fo

r id
en

tify
ing

 an
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 
co
mm

un
ity
, a

nd
 po

ss
ibl
e f

un
din

g s
ou
rce

s. 
 An

 u
pd

ate
 w

as
 p
rov

ide
d 
in 

the
 b
ull
eti
n 
on
 

15
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20

11
. 

 

  
He

ad
 of

 
Co

mm
un

itie
s, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

24
.11

.11
 

 

3.
 
Ed

uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
15

 Ap
ril 
20

10
 

Ar
tic
le 
19
 

              

Re
du
ce
d 
Co

mm
un
itie

s 
Te
am

 / 
Le
as
ed
 

Co
mm

un
ity
 C
en
tre

s -
  

Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

no
ted

 p
rog

res
s 

ma
de

; 
req

ue
ste

d a
 re

po
rt b

ac
k t
o C

om
mi
tte

e a
t it
s 

me
eti
ng

 
on

 
16

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
 
on
 

im
ple

me
nti
ng

 a
 2
0 
ye
ar 

lea
se
 w

ith
 re

pa
irs
 

an
d 

ma
int
en

an
ce
 b

ein
g 

un
de

rta
ke
n 

in 
ag

ree
me

nt 
wit

h 
lea

se
d 
ce
ntr

es
 a
lon

g 
the

 
sa
me

 
lin
es
 
as
 
De

vo
lve

d 
Ed

uc
ati
on

al 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Sc
ho

ols
 b
ud

ge
ts 

we
re 

de
alt
 

wit
h a

t th
e p

res
en
t m

om
en

t; a
nd
 re

qu
es
ted

 
tha

t c
on

su
lta
tio
n b

e u
nd
ert

ak
en
 w
ith
 le
as
ed

 
co
mm

un
ity
 c
en

tre
s 
on

 th
e 

for
mu

lat
ion

 o
f 

the
 re

po
rt. 

 It 
wa

s t
he

n a
gre

ed
 th

at 
thi
s b

e 
de
fer

red
 

to 
Ju
ne
 

20
11

 
to 

all
ow

 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 o
f c

om
mu

nit
y 
ow

ne
rsh

ip 
of 

as
se
ts 

in 
lig
ht 

of 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
na

tio
na

l p
oli
cy
 

su
pp

ort
ing

 
co
mm

un
ity
 

inv
olv

em
en

t 
in 

se
rvi
ce
 

de
live

ry 
an

d 
loc

al 
bu

dg
eta

ry 

A 
rep

or
t is

 on
 th

e a
ge
nd
a, 
de
ali
ng
 

wi
th 
as
pe
cts

 of
 th
is 
ite
m.
 

 Pa
rts

 
of 

thi
s 

ite
m 

are
 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 fo

r r
em

ov
al,
 a
s 
in 

so
me

 
ca
se
s 

the
y 

ha
ve
 
be
en
 

su
pe
rse

de
d 

by
 l

ate
r 

de
cis

ion
s 

(se
e b

elo
w 
for

 de
tai
l). 

 16
/9/
10
 

de
cis

ion
s 

– 
it 

is 
co
ns
ide

red
 t
ha
t 
the

se
 d

ec
isi
on
s 

ha
ve
 n
ow

 b
ee
n 
su
pe
rce

ed
ed
 b
y 

the
 C
ou
nc
il 
de
cis

ion
 in

 F
eb
ru
ary

 
20
11
 
to 

mo
ve
 
all
 
ce
ntr

es
 
to 

“le
as
ed
” 

ce
ntr

e 
sta

tus
 

or
 

eq
uiv

ale
nt.

 
Th
e 

op
tio

n 
for

 
co
mm

un
ity
 o

wn
ers

hip
 o

f 
as
se
ts 

rem
ain

s 
op
en
, 

an
d 

if 
an
y 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Co

mm
itte

e 
wi
sh
es
 

He
ad

 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

Va
rio

us
 – 

se
e b

elo
w 

                 

 

Page 88



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

  Co
un

cil 
Bu

dg
et 

10
 Fe

bru
ary

 
20

11
 

                               

ma
tte

rs.
 

 At 
the

 C
ou

nc
il B

ud
ge

t m
ee

tin
g i

n F
eb

rua
ry 

20
11

, t
he
 C

ou
nc
il 
ag

ree
d 

as
 p

art
 o

f t
he
 

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 bu

dg
et 

pro
po

sa
ls,
 to

 in
str

uc
t 

the
 D

ire
cto

r 
of 

Ed
uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 to
 re

po
rt 
to 

the
 re

lev
an

t C
om

mi
tte

e 
wit

h 
an

 im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

pla
n 

on
 h

ow
 th

e 
red

uc
tio
n 
in 

fun
din

g 
for

 th
e 
Co

mm
un

itie
s 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

Te
am

 
wil

l 
be

 
de

live
red

, 
in 

co
nju

nc
tio
n 
wit

h 
ho

w 
thi
s w

ill 
als

o 
pro

vid
e 

co
nti
nu

ed
 s

up
po

rt 
to 

lea
se
d 

Co
mm

un
ity
 

Ce
ntr

es
, a

nd
 th

e 
tra

ns
fer

 o
f a

ll c
en

tre
s t

o 
the

 le
as
ed

 m
od

el 
for

 fu
ll i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 by
 

20
12

.   
 At 

its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 2

4 
Ma

rch
 2

01
1, 

the
 

Ed
uc
ati
on

, C
ult
ure

 a
nd
 S

po
rt 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ag
ree

d t
ha

t a
ll c

om
mu

nit
y c

en
tre

s m
ov
e t

o 
a 

lea
se
 ty

pe
 m

od
el 

by
 3

1 
Ma

rch
 2

01
2, 

ma
na
ge

d 
by
 c
om

mu
nit
y 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 a

s 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 t

o 
the

 f
ac
ility

, 
an

d 
fur

the
r 

ag
ree

d, 
am

on
gs
t o

the
r th

ing
s:-
 

 (i) 
 to

 n
ote

 th
at 

a 
fut

ure
 r
ep

ort
 w

ill 
be

 
bro

ug
ht 

to 
Co

mm
itte

e o
n t

he
 fu

tur
e o

f T
orr

y 
Le

arn
ing

 H
ou

se
, T

illy
 F
lat
 a
nd

 C
um

mi
ng

s 
Pa

rk 
Fla

t; 
 (ii)

  
to 

ins
tru

ct 
the

 D
ire
cto

r o
f E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 
Sp

ort
 to

 c
arr

y 
ou

t a
 d
eta

ile
d 

an
aly

sis
 
of 

all
 
fun

de
d 

ac
tiv
ity
 
(bo

th 
ex
ter

na
lly 

an
d 
int
ern

all
y 
de

live
red

), 
tak

ing
 

int
o 
co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 a
 s
oc
ial
 a
nd

 e
co
no

mi
c 

im
pa

ct 
an

aly
sis

 o
f e

ac
h 
ac
tiv
ity
, r

ep
ort

ing
 

ba
ck
 to

 an
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 C
om

mi
tte

e; 

to 
ex
plo

re 
thi

s o
pti
on
, t
his

 w
ill 
be
 

rep
or
ted

 
to 

co
mm

itte
e 

as
 

ap
pr
op
ria
te.
 I
t 
is 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 

tha
t t
his

 el
em

en
t i
s r

em
ov
ed
 fr
om

 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
Bu

sin
es
s 

St
ate

me
nt.
 

 Fe
br
ua
ry 

20
11
 B

ud
ge
t M

ee
tin
g 
– 

An
 im

ple
me

nta
tio

n 
pla

n 
on
 h
ow

 
the

 r
ed
uc
tio

n 
in 

fun
din

g 
for

 th
e 

Co
mm

un
itie

s 
Te
am

 
wi
ll 

be
 

de
liv
ere

d 
wa

s 
pr
es
en
ted

 i
n 

the
 

rep
or
t 
tha

t 
wa

s 
co
ns
ide

red
 b

y 
Ed

uc
ati
on
, C

ult
ur
e 
an
d 
Sp

or
t o

n 
23
/3/
11
, 

 
Fo
llo
wi
ng
 
thi

s, 
the

 
se
rvi
ce
 

ha
s 

no
w 

be
en
 

re-
en
gin

ee
red

 
an
d 

sta
ffin

g 
str

uc
tur

es
 p
ut 

in 
pla

ce
 w
hic

h 
wi
ll 

se
e 

the
 d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
the

 b
ud
ge
t 

sa
vin

gs
. I
t i
s 
rec

om
me

nd
ed
 th

at 
thi

s 
ele

me
nt 

is 
rem

ov
ed
 fr
om

 th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e B

us
ine

ss
 St

ate
me

nt.
 

 24
/3/
11
 de

cis
ion

s: 
 

(i) 
Inf

or
ma

tio
n 

on
 
the

se
 

fac
ilit
ies

 w
as
 br

ou
gh
t to

 
the

 a
tte
nti
on
 w

ith
in 

a 
rep

or
t 

co
ns
ide

red
 
by
 

EC
&S

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
on
 

15
/9/
11
. 

It 
is 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 th

at 
thi
s 

is 
rem

ov
ed
 f

ro
m 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

Bu
sin

es
s 

St
ate

me
nt.
 

(ii)
 

De
tai
led

 a
na
lys

is 
of 

all
 

                                    

Page 89



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

                   Ed
uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
2 J

un
e 2

01
1 

Ar
tic
le 
10
 

           Ed
uc
ati
on

, 

 (iii
)  

to 
ins

tru
ct 

the
 D

ire
cto

r o
f E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt t

o r
ep
ort

 ba
ck
 to

 a 
fut

ure
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

on
 f

utu
re 

pri
ori

ty 
are

as
 o

f 
se
rvi
ce
 d
eli
ve
ry,

 b
as
ed

 o
n 
fee

db
ac
k 
fro

m 
me

mb
ers

 of
 th

is 
Co

mm
itte

e; 
 (iv
) 

 
to 

no
te 

the
 

se
rvi
ce
 

de
live

ry 
im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 o

f t
he

 r
ed
uc
ed

 b
ud

ge
t, 

an
d 

se
ek
 

mo
re 

inf
orm

ati
on

 
on

 
se
rvi
ce
 

im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 in
 fu

tur
e r

ep
ort

s; 
 an

d 
 (v)

  
to 

ins
tru

ct 
the

 D
ire

cto
r o

f E
du

ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 
to 

rev
iew

 th
e n

um
be

r o
f 

co
mm

un
ity
 fa

cili
tie
s 
wit

hin
 A

be
rde

en
 C

ity
, 

as
 
pa

rt 
of 

the
 
wid

er 
se
rvi
ce
 
as
se
t 

ma
na
ge

me
nt 

pla
n 

for
 E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt. 

 At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 

of 
2 

Ju
ne

 2
01

1, 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
res

olv
ed

, 
am

on
gs
t 

oth
er 

thi
ng

s:-
 

(i) 
 t
o 

no
te 

the
 o

pti
on

s 
tha

t 
are

 b
ein

g 
de

ve
lop

ed
 in

 re
lat
ion

 to
 e

ac
h 

co
mm

un
ity
 

lea
rni

ng
 ce

ntr
e, 

an
d t

o a
gre

e t
ha
t a

 fu
rth

er 
rep

ort
 w
ill 
co
me

 to
 th

e n
ex
t C

om
mi
tte

e w
ith
 

firm
 

rec
om

me
nd

ati
on

s 
for

 
va
rio

us
 

co
mm

un
ity
 ce

ntr
es
;  a

nd
 

 (ii)
  

to 
ag

ree
 t
o 

pro
vid

e 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Co
mm

itte
es
 w

ith
 a

 t
ran

sit
ion

 g
ran

t 
for

 
20

11
/12

 a
nd
 to

 re
mi
t t
his

 to
 th

e 
Fin

an
ce
 

an
d 

Re
so
urc

es
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

for
 

co
ns
ide

rat
ion

. 
 Th

e 
Co

mm
itte

e 
ag

ree
d, 

am
on
gs
t 
oth

er 

fun
de
d 

ac
tiv
ity
 –

 t
his

 
wo

rk 
is 

on
go
ing

 a
nd
 it
 

is 
pla

nn
ed
 th

at 
a r

ep
or
t 

wi
ll 

be
 

br
ou
gh
t 

to 
co
mm

itte
e 

on
 

the
 

int
eri
m 

ou
tco

me
s 

of 
thi

s 
pie

ce
 o

f 
wo

rk 
in 

Ma
y/ 
Ju
ne
 20

12
. 

(iii
) 

Th
e 

fut
ur
e 

pr
ior

ity
 

are
as
 

of 
se
rvi
ce
 

de
liv
ery

 w
ere

 r
ep
or
ted

 
to 

EC
&S

 C
om

mi
tte
e 
on
 

15
/9/
11
 a
s 
pa
rt 

of 
the

 
EC

&S
 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Im
pr
ov
em

en
t P

lan
. I 

t is
 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 th

at 
thi
s 

is 
rem

ov
ed
 f

ro
m 

the
  

Co
mm

itte
e 

Bu
sin

es
s 

St
ate

me
nt.
  

(iv
) 

Th
e 
cu
rre

nt 
po
sit
ion

 o
f 

the
 

se
rvi
ce
 

de
liv
ery

 
im
pli
ca
tio

ns
 (
inc

lud
ing

 
a s

na
ps
ho
t o

f w
or
k t

ha
t 

ha
s b

ee
n c

ea
se
d) 

of 
the

 
red

uc
ed
 
bu
dg
et 

wa
s 

inc
lud

ed
 

wi
thi
n 

an
 

ap
pe
nd
ix 

of 
the

 1
5/9

/11
 

Up
da
te 

on
 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

Bu
dg
et 

De
cis

ion
 re

po
rt.
 Fu

rth
er 

se
rvi
ce
 

de
liv
ery

 
im
pli
ca
tio

ns
 

wi
ll 

be
 

rep
or
ted

 t
o 

co
mm

itte
e 

as
 

req
uir

ed
. 

It 
is 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 th

at 
thi
s 

is 
rem

ov
ed
 f

ro
m 

the
 

                                   
23

.02
.12

 

Page 90



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

  
15

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11

 
Ar
tic
le 
13
 

 

thi
ng

s, 
to 

rec
eiv

e r
ep

ort
s a

s f
oll
ow

s:-
 

(i) 
 
Ro

se
mo

un
t 

Co
mm

un
ity
 
Ce

ntr
e 

- 
Of
fic
ers

 
to 

rep
ort

 
ba
ck
 
to 

a 
fut

ure
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

on
 
ne
go

tia
tio
ns
 
wit

h 
Ar
ts 

De
ve
lop

me
nt,

 A
rts

 E
du
ca
tio
n, 

Cit
y 
Mo

ve
s 

an
d 

Pe
ac
oc
k 

Vis
ua

l A
rts

 a
nd

 a
ny
 o

the
r 

int
ere

ste
d 

org
an

isa
tio
ns
, a

bo
ut 

po
ten

tia
lly 

be
ing

 ba
se
d i

n t
his

 bu
ild
ing

 al
on
g w

ith
 th

e 
Co

mm
un

ity
 C

en
tre

 a
nd
 p

ote
nti
all
y 

oth
er 

pu
bli
c b

od
ies

; 
(ii)

 H
illy

lan
ds
 –

 T
o 

tak
e 

no
 a

cti
on

 a
t 

pre
se
nt,

 a
nd

 o
ffic

ers
 in

str
uc
ted

 to
 re

po
rt 

ba
ck
 to

 th
e C

om
mi
tte

e o
n M

as
tric

k Y
ou

ng
 

Pe
op

le’
s P

roj
ec
t. 

(iii
)  
to 

su
sp
en

d S
tan

din
g O

rde
rs 

to 
rev

ok
e 

the
 
Co

mm
itte

e’s
 
de
cis

ion
 
of 

2 
Ju
ne
 

de
leg

ati
ng

 a
uth

ori
ty 

to 
off

ice
rs 

to 
fin
ali
se
 

the
 M

an
ag

em
en

t A
gre

em
en

t, 
Co

ns
titu

tio
n 

an
d 

Le
as
e, 

an
d 

to 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

co
nti
nu

e n
eg

oti
ati
on

s o
n t

he
se
 do

cu
me

nts
, 

in 
co
ns
ult
ati
on

 w
ith
 t
he

 C
on

ve
ne

rs 
an

d 
Vic

e 
Co

nv
en

ers
 o
f t
he

 E
du

ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

, F
ina

nc
e 

an
d 

Re
so
urc

es
, a

nd
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 

Po
licy

 
an

d 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 

Co
mm

itte
es
, 
an

d 
to 

rep
ort

 b
ac
k 

to 
the

 
No

ve
mb

er 
me

eti
ng

 o
f t

he
 C

om
mi
tte

e 
on

 
the

 ou
tco

me
. 

(iv
) t
o 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

ca
rry

 o
ut 

fur
the

r 
inv

es
tig
ati
on

s 
reg

ard
ing

 t
he

 p
rov

isio
n 

of 
mo

re 
co
mp

reh
en

siv
e 
ind

em
nit
y 
ins

ura
nc
e 

co
ve
r fo

r m
em

be
rs 

of 
the

 co
mm

un
ity
 ce

ntr
e 

ma
na
ge

me
nt 

co
mm

itte
es
 

inc
lud

ing
 

vo
lun

tee
rs,

 in
clu

din
g 
fin
an

cia
l im

pli
ca
tio
ns
, 

an
d 

to 
rep

ort
 b

ac
k 

to 
the

 N
ov
em

be
r 

me
eti
ng

 of
 th

e C
om

mi
tte

e o
n t

he
 ou

tco
me

. 
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

Bu
sin

es
s 

St
ate

me
nt.
 

(v)
 

A 
rev

iew
 o
f t
he
 n
um

be
r 

of 
co
mm

un
ity
 fa

cil
itie

s 
wi
ll 

be
 c
arr

ied
 o

ut 
as
 

pa
rt 

of 
the

 a
na
lys

is 
of 

fun
de
d 
ac
tiv
ity
, a

nd
 a
n 

int
eri
m 

rep
or
t 
wi
ll 

be
 

br
ou
gh
t to

 co
mm

itte
e i
n 

Ma
y/ 
Ju
ne
 20

12
. 

 2/6
/11

 de
cis

ion
s: 

 
(i) 

Th
e r

ep
or
t to

 co
mm

itte
e 

on
 

15
/9/
11
 

inc
lud

ed
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s 

ab
ou
t 

sp
ec
ific

 
co
mm

un
ity
 

ce
ntr

es
 

wh
ere

 
off

ice
rs 

we
re 

rec
om

me
nd
ing

 
an
 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 
oth

er 
tha

n 
pr
og
res

sin
g 

tow
ard

s 
a 

sta
nd
ard

 “
lea

se
d”
 ty

pe
 

mo
de
l. 

It 
is 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 th

at 
thi
s 

is 
rem

ov
ed
 f

ro
m 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

Bu
sin

es
s 

St
ate

me
nt.
 

(ii)
 

Tr
an
sit
ion

 G
ran

t –
 th

is 
wa

s r
em

itte
d t

o F
ina

nc
e 

an
d 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

Co
mm

itte
e 

an
d 

ap
pr
ov
ed
 

by
 

tha
t 

co
mm

itte
e. 

A 
sy
ste

m 
for

 
the

 
pr
ov
isi
on
 
of 

Tr
an
sit
ion

 G
ran

ts 
ha
s 

                     

Page 91



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

no
w 

be
en
 p
ut 

in 
pla

ce
. 

It 
is 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 th

at 
thi

s 
is 

rem
ov
ed
 f
ro
m 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

Bu
sin

es
s s

tat
em

en
t. 

 15
/9/
11
 D
ec
isi
on
s: 

 (i) 
Ro

se
mo

un
t –

 th
is 

wo
rk 

is 
on
go
ing

 
an
d 

inf
or
ma

tio
n 

ab
ou
t 

pr
og
res

s 
is 

inc
lud

ed
 in

 
the

 
rep

or
t 

on
 

the
 

24
/11

/11
 ag

en
da
. 

(ii)
 

Hi
lly
lan

ds
 a
nd
 M

YP
P 
– 

inf
or
ma

tio
n 

an
d 

a 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on
 

on
 

thi
s 
is 

inc
lud

ed
 in

 th
e 

rep
or
t 
on
 t
he
 2
4/1

1/1
1 

ag
en
da
. 

(iii
) 

A 
up
da
te 
on
 th

e v
ari

ou
s 

leg
al 

ag
ree

me
nts

 
is 

inc
lud

ed
 i
n 

the
 r
ep
or
t 

on
 th

e 2
4/1

1/1
1 a

ge
nd
a. 

(iv
) 

(iv
) 

Inf
or
ma

tio
n 

on
 

ins
ur
an
ce
 is
 in
clu

de
d i
n 

the
 

rep
or
t 

on
 

the
 

24
/11

/11
 ag

en
da
. 

 
4.

 
Ed

uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
20

 Ja
nu

ary
 

20
11

 
Ar
tic
le 
8 

Ka
im
hil
l C

om
mu

nit
y L

ea
rn
ing

 H
ub
 

 It 
wa

s 
als

o 
ag

ree
d 

tha
t 
off

ice
rs 

wo
uld

 
rep

ort
 b
ac
k 
to 

the
 E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
in 

the
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n 
of 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 M
an

ag
em

en
t A

gre
em

en
ts 

for
 

co
mm

un
ity
 s
pa

ce
s 
in 

oth
er 

3R
s 
bu

ild
ing

s 

 Th
is 

ma
tte

r i
s 
be

ing
 p
rog

res
se
d 
as
 

pa
rt 

of 
the

 w
ork

 u
nd

er 
Ite

m 
3 

– 
“R

ed
uc

ed
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s 
Te

am
 

/ 
Le

as
ed

 C
om

mu
nit

y 
Ce

ntr
es

” 
an

d 
as
 

su
ch
 

is 
rec

om
me

nd
ed
 
for

 
rem

ov
al.

 

He
ad

 of
 Le

ga
l a
nd

 
De

mo
cra

tic
 

Se
rvi
ce
s 

15
.09

.11
 

 
 

Page 92



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

wh
ich

 e
ns
ure

 o
pe

rat
ing

 g
ov
ern

an
ce
 a

nd
 

en
ab

le 
mo

nit
ori

ng
 
of 

us
e 

wit
hin

 
the

 
op

era
tio
na

l s
erv

ice
s a

gre
em

en
t o

f th
e 3

Rs
 

co
ntr

ac
t. 

 
5.

 
Ed

uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
27

 M
ay
 20

10
 

Ar
tic
le 
7 

 (R
es
ou

rce
s 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Co

mm
itte

e 
5 F

eb
rua

ry 
20

09
 

Ar
tic
le 
12

) 

St
 M

ac
ha
r A

SG
 –
 C
om

mu
nit
y 
Le
arn

ing
 

Hu
b 

At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 2

7 
Ma

y 
20

10
, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e r

es
olv

ed
, a

mo
ng

st 
oth

er 
thi
ng

s, 
to 

ins
tru

ct 
off

ice
rs 

to 
un

de
rta

ke
 f
urt

he
r 

wo
rk,

 in
 lia

iso
n 
wit

h 
pa

rtn
er 

ag
en

cie
s a

nd
 

oth
er 

Dir
ec
tor

ate
s, 

an
d 

rep
ort

 b
ac
k 

on
 

me
diu

m 
to 

lon
g-t

erm
 c
om

mu
nit
y 
lea

rni
ng

 
hu

b o
pti
on

s f
or 

St 
Ma

ch
ar 

AS
G.
 

Th
e 

Co
mm

un
ity
 L

ea
rni
ng

 h
ub
 a

t 
Se

ato
n 

3R
s 

Sc
ho

ol 
co
mm

en
ce
d 

op
era

tio
n 
in 

Oc
tob

er 
20
10

.  
Of
fic
ers

 
wil

l b
e 

loo
kin

g 
at 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 t
o 

cre
ate

 a 
co
mm

un
ity
 le
arn

ing
 hu

b i
n a

 
fut

ure
 r
eg

en
era

tio
n 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

in 
the

 
Til
lyd

ron
e 

are
a, 

wo
rki
ng

 
in 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
wit

h 
oth

er 
Co

un
cil 

se
rvi
ce
s a

nd
 lo

ca
l p

art
ne

rs,
 a
nd

 w
ill 

rep
ort

 ba
ck
 in
 Se

pte
mb

er.
 

 Th
is 

ite
m 

is 
aff
ec
ted

 
by
 
the

 
red

uc
tio

n 
to 

the
 
co
mm

un
itie

s 
tea

m.
   

 Du
e 
to 

the
 re

du
cti
on
 in

 b
ud
ge
ts,
 

the
 

se
rvi
ce
 

is 
pr
og
res

sin
g 

Le
arn

ing
 Pa

rtn
ers

hip
s w

ith
in 
are

as
 

rat
he
r t
ha
n t

he
 co

nc
ep
t o

f p
hy
sic

al 
co
mm

un
ity
 

lea
rn
ing

 
hu
bs
. 

Le
arn

ing
 P
art

ne
rsh

ips
 o
pe
rat

e 
as
 

“v
irt
ua
l” 
hu
bs
, b

rin
gin

g 
tog

eth
er 

a 
ran

ge
 
of 

lea
rn
ing

 
sta

ke
ho
lde

rs 
wi
thi
n 

a 
sp
ec
ific

 
ge
og
rap

hic
al 

are
a. 
Th
es
e k

ey
 st

ak
eh
old

ers
 ha

ve
 

a k
ey
 ro

le 
in 

de
ter

mi
nin

g 
wh

at 
the

 
lea

rn
ing

 
off

eri
ng
 

cu
rre

ntl
y 

is 
wi
thi
n 
tha

t a
rea

, i
de
nti
fy 

an
y g

ap
s 

an
d 
are

as
 o
f o

ve
r p

ro
vis

ion
, a

nd
 

wo
rki
ng
 t
og
eth

er 
to 

en
su
re 

tha
t 

the
 
tot

al 
lea

rn
ing

 
off

eri
ng
 
is 

He
ad

 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

18
.11

.10
 

 

Page 93



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

me
eti
ng
 

the
 

req
uir

em
en
ts 

of 
life

lon
g 

lea
rn
ing

 
in 

tha
t 

co
mm

un
ity
. T

he
 le
arn

ing
 ac

tiv
itie

s 
tak

e 
pla

ce
 in

 a
 ra

ng
e 
of 

loc
ati
on
s 

inc
lud

ing
 

co
mm

un
ity
 

ce
ntr

es
, 

sc
ho
ols

, 
sp
or
ts 

fac
ilit
ies

, 
ch
ur
ch
es
, s
tre

ets
 et
c. 
 

 Th
e 
de
tai
l o

f t
his

 w
as
 c
ov
ere

d 
in 

the
 
rep

or
t 

“Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n 

of 
Bu

dg
et 

De
cis

ion
 

– 
Re

du
ce
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s 
Te
am

” 
tha

t 
wa

s 
co
ns
ide

red
 a

t 
the

 2
4/3

/11
 E

C&
S 

Co
mm

itte
e. 

 It 
is 

rec
om

me
nd
ed
 t
ha
t 
thi
s 

is 
rem

ov
ed
 
fro

m 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
Bu

sin
es
s s

tat
em

en
t. 

 
6.

 
Ed

uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
18

 Fe
bru

ary
 

20
10

, A
rtic

le 
21
 

Bo
ok
ing

s a
nd
 Le

ttin
gs
 R
ev
iew

 
Th

e 
Co

mm
itte

e, 
am

on
gs
t o

the
r t

hin
gs
 (i
) 

ag
ree

d 
to 

rec
eiv

e 
a 

rep
ort

 b
ac
k 
on
 th

e 
iss

ue
 

of 
an

 
ele

ctr
on

ic 
Le

isu
re 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
Sy

ste
m;
 (

ii) 
ag

ree
d 

tha
t 

off
ice

rs 
wo

uld
 p

roc
ee

d 
wit

h 
dis

cu
ss
ion

s 
wit

h 
Tra

de
 U

nio
ns
 a
bo
ut 

op
tio
ns
 fo

r t
he
 

de
plo

ym
en

t o
f j
an

ito
ria

l c
ov
er 

an
d 
rep

ort
 

ba
ck
; (

iii)
 th

at 
off

ice
rs 

rep
ort

 to
 a
 fu

tur
e 

me
eti
ng

 o
n 
the

 o
utc

om
e 
of 

the
 re

vie
w 

of 
the

 C
orp

ora
te 

Bu
dg

et;
 a
nd

 (i
v) 

to 
rec

eiv
e 

ora
l 
up

da
tes

 a
t 
ea

ch
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 t
he
 

Bo
ok
ing

s 
an

d 
Le

ttin
gs
 R

ev
iew

 a
nd

 i
ts 

im
ple

me
nta

tio
n. 

  
 At 

its
 m

ee
tin
g 
on

 2
0 
Ja
nu

ary
 2
01

1, 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
he

ard
 

tha
t 

off
ice

rs 
ha

d 

 At
 its

 m
ee
tin

g o
n 2

 Ju
ne
 20

11
, th

e 
Co

mm
itte

e 
ag
ree

d 
tha

t 
or
al 

up
da
tes

 w
ou
ld 

on
ly 

be
 r
eq
uir

ed
 

wh
en
 
the

re 
wa

s 
pr
og
res

s 
to 

rep
or
t, 

an
d 

no
ted

 t
ha
t 
a 

rep
or
t 

wo
uld

 c
om

e 
ba
ck
 to

 C
om

mi
tte
e 

on
 t
he
 r
ev
iew

 i
n 

thr
ee
 c

yc
les

’ 
tim

e. 

He
ad

 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

Ja
nu

ary
 

20
12

 
 

Page 94



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

rev
iew

ed
 th

e r
ati
on

ale
 fo

r g
rou

ps
 re

ce
ivin

g 
fre

e l
ets

 vi
a t

he
 C
orp

ora
te 

Bu
dg

et 
he

ld 
by
 

Co
rpo

rat
e 
Go

ve
rna

nc
e, 

an
d 
it 
wa

s 
no

ted
 

tha
t a

 r
ep

ort
 w

ou
ld 

be
 p

res
en

ted
 to

 a
 

fut
ure

 m
ee
tin
g 
of 

the
 C

om
mi
tte

e 
on
 th

is 
ma

tte
r. 

 F
ina

lly,
 a

 re
po

rt 
wo

uld
 a

lso
 b

e 
pro

du
ce
d 
on

 th
e 
rev

iew
 o
f t
he

 A
cc
es
s t

o 
Le

isu
re 

Sc
he

me
 t
o 

en
su
re 

tha
t 
it 

wa
s 

ac
hie

vin
g i
ts 
ob
jec

tiv
es
. 

 At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 2

4 
Ma

rch
 2

01
1, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ap
pro

ve
d 

the
 
pri

nc
ipl
e 

of 
im
ple

me
nti
ng

 n
ew

 s
taf

fin
g 

arr
an
ge

me
nts

 
for

 ev
en

ing
s a

nd
 w
ee

ke
nd

s l
ets

, s
ub

jec
t to

 
the

 o
utc

om
e 
of 

de
tai
led

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t w

ith
 

sta
ff 

an
d 

tra
de
 u

nio
ns
 b

y 
En

ter
pri

se
, 

Pla
nn

ing
 an

d I
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re.

 
 

7.
 
Ed

uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
24

 M
arc

h 2
01

1 
Ar
tic
le 
10
 

Pr
ov
isi
on
 fo
r C

hil
dr
en
 W
ith
 A
dd
itio

na
l 

Su
pp
or
t N

ee
ds
 – 
Ra

ed
en
 

Th
e 

Re
so
urc

es
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Co

mm
itte

e 
ha

d 
on

 1
6 

Ju
ne

 2
00

9, 
ap

pro
ve
d 

the
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a n

ew
 sp

ec
ial
ist
 fa

cili
ty 

for
 

ch
ild
ren

 w
ith
 a

dd
itio

na
l 

su
pp

ort
 n

ee
ds
 

ari
sin

g f
rom

 co
mp

lex
 fa

cto
rs 

on
 th

e c
urr

en
t 

Ra
ed

en
 D
ev
elo

pm
en

t C
en

tre
 si
te.

 
 At 

its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 2

4 
Ma

rch
 2

01
1, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e i
ns
tru

cte
d o

ffic
ers

 to
 co

mp
let
e a

 
ful
l b

us
ine

ss
 c
as
e 
for

 th
e 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 ne
w 
sc
ho

ol 
an

d c
am

pu
s o

n t
he

 si
te 

of 
the

 ex
ist
ing

 R
ae

de
n C

en
tre

, a
nd

 ag
ree

d i
n 

pri
nc
ipl
e t

o t
he
 cl
os
ure

 of
 R
ae

de
n N

urs
ery

; 
the

 al
loc

ati
on

 of
 ch

ild
ren

 to
 th

e 3
 pr

op
os
ed

 
de

ve
lop

me
nta

l 
nu

rse
rie
s; 

the
 t

em
po
rar

y 
de

ca
nt 

of 
ch
ild
ren

 to
 th

e 
for

me
r B

rae
sid

e 

At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 
on

 2
 Ju

ne
 2
01

1, 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
co
ns
ide

red
 

a 
rep

ort
 

wh
ich

 a
dv
ise

d 
tha

t t
he

 m
ajo

rity
 o

f 
ch
ild
ren

 ha
d n

ow
 be

en
 pl
ac
ed

 in
 on

e 
of 

the
 

thr
ee

 
de
ve
lop

me
nta

l 
nu

rse
rie

s, 
an

d 
tha

t 
the

re 
wa

s 
no
 

lon
ge

r t
he

 re
qu

ire
me

nt 
to 

ke
ep

 th
e 

nu
rse

ry 
pro

vis
ion

 
op

era
tin
g 

at 
Ra

ed
en

 o
r t
o 
rel

oc
ate

 th
e 
pro

vis
ion

 
to 

Br
ae

sid
e 
as
 o
rig

ina
lly 

en
vis

ag
ed

.  
Th

e 
rep

ort
 f
urt

he
r 
ad

vis
ed

 t
ha
t 
a 

bu
sin

es
s c

as
e w

as
 be

ing
 de

ve
lop

ed
 

in 
rel

ati
on

 to
 fu

nd
ing

 fo
r 
the

 n
ew

 
ca
mp

us
 o
n 
the

 R
ae

de
n 
sit
e, 

to 
be
 

pre
se
nte

d 
to 

the
 

Fin
an

ce
 

an
d 

Re
so
urc

es
 C

om
mi
tte

e 
on

 1
6 

Ju
ne

 
20

11
. 

 

He
ad

 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

02
.06

.11
 

Ju
ne
 20

12
 

Page 95



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

Sc
ho

ol,
 to

 e
na

ble
 th

e 
co
ns
tru

cti
on

 o
f t
he
 

ne
w 
sc
ho

ol 
an

d c
am

pu
s o

n t
he

 si
te 

of 
the

 
Ra

ed
en

 C
en

tre
, s

ub
jec

t t
o t

he
 ap

pro
va
l o

f 
the

 b
us
ine

ss
 c

as
e 

by
 t
he

 F
ina

nc
e 

an
d 

Re
so
urc

es
 C
om

mi
tte

e. 
 At 

its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 2

1 
Ap

ril 
20

11
, 
the

 
Fin

an
ce
 

an
d 

Re
so
urc

es
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

co
ns
ide

red
 
a 

rep
ort

 o
n 

the
 
on
go

ing
 

dis
cu
ss
ion

s 
wit

h 
Hu

b 
Co

, a
nd

 r
es
olv

ed
 

tha
t:- 

(i) 
the

 H
ea

ds
 o

f 
Fin

an
ce
 a

nd
 A

ss
et 

Ma
na

ge
me

nt 
& 

Op
era

tio
ns
 

co
nti
nu

e 
dis

cu
ss
ion

s 
wit

h 
Hu

b 
Co

, a
lon

g 
wit

h 
the

 
co
mp

let
ion

 o
f d

eta
ile
d 
Bu

sin
es
s C

as
es
 b
y 

all
 a
pp

rop
ria

te 
Se

rvi
ce
s, 

to 
de

ter
mi
ne

 th
e 

fin
an

cia
l v
iab

ility
 of

 th
is 
pro

po
sa
l; 

(ii)
  t
he

 D
ire

cto
r o

f E
du

ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 e
va
lua

tes
 th

e 
sp
ec
ific

 im
pa

ct 
of 

no
t 

pro
gre

ss
ing

 th
e 

Ra
ed

en
 a

nd
 B

uc
ks
bu

rn/
 

Ne
wh

ills
 

pro
jec

ts 
wit

hin
 

the
 

cu
rre

nt 
tim

es
ca
les

, a
nd

 re
po

rts
 th

es
e 
to 

the
 n
ex
t 

me
eti
ng

 o
f E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
Co

mm
itte

e; 
(iii
) 

 
ap

pro
pri

ate
 
off
ice

rs 
co
nti
nu

e 
to 

co
ns
ide

r o
the

r fu
nd

ing
 ar

ran
ge

me
nts

;  
(iv
)  

a 
ful
l r
ep

ort
 is

 s
ub
mi
tte

d 
to 

the
 n
ex
t 

Fin
an

ce
 an

d R
es
ou

rce
s C

om
mi
tte

e o
n t

he
 

ou
tco

me
 of

 th
e a

bo
ve
;  a

nd
 

(v)
  

to 
ins

tru
ct 

tha
t 
ev
ery

on
e 

wit
h 

an
 

int
ere

st 
be

 a
dv
ise

d 
im
me

dia
tel
y 

tha
t 
a 

de
ca
nt 

in 
the

 su
mm

er 
rec

es
s w

as
 un

like
ly.
 

 

A 
ve
rb
al 

up
da
te 

wa
s 
giv

en
 to

 th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e o

n 1
5 S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
1. 

Sin
ce
 th

en
, f

un
din

g 
dis

cu
ss
ion

s 
ha
ve
 p
ro
gr
es
se
d 
bu
t h

av
e n

ot 
ye
t 

co
nc
lud

ed
. It

 is
 an

tic
ipa

ted
 th

at 
a 

ful
l 
rep

or
t 
wi
ll 

be
 b

ro
ug
ht 

to 
Co

mm
itte

e i
n t
hr
ee
 cy

cle
s’ 
tim

e. 

8.
 
Ed

uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
Co

rd
yc
e P

ro
jec

t 
At 

its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 1

5 
Ap

ril 
20

10
, 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e i
ns
tru

cte
d o

ffic
ers

 to
 co

nd
uc
t a

n 
 An

 u
pd
ate

 w
as
 in

clu
de
d 

in 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
Bu

sin
es
s 

St
ate

me
nt 

He
ad

 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

18
.11

.10
 

 

Page 96



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

15
 Ap

ril 
20

10
 

Ar
tic
le 
20
 

op
tio
ns
 a
pp

rai
sa
l o

n t
he
 re

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
the

 C
ord

yc
e s

ite
 to

 in
clu

de
, in

 ad
dit
ion

 to
 a 

rep
lac

em
en
t s

ch
oo

l, a
 sp

ec
ial
ist
 re

sid
en

tia
l 

fac
ility

 on
 a 

sp
en

d-t
o-s

av
e b

as
is,
 su

bje
ct 
to 

co
nfi
rm

ati
on

 o
f t
he

 re
qu

ire
d 
fun

din
g. 

 T
he
 

op
tio
ns
 a

pp
rai

sa
l 

wa
s 

ref
err

ed
 t

o 
the

 
Fin

an
ce
 a
nd

 R
es
ou

rce
s 
Co

mm
itte

e 
of 

11
 

Ma
y 2

01
0, 

for
 fu

nd
ing

 a
pp

rov
al.
  F

un
din

g 
ap

pro
va
l w

as
 gr

an
ted

.   
 Th

e C
om

mi
tte

e r
ec
eiv

ed
 an

 or
al 
up

da
te 

at 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 1

8 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

10
, a

nd
 

res
olv

ed
:- 

(i) 
 to

 no
te 

the
 up

da
te 

pro
vid

ed
, a

nd
 th

at 
a 

rep
ort

 w
ou

ld 
co
me

 b
ac
k 
to 

Co
mm

itte
e 
on
 

the
 op

tio
ns
 ap

pra
isa

l, t
o i

nc
lud

e a
 nu

mb
er 

of 
dif
fer

en
t 
op
tio
ns
 o

n 
ho

w 
to 

ma
na
ge

 
pro

vis
ion

; 
(ii)

  t
o r

eq
ue

st 
tha

t in
 pr

ep
ari

ng
 th

e r
ep

ort
, 

off
ice

rs 
tak

e 
ac
co
un

t o
f t

he
 S

oc
ial
 C

are
 

an
d 

W
ell
be

ing
 
im
pli
ca
tio
ns
 
an

d 
ma

ke
 

me
nti
on

 o
f 

the
 p

rov
isio

n 
of 

ch
ild
ren

’s 
ho

me
s 

 A 
bu

lle
tin
 

up
da

te 
wa

s 
pro

vid
ed

 
to 

Co
mm

itte
e 
on

 2
 J
un

e 
20

11
, a

nd
 o
ffic

ers
 

wil
l a

im
 to

 p
rov

ide
 a

 fu
ll 
rep

ort
 to

 th
e 

Se
pte

mb
er 

me
eti
ng
, f

oll
ow

ing
 d

isc
us
sio

n 
wit

h t
he
 ar

ch
ite
cts

 in
vo
lve

d. 
 

on
 15

 Se
pte

mb
er 
20
11
. 

 A 
rep

or
t 

is 
co
nta

ine
d 

in 
the

 
Inf

or
ma

tio
n B

ull
eti
n. 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

9.
 
Fin

an
ce
 an

d 
Re

so
urc

es
 

17
 Ju

ne
 20

10
 

Ar
tic
le 
34
 

Tu
llo
s S

wi
mm

ing
 Po

ol 
– I
nte

rn
al 
Wo

rks
 

Th
e C

om
mi
tte

e h
ad

 un
de
r c

on
sid

era
tio
n a

 
req

ue
st 

fro
m 

Ed
uc
ati
on

, C
ult
ure

 an
d S

po
rt 

Co
mm

itte
e t

o c
on

sid
er 

urg
en

t fu
nd

ing
 fro

m 
the

 C
ap

ita
l P

lan
 to

 ca
rry

 o
ut 

wo
rks

 to
 th

e 
int
eri

or 
of 

the
 T

ull
os
 S

wim
mi
ng

 P
oo

l.  

 At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 1

8 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

10
, th

e C
om

mi
tte

e r
es
olv

ed
:- 

(15
) 

to 
no

te 
tha

t th
e r

ev
iew

 
of 

wa
ter

 in
 th

e c
ity
 w
ou

ld 
tak

e 
ap

pro
xim

ate
ly 

a 
ye
ar 

to 

Dir
ec
tor

 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on

, C
ult
ure

 
an

d S
po

rt 
15
.09

.11
 

24
.11

.11
 

Page 97



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

Me
mb

ers
 ex

pre
ss
ed

 th
eir
 co

nc
ern

 th
at 

no
t 

en
ou

gh
 d

eta
il 

wa
s 

inc
lud

ed
 w

ith
in 

the
 

rep
ort

, a
nd
 qu

es
tio
ne

d w
hy
 th

e r
ep

air
s h

ad
 

no
t b

ee
n c

arr
ied

 ou
t a

t a
 m

uc
h e

arl
ier

 da
te.

  
Th

e 
Co

nv
en

er 
ex
pre

ss
ed
 h
is 

co
nc
ern

 th
at 

the
 S

erv
ice

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
wa

s 
req

ue
sti
ng

 
ca
pit
al 
fun

din
g f

or 
the

 re
pa

irs
 an

d i
nti
ma

ted
 

tha
t 

Se
rvi
ce
 
Co

mm
itte

es
 
sh
ou

ld 
tak

e 
ow

ne
rsh

ip 
of 

the
ir 

No
n 

Ho
us
ing

 C
ap

ita
l 

Pr
og

ram
me

s, 
an

d r
ep

rio
riti
se
 th

eir
 bu

dg
ets

 
to 

tak
e 
ac
co
un

t o
f u

rge
nt 

ma
tte

rs 
su
ch
 as

 
thi
s c

as
e. 

 T
he
 C

om
mi
tte

e, 
am

on
gs
t o

the
r 

thi
ng

s, 
res

olv
ed

 th
at 

the
 m

att
er 

be
 re

fer
red

 
ba

ck
 to

 th
e 
Ed

uc
ati
on

, C
ult
ure

 a
nd

 S
po

rt 
Co

mm
itte

e 
in 

ord
er 

tha
t 
me

mb
ers

 m
ay
 

co
ns
ide

r t
he

 m
att

er 
as
 p
art

 o
f a

 re
vie

w 
of 

the
 N

on
 H

ou
sin

g 
Ca

pit
al 

Pr
og

ram
me

 fo
r 

tha
t S

erv
ice

. 
 At 

its
 m

ee
tin
g o

n 1
6 S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

res
olv

ed
, 

am
on
gs
t 

oth
er 

thi
ng

s, 
to 

rev
iew

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
for

 T
ull
os
 

Sw
im
mi
ng

 P
oo

l a
s 

pa
rt 

of 
a 

cit
y-w

ide
 

wa
ter

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 
pla

n, 
in 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
wit

h 
Sc

ott
ish

 S
wim

mi
ng

, S
po

rt 
Ab

erd
ee

n 
an

d 
loc

al 
sw

im
mi
ng

 c
lub

s, 
to 

inc
lud

e 
be

nc
hm

ark
ing

 
of 

Ab
erd

ee
n 

ag
ain

st 
Du

nd
ee

, E
din

bu
rgh

 an
d G

las
go

w.
 

 

co
mp

let
e, 

an
d 

to 
the

ref
ore

 
am

en
d 
the

 “r
ep

ort
 e
xp
ec
ted

” 
co
lum

n 
to 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11

;  
an

d 
 (ii)

 al
so
 in

 re
lat
ion

 to
 ite

m 
16

 (T
ull
os
 

Sw
im
mi
ng

 P
oo

l –
 In

ter
na
l W

ork
s),

 to
 

req
ue

st 
tha

t 
An

ne
tte

 B
rut

on
 a

nd
 

Pa
tric

ia 
Ca

ss
idy

 m
ee

t w
ith
 th

e 
loc

al 
W
ard

 M
em

be
rs 

to 
dis

cu
ss
 th

e 
de

tai
l 

of 
the

 re
vie

w.
 

 At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 
on

 2
0 
Ja
nu

ary
 2
01

1, 
the

 C
om

mi
tte

e 
he

ard
 th

at 
wo

rk 
ha

d 
co
mm

en
ce
d 

on
 

the
 

W
ate

r 
Ma

na
ge

me
nt 

Pla
n; 

tha
t a
 su

rve
y h

ad
 

be
en

 is
su
ed

 to
 sw

im
mi
ng

 cl
ub

s; 
an

d 
tha

t a
 b
rie
fin
g 
wo

uld
 b
e 
pro

vid
ed

 to
 

loc
al 

Me
mb

ers
 fo

llo
win

g 
a 
me

eti
ng
 

to 
be

 h
eld

 w
ith
 a

ll 
pa

rtie
s 

on
 1

4 
Fe

bru
ary

 20
11

. 
 Th

e 
Co

mm
itte

e 
wa

s 
ad

vis
ed

 o
n 
15

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

11
 th

at 
a r

ep
ort

 w
ou

ld 
be

 su
bm

itte
d t

o t
he

 ne
xt 

me
eti
ng

 on
 

the
 W

ate
r M

an
ag

em
en
t P

lan
. 

  A 
rep

or
t is

 on
 th

e c
ur
ren

t a
ge
nd
a. 

10
.E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
27

 M
ay
 20

10
 

Ar
tic
le 
14
 

Pr
og
res

s 
rep

or
t 

on
 

pr
op
os
als

 
to 

red
ev
elo

p 
Ab

erd
ee
n 

Ar
t 
Ga

lle
ry 

an
d 

rep
or
t 

on
 i
mp

ro
vin

g 
ac
ce
ss
 t

o 
the

 
Mu

se
um

s a
nd
 G
all
eri
es
 co

lle
cti
on
s 

Th
e C

om
mi
tte
e r
es
olv

ed
:- 

to 
ins

tru
ct 

off
ice

rs 
to 

pre
pa

re 
a 

ca
pit
al 

bu
sin

es
s c

as
e f

or 
fur

the
r c

on
sid

era
tio
n a

nd
 

Of
fic
ers

 co
nti
nu

e t
o w

ork
 to

 pr
ep

are
 

the
 B

us
ine

ss
 C

as
e, 

on
ce
 s
uff

icie
nt 

pro
gre

ss
 

ha
s 

be
en
 

ma
de

 
on
 

as
se
ss
ing

 th
e l

ev
el 

of 
int
ere

st 
in 

the
 

bu
sin

es
s 
an

d 
wid

er 
co
mm

un
ity
, a

s 
we

ll 
as
 t
he

 o
utc

om
es
 o

f 
the

 T
IF 

ap
pli
ca
tio
n. 

He
ad

 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

15
.09

.11
 

24
.11

.11
 

Page 98



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

rep
ort

 to
 th

e E
du

ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

Co
mm

itte
e 

on
 1

6 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20

10
, a

nd
 

Fin
an

ce
 a
nd

 R
es
ou

rce
s C

om
mi
tte

e 
on

 2
8 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
10

, 
to 

inc
lud

e 
rec

om
me

nd
ati
on

s o
n t

he
 m

os
t a

pp
rop

ria
te 

op
tio
n t

o r
ed

ev
elo

p t
he

 A
rt 
Ga

lle
ry,

 an
d o

n 
the

 c
om

mi
tm

en
t 

the
 C

ou
nc
il 

is 
be

ing
 

req
ue

ste
d t

o m
ak
e a

t th
at 

sta
ge

. 
 At 

its
 m

ee
tin
g 
on

 1
8 
No

ve
mb

er 
20

10
, t
he
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ag
ree

d 
tha

t 
a 

fun
dra

isin
g 

ca
mp

aig
n b

e p
rog

res
se
d a

t n
o n

et 
co
st 

to 
the

 C
ou

nc
il. 

 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

on
 1

5 
Se

pte
mb

er,
 

20
11

 
no

ted
 

the
 

slo
we

r 
tha

n 
ex
pe

cte
d p

rog
res

s a
nd

 th
at 

a r
ep

ort
 

wil
l 
be

 b
rou

gh
t 
to 

a 
su
bs
eq

ue
nt 

me
eti
ng

, a
s s

oo
n a

s p
os
sib

le.
 

 A 
rep

or
t 

is 
co
nta

ine
d 

in 
the

 
Inf

or
ma

tio
n B

ull
eti
n. 

11
.E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
20

 Ja
nu

ary
 

20
11

 
Ar
tic
le 
7 

Cl
os
ing

 th
e G

ap
 

At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 2

0 
Ja
nu

ary
 2

01
1, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

req
ue

ste
d 

a 
fur

the
r r

ep
ort

 o
n 

the
 g
ap

 be
tw
ee

n t
he

 lo
we

st 
att

ain
ing

 20
% 

an
d t

he
 hi

gh
es
t a

tta
ini
ng

 20
% 

of 
pu

pil
s, 

to 
inc

lud
e a

ny
 le
ss
on

s l
ea

rne
d f

rom
 ho

w 
oth

er 
loc

al 
au

tho
riti
es
 ha

d t
ac
kle

d t
he

 pr
ob

lem
. 

 At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 2

 J
un

e 
20

11
, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 
co
ns
ide

red
 a
 re

po
rt 
in 

rel
ati
on
 

to 
Clo

sin
g 

the
 G

ap
 a

nd
 (

i) 
ins

tru
cte

d 
off

ice
rs 

to 
de

ve
lop

 a
 p

oli
cy
 o

n 
rai

sin
g 

ac
hie

ve
me

nt 
wh

ich
 

se
ts 

ou
t 

the
 

ap
pro

ac
he

s 
to 

be
 ta

ke
n 

in 
sc
ho

ols
 a

nd
 

ac
ros

s 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

to 
red

uc
e 

the
 g

ap
 i
n 

att
ain

me
nt,
 a
nd

 (i
i) 
req

ue
ste

d 
tha

t C
los

ing
 

the
 G

ap
 b
e 
co
ns
ide

red
 a
lon

gs
ide

 th
e 
Big

 
No

ise
: S

ist
em

a 
Sc

otl
an
d 
pro

jec
t i
n 
fut

ure
 

rep
ort

s. 
 

Th
is 

ye
ar’

s 
att

ain
me

nt 
rev

iew
 

me
eti
ng
s 

wi
th 

all
 p

rim
ary

 a
nd

 
se
co
nd
ary

 s
ch
oo
ls 

co
nc
lud

ed
 in

 
ea
rly
 N
ov
em

be
r. 
  T

he
 ou

tco
me

 of
 

the
se
 

se
ss
ion

s 
is 

the
 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
a 

cit
y-w

ide
 

att
ain

me
nt 

str
ate

gy
.  T

his
 st
rat

eg
y 

wi
ll 
als

o 
lin
k 
wi
th 

the
 R

ev
iew

 o
f 

Inc
lus

ion
 a

nd
 w

ill 
ou
tlin

e 
ke
y 

de
ve
lop

me
nts

 a
im
ed
 a

t 
clo

sin
g 

the
 g
ap
.  
Ea
rly
 in

dic
ati
on
s o

f t
his

 
wo

rk 
ca
n 

be
 a

nti
cip

ate
d 

in 
1 

cy
cle

’s 
tim

e. 

He
ad

 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on

al 
De

ve
lop

me
nt,

 
Po

licy
 an

d 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 

24
.11

.11
 

23
.02

.12
 

12
.C

ou
nc
il B

ud
ge

t 
10

 Fe
bru

ary
 

Tr
an
sfo

rm
ati
on
 

Op
tio
ns
 

/ 
Vir

tua
l 

Ca
mp

us
 

 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on

, C
ult
ure

 
24
.11

.11
 

23
.02

.12
 

Page 99



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

20
11

 
At 

its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 2

 J
un

e 
20

11
, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e c

on
sid

ere
d a

 pr
og

res
s r

ep
ort

 on
 

the
 S

erv
ice

 t
ran

sfo
rm

ati
on

 o
pti
on

s 
an

d 
req

ue
ste

d a
 fu

rth
er 

rep
ort

 on
 pr

og
res

s w
ith
 

all
 tr
an

sfo
rm

ati
on

 op
tio
ns
 to

 th
e m

ee
tin
g o

f 
Co

mm
itte

e o
n 2

4 N
ov
em

be
r 2

01
1. 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

als
o 

req
ue

ste
d 

a 
fur

the
r 

rep
ort

 on
 al

l a
sp
ec
ts 

of 
the

 vi
rtu

al 
ca
mp

us
 

on
ce
 it 

wa
s i

n i
ts 

tria
l p

eri
od

, (
i) t

o i
nc
lud

e 
the

 po
ten

tia
l im

pa
ct 

of 
tra

ve
l c
os
ts 

to 
tho

se
 

ch
ild
ren

 f
rom

 m
ore

 d
ep

riv
ed

 a
rea

s, 
to 

en
su
re 

tha
t t
he

 co
sts

 w
ere

 n
ot 

pre
ve
nti
ng

 
the

m 
fro

m 
ac
ce
ss
ing

 
ed

uc
ati
on

al 
op

po
rtu

nit
ies

, 
an

d 
(ii)
 
to 

inc
lud

e 
an

 
inv

es
tig
ati
on

 in
to 

the
 po

ss
ibi
lity

 of
 us

ing
 th

e 
Ab

erd
ee

n E
nd

ow
me

nt 
Tru

st 
as
 a 

me
an

s o
f 

as
sis

tin
g t

he
se
 pu

pil
s w

ith
 tra

ve
l c
os
ts.
 

 

an
d S

po
rt 

13
.C

ou
nc
il B

ud
ge

t 
10

 Fe
bru

ary
 

20
11

 
     Ed

uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
15

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11

 
 

Pu
pil
 Su

pp
or
t A

ss
ist
an
ts 

As
 p

art
 o

f 
the

 G
en

era
l 
Fu

nd
 b

ud
ge

t 
pro

po
sa
ls,
 
to 

ins
tru

ct 
the

 
Dir

ec
tor

 
of 

Ed
uc
ati
on

, C
ult
ure

 a
nd

 S
po

rt 
to 

rep
ort

 to
 

the
 

rel
ev
an

t 
Co

mm
itte

e 
wit

h 
fur

the
r 

inf
orm

ati
on

 on
 th

e r
ole

 an
d s

up
po

rt o
f P

up
il 

Su
pp

ort
 As

sis
tan

ts.
 

 Th
e 

Co
mm

itte
e 

wa
s 

pro
vid

ed
 w

ith
 a

n 
up

da
te 

wit
h i

n t
he

 in
for

ma
tio
n b

ull
eti
n, 

an
d 

ag
ree

d 
to 

rec
eiv

e 
a 

rep
ort

 t
o 

a 
fut

ure
 

me
eti
ng

 a
ss
es
sin

g 
the

 i
mp

ac
t 

of 
the

 
red

uc
ed

 
nu

mb
er 

of 
Pu

pil
 

Su
pp

ort
 

As
sis

tan
ts.
 

 
Dir

ec
tor

 of
 

Ed
uc
ati
on

, C
ult
ure

 
an

d S
po

rt 
23

.02
.12

 
 

14
.E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Mo
ve
 to

 a 
Cu

ltu
ral
 Tr

us
t 

At 
its
 m

ee
tin
g 

on
 2

4 
Ma

rch
 2

01
1, 

the
 

 
He

ad
 of

 
Co

mm
un

itie
s, 

24
.11

.11
 

23
.02

.12
 

Page 100



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

Sp
ort

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
24

 M
arc

h 2
01

1 
Ar
tic
le 
15
 

Co
mm

itte
e c

on
sid

ere
d a

 re
po

rt 
on
 ho

w 
the

 
de

cis
ion

 fr
om

 th
e 
Co

un
cil 

Bu
dg

et 
me

eti
ng
 

on
 10

 F
eb

rua
ry 

20
11

 to
 m

ov
e t

o a
 cu

ltu
ral

 
tru

st 
wo

uld
 be

 im
ple

me
nte

d. 
 Th

e 
Co

mm
itte

e 
ag

ree
d, 

am
on
gs
t 
oth

er 
thi
ng

s:-
 

to 
ins

tru
ct 

the
 D

ire
cto

r 
of 

Ed
uc
ati
on

, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt t

o p
rog

res
s, 
by
 w
ay
 of

 an
 

off
ice

rs’
 

wo
rki
ng

 
gro

up
, 

an
 

op
tio
ns
 

ap
pra

isa
l o

n 
the

 tr
an

sfe
r o

f s
erv

ice
s 
to 

a 
cu
ltu
ral

 tru
st,
 an

d t
ha
t th

e o
pti
on

s a
pp

rai
sa
l 

(1)
 in

clu
de

 co
ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 w
hic

h s
erv

ice
s 

co
uld

 
tra

ns
fer

, 
inc

lud
ing

 
the

 
Be

ac
h 

Ba
llro

om
, 

(2)
 

ex
am

ine
 

a 
pre

fer
red

 
go

ve
rna

nc
e 
mo

de
l, i

nc
lud

ing
 th

e 
op

tio
n 
of 

co
mm

un
ity
 ow

ne
rsh

ip 
of 

as
se
ts,
 an

d (
3) 

to 
req

ue
st 

tha
t t
he

 o
pti
on

s 
ap

pra
isa

l in
clu

de
 

SW
OT

 an
aly

sis
 an

d o
pti
on

s f
or 

go
ve
rna

nc
e 

arr
an
ge

me
nts

; a
nd
 to

 re
po

rt 
the

 fin
din

gs
 of

 
the

 o
pti
on

s 
ap

pra
isa

l to
 C

om
mi
tte

e 
by
 2
4 

No
ve
mb

er 
20

11
. 

 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d S

po
rt 

15
.E

du
ca
tio
n, 

Cu
ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 
15

 Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11

 
Ar
tic
le 
15
 

Ne
wh

ills
 Pr

im
ary

 Sc
ho
ol 

 
 Th

e C
om

mi
tte

e a
gre

ed
 to

 as
k t

he
 F
ina

nc
e 

an
d 
Re

so
urc

es
 C

om
mi
tte
e 
to 

ea
rm

ark
 th

e 
lan

d 
at 

Ne
wh

ills
 

Sc
ho

ol 
for

 
fut

ure
 

ed
uc
ati
on

al 
us
e, 

su
bje

ct 
to 

the
 S

co
ttis

h 
Go

ve
rnm

en
t a

gre
ein

g 
to 

tra
ns
fer

 th
e 
sit
e 

fro
m 

the
 H

RA
 t
o 

the
 G

en
era

l S
erv

ice
s 

Ac
co
un

t, 
an

d 
to 

rec
eiv

e 
a 

rep
ort

 o
n 

the
 

lon
g-t

erm
 us

e, 
da

te 
of 

tra
ns
fer

 an
d t

ran
sfe

r 
va
lue

 of
 th

e s
ite
, o

nc
e a

 bu
sin

es
s c

as
e a

nd
 

fun
din

g w
as
 ap

pro
ve
d f

or 
a n

ew
 sc

ho
ol 

at 
Ne

wh
ills

. 

 Th
is 

wa
s 
ag
ree

d 
by
 th

e 
Fin

an
ce
 

an
d R

es
ou
rce

s C
om

mi
tte

e. 
 Th
e 
rep

or
t 
on
 lo

ng
-te
rm

 u
se
 is

 
sc
he
du
led

 fo
r 2

01
2. 

 
23

.02
.11

 
 

Page 101



No
 

Mi
nu
te 

Re
fer

en
ce
 

  C
om

mi
tte
e D

ec
isi
on
 

 Up
da
te 

 
Le
ad
 

Of
fic
er(

s) 
Re

po
rt 

Du
e  

(ite
ms

 in
 

bo
ld 
are

 
ov
erd

ue
) 

Re
po
rt 

Ex
pe
cte

d 
(if 

kn
ow

n) 

 
16

.C
ou

nc
il 

6 O
cto

be
r 2

01
1 

Ar
tic
le 
x 

Pu
pil
 R
ep
res

en
tat
ion

 
 Co

un
cil 

ins
tru

cte
d o

ffic
ers

 to
 pr

ep
are

 a 
ful
l 

rep
ort

 
int
o 

the
 

me
mb

ers
hip

 
of 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 
inc

lud
ing

 h
ow

 b
es
t t
o 
ac
hie

ve
 

pu
pil
 in
vo
lve

me
nt.

 
 

 
 

23
.02

.11
 

05
.06

.11
 

 

Page 102



ED
UC

AT
IO
N,
 C
UL

TU
RE

 A
ND

 SP
OR

T C
OM

MI
TT

EE
 

 

MO
TIO

NS
 LI
ST

 
 

24
 N
OV

EM
BE

R 
20
11
 

 

No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n 
tak

en
 /

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Fu

tur
e 

Ac
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

sib
le 

He
ad

(s)
  o

f 
Se

rvi
ce

 
Du

e D
ate

 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

1. 
 

Mo
tio

n b
y C

ou
nc

illo
r 

Co
rm

ac
k 

“Th
at 

thi
s 

Co
un

cil 
ag

ree
s 

to 
pro

mo
te 

fur
the

r a
nd

 to
 c

on
tin

ue
 

to 
de

ve
lop

 
pa

ren
tal

, 
gu

ard
ian

 
an

d 
ca

rer
 

inv
olv

em
en

t 
in 

the
 

Co
un

cil’
s 

de
cis

ion
 

ma
kin

g 
pro

ce
ss

 
an

d 
tha

t a
 re

po
rt i

s t
he

ref
ore

 
pro

du
ce

d 
wit

h 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

for
 

inc
lud

ing
 p

are
nts

 in
 th

e 
wo

rk 
of 

the
 

ma
in 

Co
un

cil 
co

mm
itte

e 
wit

h 
ed

uc
ati

on
 

res
po

ns
ibi

litie
s, 

rel
ev

an
t 

su
b-c

om
mi

tte
es

 
an

d 
co

ns
ult

ati
on

 
pro

ce
ss

es
.” 

Po
licy

 an
d 

Str
ate

gy
 

(E
du

ca
tio

n) 
28

/04
/09

 

 At
 it

s 
me

eti
ng

 o
n 

2 
Ju

ne
 

20
11

, 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
ac

kn
ow

led
ge

d 
the

 
pro

gre
ss

 
ma

de
 

by
 

the
 

Pa
ren

t 
Fo

rum
 

an
d 

req
ue

ste
d 

tha
t 

off
ice

rs 
pre

pa
re 

a 
rep

ort
 f

or 
the

 
ne

xt 
cy

cle
 t

o 
en

ab
le 

the
 

Co
un

cil 
to 

co
ns

ide
r 

the
 

mo
st 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 w
ay

 t
o 

inc
lud

e p
are

nts
 in

 th
e w

ork
 

of 
the

 
ma

in 
Co

un
cil 

Co
mm

itte
e 

wit
h 

ed
uc

ati
on

 
res

po
ns

ibi
litie

s, 
rel

ev
an

t 
su

b 
co

mm
itte

es
 

an
d 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
 p

roc
es

se
s, 

to 
inc

lud
e: 

 • a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

in 
oth

er 
Sc

ott
ish

 lo
ca

l a
uth

ori
tie

s; 
• th

e 
im

pli
ca

tio
ns

 
of 

a 
vo

tin
g/n

on
-vo

tin
g 

op
tio

n 
for

 
me

mb
ers

, 
tak

ing
 

ac
co

un
t 

of 
the

 
Lo

ca
l 

Go
ve

rnm
en

t 
(S

co
tla

nd
) 

Ac
t 1

97
3; 

• a
n 

ou
tlin

e 
of 

the
 

me
ch

an
ism

 
tha

t 
the

 
Fo

rum
 p

rop
os

es
 to

 ta
ke

 
to 

ap
po

int
 

the
 

pa
ren

t 

Th
e 

Co
un

cil
 a

gr
ee
d 

on
 6

 
Oc

tob
er 

to 
ad
d 
tw
o 
pa
ren

t 
rep

res
en
tat
ive

s, 
wi
th 

vo
tin

g 
rig

hts
, 
to 

the
 C

om
mi
tte
e, 

wi
th 

im
me

dia
te 

eff
ec
t.  

Of
fic
ers

 
we

re 
als

o 
ins

tru
cte

d 
to 

pr
ep
are

 a
 fu

ll 
rep

or
t t
o 
thi

s 
Co

mm
itte

e 
on
 

the
 

me
mb

ers
hip

 
of 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

an
d 

on
 
pu

pil
 

inv
olv

em
en
t. 

Th
is 

wi
ll 

be
 

su
bm

itte
d 

to 
the

 F
eb
ru
ary

 
me

eti
ng

, a
nd
 is

 o
utw

ith
 th

e 
ter

ms
 
of 

thi
s 

No
tic
e 

of 
Mo

tio
n. 

 Th
e 
Co

mm
itte

e 
is 

the
ref

or
e 

req
ue
ste

d 
to 

rem
ov
e 

thi
s 

ite
m.
 

Dir
ec

tor
 of

 
Ed

uc
ati

on
, 

Cu
ltu

re 
an

d 
Sp

ort
 

15
.9.

11
 

Ye
s 

Agenda Item 9.2

Page 103



No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n 
tak

en
 /

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Fu

tur
e 

Ac
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

sib
le 

He
ad

(s)
  o

f 
Se

rvi
ce

 
Du

e D
ate

 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
; 

• d
eta

il 
of 

an
y 

ch
an

ge
s 

tha
t m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

 to
 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

co
mp

os
itio

n, 
sh

ou
ld 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ag
ree

 t
o 

a 
pa

ren
t re

pre
se

nta
tiv

e; 
• a

dv
ice

 
on

 
the

 
for

ma
l 

pro
ce

ss
es

 
req

uir
ed

 
to 

se
cu

re 
a 

ch
an

ge
 

in 
Co

mm
itte

e 
rep

res
en

tat
ion

;  a
nd

 
• m

ore
 

de
tai

l 
on

 
the

 
leg

isla
tio

n 
an

d 
the

 
se

cti
on

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’s
 

Sta
nd

ing
 

Or
de

rs 
in 

rel
ati

on
 t

o 
tea

ch
er 

an
d 

rel
igi

ou
s 

rep
res

en
tat

ive
s 

on
 th

e C
om

mi
tte

e. 
 

2. 
 

Mo
tio

n b
y C

ou
nc

illo
r 

Co
rm

ac
k 

“Th
at 

in 
the

 lig
ht 

of 
the

 
res

tor
ati

on
 an

d r
eu

se
 of

 
Ma

ris
ch

al 
Co

lle
ge

, 
the

 
se

co
nd

 la
rge

st 
gra

nit
e 

bu
ild

ing
 i

n 
the

 w
orl

d, 
an

d i
n r

ec
og

nit
ion

 of
 th

e 
ce

ntr
al 

rol
e 

tha
t 

the
 

gra
nit

e 
ind

us
try

 
ha

s 
pla

ye
d 

in 
the

 
cit

y’s
 

ec
on

om
ic 

de
ve

lop
me

nt 
an

d 
in 

its
 

cu
ltu

ral
 

ide
nti

ty,
 

tha
t 

thi
s 

Co
un

cil 
ag

ree
s 

to 
the

 

18
/11

/09
 

At 
its

 m
ee

tin
g o

f 7
 Ja

nu
ary

 
20

10
, 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 

ag
ree

d 
the

 t
erm

s 
of 

the
 

mo
tio

n a
nd

 no
ted

 th
at 

a f
ull

 
rep

ort
 w

ou
ld 

be
 s

ub
mi

tte
d 

to 
a 

fut
ure

 m
ee

tin
g 

wh
ich

 
wo

uld
 co

nta
in 

de
tai

ls 
of 

the
 

po
ten

tia
l 

lin
ks

 w
ith

 l
oc

al 
ge

olo
gy

, o
il c

om
pa

nie
s a

nd
 

the
 

Cu
rric

ulu
m 

for
 

Ex
ce

lle
nc

e 
an

d 
wo

uld
 lo

ok
 

at 
pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w

ork
ing

 w
ith

 
Ab

erd
ee

ns
hir

e 
Co

un
cil 

to 
pro

mo
te 

the
 

his
tor

y 
of 

gra
nit

e i
n t

he
 w

ide
r a

rea
. 

Th
e 

ins
tru

cti
on

s 
of 

the
 

Co
mm

itte
e 
in 

res
pe
ct 

of 
thi

s 
mo

tio
n h

av
e b

ee
n a

cti
on

ed
. 

He
ad

 of
 

Co
mm

un
itie

s, 
Cu

ltu
re 

an
d 

Sp
ort

 

24
/3/

11
 

No
 

Page 104



No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n 
tak

en
 /

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Fu

tur
e 

Ac
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

sib
le 

He
ad

(s)
  o

f 
Se

rvi
ce

 
Du

e D
ate

 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

pro
du

cti
on

 o
f 

a 
rep

ort
 

wit
h o

pti
on

s o
n h

ow
 th

e 
Co

un
cil 

an
d i

ts 
pa

rtn
ers

 
ca

n 
pro

pe
rly

 
ac

kn
ow

led
ge

 
the

 
ke

y 
co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t

ha
t th

e u
se

 
of 

gra
nit

e 
ha

s 
ma

de
 to

 
the

 
en

vir
on

me
nt 

of 
Ab

erd
ee

n a
nd

 th
e w

ide
r 

No
rth

 Ea
st 

reg
ion

.” 

At 
its

 
me

eti
ng

 
of 

18
 

No
ve

mb
er 

20
10

, 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e r
es

olv
ed

:- (
i)  

to 
ap

pro
ve

 
the

 
rec

om
me

nd
ati

on
s 

in 
the

 
rep

ort
 a

nd
 r

eq
ue

st 
tha

t 
off

ice
rs 

inv
es

tig
ate

 
the

 
po

ss
ibi

lity
 o

f 
sp

on
so

rsh
ip 

for
 th

e i
nte

rpr
eta

tio
n p

an
els

 
(re

fer
red

 
to 

En
ter

pri
se

, 
Pla

nn
ing

 an
d I

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re 
Co

mm
itte

e);
 

(ii)
 to

 re
qu

es
t t

ha
t o

ffic
ers

 
cir

cu
lat

e d
eta

ils 
of 

the
 bo

ok
  

“G
ran

ite
 –

 A
 S

tor
y 

of 
the

 
Gr

an
ite

 
Ind

us
try

 
in 

Ab
erd

ee
n” 

by
 D

av
id 

Mi
lle

r 
to 

all
 

me
mb

ers
 

of 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e f
or 

inf
orm

ati
on

; 
(iii

)  
to 

req
ue

st 
tha

t o
ffic

ers
 

inv
es

tig
ate

 th
e p

os
sib

ility
 of

 
pro

vid
ing

 
ea

ch
 

sc
ho

ol 
lib

rar
y 

wit
h 

a 
co

py
 o

f t
he

 
bo

ok
; 

(iv
)  

to 
req

ue
st 

tha
t o

ffic
ers

 
ke

ep
 

the
 

co
mm

itte
e 

up
da

ted
 w

ith
 p

rog
res

s 
on

 
the

 
mo

tio
n 

thr
ou

gh
 

the
 

inf
orm

ati
on

 bu
lle

tin
;  a

nd
 

(v)
 to

 th
an

k 
sta

ff 
for

 th
eir

 
wo

rk 
on

 th
e m

att
er.

 
    

Page 105



No
. 

Mo
tio

n 
Da

te 
of 

Co
un

cil
 

Me
eti

ng
 

Co
mm

itte
e M

oti
on

 re
fer

red
 to

 / 
 da

te/
 de

cis
ion

 of
 C

om
mi

tte
e 

Ac
tio

n 
tak

en
 /

 P
ro

po
se

d 
Fu

tur
e 

Ac
tio

n 
Re

sp
on

sib
le 

He
ad

(s)
  o

f 
Se

rvi
ce

 
Du

e D
ate

 

Is au
tho

rit
y 

so
ug

ht 
to 

rem
ov

e 
mo

tio
n 

fro
m 

lis
t? 

3. 
 

Mo
tio

n 
by

 
Co

un
cill

or 
Bo

ult
on

 
 “Th

at 
Ab

erd
ee

n C
ity

 
Co

un
cil 

wr
ite

s t
o M

ike
 

Ru
ss

ell
, th

e C
ab

ine
t 

Se
cre

tar
y f

or 
Ed

uc
ati

on
 

an
d L

ife
lon

g L
ea

rni
ng

, 
as

kin
g f

or 
a r

ev
iew

 of
 

‘Th
e P

are
nt’

s C
ha

rte
r’.”

 

23
/02

/11
 

At 
its

 m
ee

tin
g o

f 2
4 M

arc
h 

20
11

, 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
req

ue
ste

d 
a 

ba
ck

gro
un

d 
rep

ort
 to

 in
clu

de
 re

fer
en

ce
s 

to 
sc

ho
ol 

tra
ns

po
rt c

os
ts.

 
 At 

its
 m

ee
tin

g 
of 

2 
Ju

ne
 

20
11

, 
the

 
Co

mm
itte

e 
co

ns
ide

red
 a

 b
ac

kg
rou

nd
 

rep
ort

 o
n 

the
 m

oti
on

 a
nd

 
req

ue
ste

d 
a 

mo
re 

de
tai

led
 

rep
ort

 ba
ck

 on
 th

e m
att

er.
 

A 
rep

or
t 
is 

on
 t
he
 c

ur
ren

t 
ag
en
da
. 

He
ad

 o
f 

Sc
ho

ol
s 

an
d 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l 

Es
ta

bl
ish

m
en

ts
 

15
.9.

11
 

No
 

 Page 106



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

COMMITTEE   Education, Culture and Sport 

DATE     24th November 2011 
 
DIRECTOR Annette Bruton 
 
TITLE OF REPORT Education, Culture and Sport 

Performance Report 

REPORT NUMBER   ECS/11/070 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to: 
 
ÿ provide Elected Members with a summary of performance data up to 31st 

August 2011 from the Education, Culture and Sport Directorate 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

 
The Committee are asked to: 
 

ÿ Approve the ECS Service Performance report for the period up to 31 

August 2011 
ÿ Approve the briefing notes on: 

o Scottish Qualifications Authority (SQA) Attainment 2010-11 
o 5-14 attainment 2010-11 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no direct financial implications arising directly from the report. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no direct implications arising from this report however, the purpose 
of performance measurement and reporting is to manage improvement to 
services to the community.  The measures ensure linkage to the Single 
Outcome Agreement, the Administration�s Policy Statement - Vibrant, 
Dynamic and Forward Looking and the themes contained in �Improving 
Scottish Education.�  Improvements in the services provided by Education, 
Culture and Sport impact positively on communities across the City. 

 

Agenda Item 9.3

Page 107



5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

5.1 Members will recall that the Education, Culture and Sport Service Plan 2011-
16, approved at Committee on 15 September 2011, contained a number of 
performance indicators classified by the ten Service Plan priorities. 
 
This report provides data for: 
 
ÿ Monthly performance indicators for the period to the end of August 2011 
 
ÿ Annual performance indicators for academic year 2010/11: 
 

o Inspections of learning establishments 
 
5.2 The indicators are presented at Appendix C and demonstrate data analysis 

and chart representation. 
 
5.3 Key Analysis 
 

Members should note the following performance this period: 
 
5.3.1 Schools and Educational Establishments 
 

ÿ Appendix A outlines our SQA attainment for 2010-11 where 4 out of 10 
SQA measures increased or remained constant.  Performance is the same 
or higher than national levels in 2 out of 10 measures and lower in 8 
measures.  Performance is the same or higher than comparator authorities 
in 3 out of 10 measures and lower in 9 measures. 

 
ÿ Appendix B outlines 5-14 attainment 2010-11 in our primary schools where 

reading decreased slightly by 0.6%, writing increased marginally by 0.6% 
and mathematics decreased by 1.1% in 2010/11.   Members will be aware 
that the 2010/11 session was identified as a year of transition during which 
Curriculum for Excellence assessment approaches were trialed.  The 
2010/11 session will be the final year of 5-14 attainment monitoring, with 
the 2011/12 session being the baseline year for CFE assessment.   

 
5.3.2 Communities, Culture and Sport 

 
ÿ Communities

As outlined in the Community Centres report (ECS/11/071) earlier on the 
agenda, the Communities team restructuring progressed with the majority 
of postholders taking up their new roles from the start of August. Figures 
for participation in adult learning, literacies and youth work activities all 
rose in 2010/11 compared with the previous academic year. They rose 
overall and in the number of participants from datazone areas. Adult 
learning rose by 14% (3605 to 4114), Literacies by 30% (694 to 899) and 
Youth Work by 20% (2025 to 2437).  By June a Learning Partnership had 
been formed in each of the 12 LP areas.   

Page 108



ÿ Libraries - Steady increase in usage of PC terminals across July and 
August attributed to a reduction in down time from PC and network faults.  
August saw the highest number of visitors to the libraries network this year 
both in terms of physical and virtual visits. 

 
ÿ Museums and Galleries - July saw the highest number of visitors to 

Aberdeen Museums and Galleries.  Aberdeen Art Gallery�s major summer 
exhibition � Wildlife Photographer of the Year (11 June � 20 August) � 
proved extremely popular with all ages this summer.  Aberdeen Art Gallery 
and Museums website continues to show a significant increase in usage 
from 5,593 in August 2010 compared to 8,296 in August this year.  In 
addition to raising our profile through use of social networks such as 
Facebook and Twitter, which are attached to each page of our website, we 
also hope to further enhance this website using additional grant funds from 
Museums Galleries Scotland.  A Digital Media strategy is currently being 
developed to progress further. 

 
5.3.3 Sports 
 

ÿ Pools - Attendances across Sport Aberdeen managed facilities in August 
reflected an increase of 2.5% on 2010 with a rise in the cumulative figures 
to date of 4,660 additional admissions, or 1.6%, which is in line with the 
organisation's generic Corporate Plan target for raising footfall across the 
various operational 'departments'. Taking account of maintenance works at 
Bridge of Don Swimming Pool during July and part of August which 
resulted in a loss of some 3,700 admissions in comparison with 2010, the 
overall picture for cumulative admissions growth is proportionately slightly 
higher than the noted figures and suggests that, excluding this loss, 
cumulative growth would be closer to 2.8% for April-August. Looking at 
individual facilities, The Beach Leisure, Bucksburn, Bridge of Don and 
Kincorth Swimming Pools are recording sustained growth patterns with the 
latter having achieved a notable 56.8% increase in cumulative attendances 
and the remainder recording differing levels of positive movement. On the 
contrary, both Hazlehead and Northfield Swimming Pools admission levels 
show a continued pattern of attendance reduction although in the case of 
the former this may be a reflection against the significant growth in 
performance in 2010 rather than an indication of absolute decline. 

 
ÿ Dry Facilities - Sport Aberdeen: With the exception of facilities at 

Sheddocksley and Westburn Tennis Centre, monthly and cumulative 
attendance levels for Sport Aberdeen managed premises in August 2011 
demonstrated positive if modest movement across the board in 
comparison with 2010. Within this wider cumulative growth pattern, Lord 
Provost Alex Collie (+22%), Torry (+15%) and Kincorth (+11%) centres 
along with the Linx Ice Arena (+28%) are sustaining levels of increased 
use. Of the remaining two facilities, it is noticeable that, whilst the Jesmond 
Centre's attendances remain relatively stable, Peterculter Sports Centre 
appears to have 'turned a corner' in arresting what had been a pattern of 
cumulative decline from the start of the year.  Aberdeen Sports Village:  

Page 109



With admissions of 39,338, the Sports Village has recorded a 13.4% 
increase in monthly figures or some 4,600 additional attendances when 
compared to August 2010. Of this increase, 2,916 additional attendances 
(+85.0%) have been generated through class registrations with the 
remainder being the result of a rise in attendances arising from premises 
hire and ticketed use of 'pay and play' facilities. (e.g. gymnasium use, etc) 

 
5.3.4 Service Wide 

ÿ The average number of days lost across the service per employee for August 
has risen by 0.1% in comparison to the previous month. This figure reflects the 
return from the summer break for schools and therefore more short term 
teaching absences being recorded. However there has been a reduction of 0.2 
average days lost per employee in absence across the service comparing 
2010/11 and 2011/12.  

ÿ The annual figure of the number of days lost per employee over a rolling 12 
month period up to August 2011 is 8.2. Since the implementation of the 
revised Maximising Attendance Policy this is the lowest number of days lost 
since we started reporting against this data. This shows a commitment from 
managers to implement the policy and support employees. This figure is also 
the second lowest across all services for this period. 

5.4 REPORTING OF SERVICE PLAN ACTIONS 
 

Members should note that Officers have commenced work to populate 
Covalent, our performance management tool, with the high level service plan 
actions and the contributory projects and tasks being undertaken in teams 
throughout the Service.  Members can anticipate a detailed Service Plan 
report showing progress against actions, projects and tasks at the next 
Education, Culture and Sports Committee in February 2012. 

 
6. IMPACT 

Legal 
The Council is required to act as set out in the Statutory Performance 
Indicator Direction. 

 
Resources 
No additional resources are required to undertake performance management 
which is a core responsibility of managers. 

 
Other 
There are no property, equipment or Health and Safety implications arising 
directly from this report. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

ÿ Appendix A SQA attainment for 2010-11  
ÿ Appendix B: 5-14 primary attainment for 2010-11 
ÿ Appendix C:  Service Plan performance measures 

 

Page 110



8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  
Sarah Gear, Service Manager (Policy and Performance) 
Education, Culture & Sport 
� 01224 522865 
� sagear@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Page 111



- 1 -
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

SQA EXAMINATION RESULTS 2011 
 

Briefing Synopsis:

This briefing note follows on from the initial SQA analysis in August 2011 and provides 
analysis of 10 measures of SQA attainment as at September 2011.  Please note that 
2011 data is pre-appeal1, rounded to 0dp and covers the following courses: National 
Courses, Access Courses, Standard Grades.  Results prior to 2011 are post-appeal.  
 
The main point of contact for this briefing note is: Ljiljana Pavlenic, Principal Officer � 
Education Statistics (� 523241 � lpavlenic@aberdeencity.gov.uk)   
 
1. Attainment by the end of S4 
 
1.1  English and Mathematics at SCQF level 3 or better by the end of S4 

The percentage of pupils achieving Foundation level English and Maths by the end of 
S4 decreased by 3%. This is a significant decrease between 2010 and 2011. There has 
been no long term trend since 1999. The national pattern and the comparator 
authorities� average remained at the same level as in 2010. The English and Maths 
attainment by the end of S4 in most previous years was above the national pattern.  

 

Graph 1:  English and Mathematics at SCQF level 3 or better by the end of S4 

Eng & Maths at SCQF Level 3 or Better by the End of S4

80

82

84

86

88

90

92

94

96

98

100

%
P

u
pi

ls
A

ch
ie

vi
n
g

Aberdeen City Scotland Comparators

Aberdeen City 93 92 93 92 93 92 93 94 92 93 94 95 92

Scotland 92 92 92 91 91 91 90 91 92 92 93 93 93

Comparators 90 91 91 92 92 93 93

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

1 All statistics presented in this paper relate to pre-appeal information and are therefore subject to change 

later in the year. 

Page 112



- 2 -
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

1.2  5+ awards at SCQF level 3 or better buy the end of S4 

The percentage of pupils achieving 5 or more awards at Foundation level or better by 
the end of S4 decreased by 1% and was 2% below the national pattern. At the same 
measure the national pattern and the comparator authorities� average increased by 1%. 
There has been no long term trend in Aberdeen since 1999. 

 

Graph 2: 5+ awards at SCQF level 3 or better by the end of S4 

5+ Awards at SCQF Level 3 or Better by the End of S4

80

82

84
86

88

90

92

94
96

98

100

%
P

u
p

ils
A

ch
ie

vi
n

g

Aberdeen City 91 90 91 91 91 92 91 90 88 89 91 92 91

Scotland 91 91 91 91 91 91 90 91 91 91 92 92 93

Comparators 89 90 90 90 91 92 93

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

1.3  5+ awards at SCQF Level 4 or better by the end of S4 
 
The percentage of pupils achieving 5 or more awards at General level or better by the 
end of S4 in Aberdeen in 2011 decreased by 1% and was  below the national pattern 
(3%) and the comparator authorities� average (2%). Our baseline assessments predicted 
a decrease to 70%.  
Attainment by the end of S4 at this measure in the most previous years was below the 
national pattern.  

 

Page 113



- 3 -
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

Graph 3:  5+ awards at SCQF Level 4 or better by the end of S4 

5+ Awards at SCQF Level 4 or Better by the End of S4

50
55

60
65

70
75

80
85

90
95

100

%
P

u
p

ils
A

ch
ie

vi
n

g

Aberdeen City 73 74 77 75 77 74 77 75 71 71 73 76 75

Scotland 75 77 77 77 76 77 76 77 76 76 78 78 78

Comparators 75 75 75 76 77 78 77

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

1.4 5+ awards at SCQF level 5 or better by the end of S4 

The percentage of pupils achieving 5 or more awards at Credit level or better by the end 
of S4 significantly decreased  from 36% in  2010 to 32% in 2011 (the 2010 results had 
been the highest results since 1999). Our baseline assessments predicted a decrease to 
28%.  At this measure attainment by the end of S4 in 2011 and most previous years was 
below the national pattern.  In 2011 both, the national pattern and the comparator 
authorities� average decreased by 1%.  
 
Graph 4: 5+ awards at SCQF level 5 or better by the end of S4 

5+ Awards at SCQF Level 5 or Better by the End of S4

0

10

20

30

40

50

%
P

u
p
ils

A
ch

ie
vi

n
g

Aberdeen City 28 31 32 32 34 35 34 35 32 33 31 36 32

Scotland 32 33 34 34 34 35 34 35 33 34 35 36 35

Comparators 35 34 33 34 37 37 36

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Page 114



- 4 -
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

1.5 Baseline Assessment 
 
Lower SQA examination performance does not mean that pupils� achievements are less 
than expected. All pupils in Aberdeen City take a baseline assessment ('MidYIS test, 
developed by Durham University )2 at the start of S1 and this is a predictor of future 
attainment at S4. Average baseline attainment varies between schools significantly. 
Many pupils achieve better attainment in S4 than predicted by baseline assessment. 
 

Graph 5: Predicted / Actual- 5+ awards at SCQF Level 4 or better by the end of S4 

5+ at Level 4 or Better by the End of S4

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

%
P
u
p
ils

A
ch

ie
vi

n
g

Aberdeen Predicted Aberdeen Actual

2 * 'MidYIS, the Middle Years Information System developed by Durham University, provides new and 
innovative tests widely used in the UK and elsewhere, forming a baseline for Value Added measures in 
secondary schools. The tests are designed to measure, as far as possible, ability and aptitude for learning 
rather than achievement.' (http://www.cemcentre.org/RenderPage.asp?LinkID=11410000)

Page 115



- 5 -
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

Graph 6: Predicted / Actual - 5+ awards at SCQF level 5 or better by the end of S4 

5+ at Level 5 or Better by the End of S4

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

%
P
u
p
ils

A
ch

ie
vi

n
g

Aberdeen Predicted Aberdeen Actual

2 Attainment by the end of S5 
 
As attainment by the end of S5 is calculated from the relevant S4 roll, the S4 to S5 
staying on rate has an effect on the measures of attainment by the end of S5. Staying 
on rates in Aberdeen have generally been lower than the national rate.  While both the 
Aberdeen and national rate increased over last year, the Aberdeen rate remains below 
the national average.  Staying on rate in Aberdeen in 2011 was up two points from 65% 
to 67%. 
 
S4 to S5 (post Christmas) Staying on Rate 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Aberdeen 60 63 63 60 59 65 67
Scotland 64 64 65 65 67 72 n/a

2.1 5+ awards at SCQF level 5 or better by the end of S5  

The percentage of pupils achieving 5 or more awards at Credit level or better by the end 
of S5 in Aberdeen significantly increased in 2011. The 2011 value is the highest since 
1999. NCD values indicate that the 2011 value for this measure is in line with 
expectations based on the value for 5+ Level 5 by the end of S4 in 2010.  

After significant improvement between 1999 and 2004 in Aberdeen and nationally, there 
has been no significant trend since 2004.  The national pattern improved by 1% and the 
comparator authorities� average by 2%. Attainment at this measure by the end of S5 in 
2011 and in most previous years was below the national pattern. 

Page 116



- 6 -
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

Graph 5: 5+ awards at SCQF level 5 or better by the end of S5  

5+ Awards at SCQF Level 5 or Better by the End of S5

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

%
P

u
p

ils
A

ch
ie

vi
n

g

Aberdeen City 34 38 43 42 42 45 45 45 46 41 43 43 48

Scotland 35 40 43 45 45 45 45 45 46 45 47 49 50

Comparators 45 45 45 46 47 50 52

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

2.2 3+ awards at SCQF level 6 or better by the end of S5 

The percentage of pupils achieving 3 or more awards at Higher Grade A-C or better by 
the end of S5 in 2011 significantly increased by 4%. Attainment by the end of S5 in 2011 
and in most previous years was in line with the national pattern. The 2011 value is the 
highest since 1999. NCD values indicate that the 2011 value for this measure is in line 
with expectations based on the value for 5+ Level 5 by the end of S4 in 2010.  

 
Graph 6: 3+ awards at SCQF level 6 or better by the end of S5 

3+ Awards at SCQF Level 6 or Better by the End of S5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

%
P

u
p

ils
A

ch
ie

vi
n

g

Aberdeen City 22 23 24 23 23 25 24 22 24 22 24 23 27

Scotland 21 23 23 23 23 23 23 22 22 22 23 25 26

Comparators 23 23 22 23 24 27 26

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Page 117



- 7 -
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

2.3 5+ awards at SCQF level 6 or better by the end of S5 
 

In 2011 the percentage of pupils achieving 5 or more awards at Higher Grade A-C or 
better by the end of S5 significantly increased by 2%.  At this measure attainment by the 
end of S5 in 2011 was above the national pattern and in most previous years was in line 
with the national pattern. The 2011 value is the highest since 1999. NCD values indicate 
that the 2011 value for this measure is notably better than expectations based on the 
value for 5+ Level 5 by the end of S4 in 2010. 
 

Graph 7: 5+ awards at SCQF level 6 or better by the end of S5 

5+ Awards at SCQF Level 6 or Better by the End of S5

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

%
P

u
p

ils
A

ch
ie

vi
n

g

Aberdeen City 6 7 9 9 9 10 11 11 12 10 11 11 13

Scotland 9 9 10 9 10 10 10 10 11 11 12

Comparators 10 10 10 10 11 11 12 13

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

3 Attainment by the end of S6 
 

As attainment by the end of S6 is calculated from the relevant S4 roll, the S4 to S6 
staying on rate has an effect on the measures of attainment by the end of S6. 
 
Staying on rates in Aberdeen have generally been lower than the national rate, however 
2010 saw a massive jump in the number of pupils staying on both in Aberdeen and 
across Scotland. Staying on rate in Aberdeen in 2011 was up 3 points to 46%. 
 
S4 to S6 Staying on Rate 

 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Aberdeen 44.7 43.8 46 42 38 43 46
Scotland  44.3 44.3 44.3 45 45 50 na

Page 118



- 8 -
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

3.1 3+ awards at SCQF level 6 or better by the end of S6 

The percentage of pupils achieving 3 or more awards at Higher Grade A-C or better by 
the end of S6 decreased by 2% in 2011.  Attainment by the end of S6 in 2011 was 
below the national pattern and in all previous years was in line with the national pattern. 
NCD values indicate that the 2011 value for this measure is in line with expectations 
based on the value for 5+ Level 5 by the end of S4 in 2009. There has been no long 
term trend since 1999.  

The national pattern and the comparator authorities� average increased in 2011 by 2% 
and 4% respectively.  

 

Graph 8: 3+ awards at SCQF level 6 or better by the end of S6 

3+ Awards at SCQF Level 6 or Better by the End of S6

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

%
P

u
p

ils
A

ch
ie

vi
n

g

Aberdeen City 29 30 32 33 32 31 33 32 30 32 30 33 31

Scotland 29 30 32 31 31 31 30 30 29 30 31 33 35

Comparators 31 30 31 30 32 33 37

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

3.2 5+ awards at SCQF level 6 or better by the end of S6 

Percentage of S4 roll achieving 5 or more awards at level 6 or better (Higher at A-C) by 
the end of S6 decreased by 1% in 2011. Attainment by the end of S6 in 2011 was below 
the national pattern and in all previous years was in line with the national pattern. NCD 
values indicate that the 2011 value for this measure is in line with expectations based on 
the value for 5+ Level 5 by the end of S4 in 2009.  

After significant improvement between 1999 and 2004 in Aberdeen and nationally, there 
has been no significant trend since 2004.  The national pattern and the comparator 
authorities� average in 2011 improved, at this measure, by 1% and 3% respectively.  

Page 119



- 9 -
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

Graph 9: 5+ awards at SCQF level 6 or better by the end of S6 

5+ Awards at SCQF Level 6 or Better by the End of S6

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

%
P

up
ils

A
ch

ie
vi

n
g

Aberdeen City 18 20 20 21 20 20 22 22 20 22 21 23 22

Scotland 17 19 20 20 20 20 19 20 19 20 21 22 23

Comparators 20 20 20 19 22 22 25

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

3.3 1+ awards at SCQF level 7 or better by the end of S6 
 

The percentage of pupils achieving 1 or more awards at level 7 or better (Advanced 
Higher at A-C) by the end of S6 remained at same level as in 2010. Attainment by the 
end of S6 in 2011 was above the national pattern. NCD values indicate that the 2011 
value for this measure is in line with expectations based on the value for 5+ Level 5 by 
the end of S4 in 2009.   After significant improvement between 1999 and 2004 there has 
been no significant trend since 2004. The national pattern remained at the same level 
and the comparator authorities� average increased by 1%.  

 

Page 120



- 10 - 
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

Graph 10: 1+ awards at SCQF level 7 or better by the end of S6 

1+ Awards at SCQF Level 7 or Better by the End of S6

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

%
P

up
ils

A
ch

ie
vi

n
g

Aberdeen City 11 12 10 14 14 14 17 16 14 14 14 17 17

Scotland 10 10 11 12 12 12 12 13 12 13 14 15 15

Comparators 13 14 14 13 16 16 17

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

5 Access 2 and Access 3 Courses 
 
Access 2 and Access 3 courses are a flexible provision, not necessarily completed by 
candidates in a single academic year.  The expectation is that most candidates will 
complete the Course at a later date. Consequently the results are not directly 
comparable with other Courses. 
 
5.1 Access 2 
 

Access 2- Entries and Course Awards 

Subject 

% of  
Total 

Entries Entries Awards 
Art and Design 83.3 6 5
English 100.0 5 5
English and Communication 100.0 12 12
Enterprise through Craft 0.0 9 0
French 100.0 2 2
Mathematics 100.0 22 22
Science 90.9 11 10
Social Subjects 100.0 9 9
Totals 85.5 76 65

Page 121



- 11 - 
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

5.2 Access 3 
 
Access 3- Entries and Course Awards 

Subject 

% of  
Total 

Entries Entries Awards 
Art and Design 93.4 61 57
Biology 98.1 52 51
Chemistry 89.2 37 33
Computing Studies 66.7 6 4
English 72.7 44 32
English for Speakers of Other Languages 88.2 17 15
French 100.0 12 12
Geography 100.0 9 9
History 100.0 3 3
Home Economics: Lifestyle and Consumer Technology 100.0 1 1
Hospitality: Practical Cookery 84.6 52 44
Mathematics 82.3 390 321
Media Studies 100.0 5 5
Modern Studies 100.0 4 4
Music 30.4 23 7
Physical Education 100.0 9 9
Physics 94.7 19 18
Religious, Moral and Philosophical Studies 97.2 71 69
Social Subjects 100.0 19 19
Spanish 100.0 14 14
Totals 85.7 848 727

6 Subjects 
 

6.1 At Standard Grade in 2011 in Aberdeen, the following subjects had positive or 
negative relative values (pupils did better or worse on average in this subject than the 
other subjects they sat). Subjects or courses for which patterns are strong are 
highlighted in green or red. 

Pattern Positive Relative Value Negative Relative Value 

5 Year 
SG Chemistry, Physics, SG 
Physics, History, SG Soc & Voc 
Skills, Int2 Drama 

Int2 Geography, Graphic Comm, Art 
and Design, Drama, Music 

3 or 4 Year French Int2 English 

Current Year SG German, Int1 Chemistry, SG 
Religious Studies Int1 English, Int2 Mathematics 

Change Int1 French, Computing Int1 Geography, Int1 Physical 
Education 

Page 122



- 12 - 
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

6.2 At Higher Grade in 2011 in Aberdeen, the following subjects had positive or 
negative progression values (pupils did better or worse on average in this subject than 
the other subjects they sat). Subjects or courses for which patterns are strong are 
highlighted in green or red. 
 

Pattern Progression Positive Value  Progression Negative Value 
5 Year H Chemistry H Art & Design, H Drama 
3 or 4 
Year H Physical Education H Geography, H Technological Studies 
Current 
Year 

H Biology, Int2 Geography, H 
Philosophy H English 

Change  
Int2 English, H Human Biology, H 
History 

Future Projections/Recommendations and Actions 
 
The content of this briefing paper will be shared with Elected Members (as part of the 
August EC&S Performance Report) at Education, Culture and Sport Committee on 24th 
November 2011. In addition, it is recommended that the following actions are taken: 
 

ÿ A shared understanding of the key themes and messages from 2010/11 results 
be achieved through discussions with the following teams: ECS SMT, Learning & 
Communities Teams, Service Managers and Quality Improvement Officers 
(QIOs). 

 
ÿ The outcomes from the 2010/11SQA attainment analysis be used to inform 

attainment discussions with the Head of Service (Schools & Educational 
Establishments), Service Managers (Schools) and Quality Improvement Officers. 

 
ÿ The outcomes from these discussions will be used to inform assessment, 

reporting policy, practice and development with the Head of Service (Educational 
Development, Policy and Performance) and the lead QIO.  In addition the 
information will help to inform future policy and guidelines development ,in the 
same way as we are developing advice on : 

o Assessment 
o Literacy 
o Science 

This will help to address areas of weakness. 
 

ÿ The detailed school data, together with the actions above,  be used to inform the 
ASG Attainment review meetings held during October and November 2011 and to 
inform interventions at school level for individual pupils and for specific subjects. 

Page 123



- 13 - 
SQA Examination Results 2011: Policy & Performance Team  

 

ÿ The detailed school data, together with the actions above,  be used to inform the 
forthcoming Subject Network meetings held during November 2011 and to inform 
authority level interventions for specific subjects 

 

ÿ The detailed school data, together with the actions above, form part of the QIO 
School Improvement Visit 1 (SIV1) during the autumn term 2011/12 and to inform 
curriculum for excellence assessment discussions 

Page 124



Policy and Performance Team October 2011 Update 

- 1 -

EDUCATION, CULTURE AND SPORT 
5-14 Attainment for Aberdeen City 2010/11 

 
Briefing Synopsis:

This briefing note provides a summary of 5-14 Attainment Levels in Aberdeen 
City primary and secondary schools for the 2010/11 academic session.  The 
briefing highlights long and short-term trends in performance, identifies areas 
of positive performance as well as areas where improvements are sought.  
The main point of contact for this briefing note is: Ljiljana Pavlenic, Principal 
Officer � Education Statistics (� 523241 � lpavlenic@aberdeencity.gov.uk)   
 
Please note: the 2010/11 session was identified as a year of transition 
during which Curriculum for Excellence assessment approaches were 
trialled.  The 2010/11 session will be the final year of 5-14 attainment 
monitoring, with the 2011/12 session being the baseline year for CFE 
assessment.

Data Presentation and Analysis: 

Primary Reading

5 to 14 Reading Attainment in Primary Schools

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

97
/98

98
/99

99
/00

00
/01

01
/02

02
/03

03
/04

04
/05

05
/06

06
/07

07
/08

08
/09

09
/10

10
/11

Aberdeen Actual

Aberdeen Target

Scotland

Consortium

3 Yr Moving Average

ÿ Attainment in primary reading has decreased by 0.6 per cent from 2009/10 
to 2010/11. 80.4% of pupils reached or exceeded the appropriate level this 
year.  

 
ÿ Out of 48 primary schools, 20 schools achieved at least one per cent 

increase and five of those schools achieved an increase of at least five per 
cent.  

 
ÿ 21 schools reported a decrease of at least one per cent, and twelve 

schools experienced a decrease of five or more per cent.   

Page 125



Policy and Performance Team October 2011 Update 

- 2 -

ÿ Six schools achieved results within one percentage point (up or down) of 
the previous year.  

ÿ One new primary school had no previous data to compare against. 
 
Primary Writing

5 to 14 Writing Attainment in Primary Schools

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

97
/98

98
/99

99
/00

00
/01

01
/02

02
/03

03
/04

04
/05

05
/06

06
/07

07
/08

08
/09

09
/10

10
/11

Aberdeen Actual

Aberdeen Target

Scotland

Consortium

3 Yr Moving Average

ÿ Attainment in primary writing increased marginally by 0.6% in 2010/11.  
73.6 per cent of pupils reached or exceed the appropriate level.   

 
ÿ Out of 48 primary schools, 23 schools reported an increase of at least one 

per cent over the previous year's results of which seven schools achieved 
an increase of at least six percentage points from last year's results.   

 
ÿ 20 schools reported a decrease of at least one per cent and ten of those 

schools experienced a decrease of at least five per cent.   
 
ÿ In four schools, writing attainment level remained within one per cent (up 

or down) of the previous year results. 
 
ÿ One new primary school had no previous data to compare against.  
 
Primary Mathematics

ÿ Attainment in primary mathematics decreased by 1.1 per cent from 
2009/10 to 2010/11.  

 
ÿ 82.9 per cent of pupils reached or exceeded the appropriate level. 
 
ÿ Out of 48 primary schools, 18 schools achieved an increase of at least one 

percentage point, 5 of which increased by at least five per cent.   
 
ÿ 18 schools reported a decrease of at least one percentage point with 

seven schools decreasing by at least six percentage points.  

Page 126



Policy and Performance Team October 2011 Update 

- 3 -

ÿ In 11 schools, attainment in mathematics remained within one percentage 
point (up or down) of last year's results. 

 
ÿ One new primary school had no previous data to compare against. 
 

5 to 14 Maths Attainment in Primary Schools

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

95

100

97
/98

98
/99

99
/00

00
/01

01
/02

02
/03

03
/04

04
/05

05
/06

06
/07

07
/08

08
/09

09
/10

10
/11

Aberdeen Actual

Aberdeen Target

Scotland

Consortium

3 Yr Moving Average

Secondary Reading

5 to 14 Reading Attainment in Secondary Schools

30
35
40
45
50
55
60
65
70
75
80
85
90
95

100

97
/98

98
/99

99
/00

00
/01

01
/02

02
/03

03
/04

04
/05

05
/06

06
/07

07
/08

08
/09

09
/10

10
/11

Aberdeen Actual

Aberdeen Target

Scotland

Consortium

3 Yr Moving Average

ÿ Attainment levels in secondary reading significantly increased by 4.9 per 
cent from 2009/10 to 2010/11.   

 

Page 127



Policy and Performance Team October 2011 Update 

- 4 -

ÿ 71.9 per cent of pupils reached or exceeded the appropriate level this 
year, the highest level since testing began. 

 
ÿ Out of 12 secondary schools, seven schools achieved at least three per 

cent increase on the previous year's results, and two of those schools 
achieved an increase of 16 per cent.  

 
ÿ Four schools reported a decrease of at least one percentage point of 

which one school experienced a decrease of 4.3 per cent.  
 
ÿ One school achieved results within one per cent of the previous year's 

results.   
 

Secondary Writing

5 to 14 Writing Attainment in Secondary Schools

30

35

40

45

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

97
/98

98
/99

99
/00

00
/01

01
/02

02
/03

03
/04

04
/05

05
/06

06
/07

07
/08

08
/09

09
/10

10
/11

Aberdeen Actual

Aberdeen Target

Scotland

Consortium

3 Yr Moving Average

ÿ Attainment levels in secondary writing have increased by 4.1 per cent, a 
significant increase from 2009/10 to 2010/11.  

 
ÿ 56.1 per cent of pupils reached or exceeded the appropriate level this 

year, the highest level since testing began.   
 
ÿ Out of 12 secondary schools, nine schools achieved at least  two per cent 

increase on the previous year's results, and three of those schools 
achieved an increase between 11 and 23 per cent.  

 
ÿ Three schools reported a decrease of at least 4 per cent of which two 

schools experienced a decrease of 10 and 12 per cent. 
 

Page 128



Policy and Performance Team October 2011 Update 

- 5 -

Secondary Mathematics

5 to 14 Mathematics Attainment in Secondary Schools

30
35
40
45
50
55
60
65
70
75
80
85
90
95

100

97
/98

98
/99

99
/00

00
/01

01
/02

02
/03

03
/04

04
/05

05
/06

06
/07

07
/08

08
/09

10
/11

09
/11

Aberdeen Actual

Aberdeen Target

Scotland

Consortium

3 Yr Moving Average

ÿ Attainment levels in secondary maths have increased by 2.1% from 
2009/10 to 2010/11.   
 

ÿ 66.1% of pupils reached or exceeded the appropriate level this year, the 
highest level since testing began.  

 
ÿ Out of 12 secondary schools, seven schools achieved at least one per 

cent increase on the previous year's results, and four of those schools 
achieved an increase between 10 and 18 per cent.  

 
ÿ Four schools reported a decrease, of which two decreased by at least five 

per cent. 
 
ÿ One school achieved results within one per cent of the previous year's 

results.  

Future Projections/Recommendations and Actions 
 
The content of this briefing paper will be shared with Elected Members (as 
part of the August EC&S Performance Report) at Education, Culture and 
Sport Committee on 24th November 2011. In addition, it is recommended that 
the following actions are taken: 
 

ÿ A shared understanding of the key themes and messages from 
2010/11 results be achieved through discussions with the following 
teams: ECS SMT, Learning & Communities Teams, Service Managers 
and Quality Improvement Officers (QIOs). 

 
ÿ The outcomes from the 2010/11 5-14 attainment analysis will be used 

to inform attainment discussions with the Head of Service (Schools & 

Page 129



Policy and Performance Team October 2011 Update 

- 6 -

Educational Establishments), Service Managers (Schools) and Quality 
Improvement Officers. 

 
ÿ The outcomes from these discussions will be used to inform 

assessment, reporting policy, practice and development with the Head 
of Service (Educational Development, Policy and Performance) and the 
lead QIO.  In addition the information will help to inform future policy 
and guidelines development ,in the same way as we are developing 
advice on : 

o Assessment 
o Literacy 
o Science 

This will help to address areas of weakness. 
 

ÿ The detailed school data, together with the actions above,  form part of 
the QIO School Improvement Visit 1 (SIV1) during the autumn term 
2011/12 and to inform curriculum for excellence assessment 
discussions.  

Page 130



1

Performance of monthly reportable indicators 

Trend Charts demonstrating performance of monthly reportable indicators 
against service plan themes  
Report Author: Caroline Hastings 
Generated on: 24 October 2011 

Priority 04 - Technology 

Number of times that PC terminals in Library Learning Centres and Learning Access Points are 
used 

This indicator monitors the number of times that PC terminals within Learning Centres and Learning 
Access Points of libraries are used. Trend calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates 
current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month period. Annual value 
= cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Library and Information 
Services  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Patricia Cassidy 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 17,354 

May 2011 18,090 

June 2011 17,859 

July 2011 17,968 

August 2011 19,894 

Latest Analysis Although down slightly on the same period last year there has been an increase 
in usage over the last couple of months. There have been fewer PC faults and 
breaks in service in the last few weeks.  There has been an increase in WiFi 
usage across the city and plans are underway to further extend the network. 

Page 131



2

Number of visits to libraries - virtual 

This indicator monitors the number of virtual visits to libraries. Trend calculation method is year on year- 
Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 
period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Library and Information 
Services  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Patricia Cassidy 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 39,053 

May 2011 36,504 

June 2011 37,694 

July 2011 36,461 

August 2011 41,973 

Latest Analysis Figures are up on the previous month but slightly down on the same period last 
year. Network speeds have still been causing a problem at certain locations. 
Launch of new Digital archive �Silver City Vault� has seen a large number of 
visitors accessing collections from all over the world since its launch mid 
September. There has been increased activity in both Facebook and Twitter and 
we plan to launch a new e book service by the end of the year. 

Page 132



3

Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums - virtual 

This indicator monitors the number of virtual visits to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long 
trend calculates average over 12 month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long 
trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Museums & Galleries  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Patricia Cassidy 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 33,358 

May 2011 71,669 

June 2011 63,974 

July 2011 80,888 

August 2011 43,670 

Latest Analysis AAGM website continues to show a significant increase in usage from 5,593 in 
August 2010 compared to 8,296 in August this year. In addition to raising our 
profile through use of social networks such as Facebook and Twitter, which are 
attached to each page of our website, we also hope to further enhance this 
website using additional grant funds from Museums Galleries Scotland. A Digital 
Media strategy is currently being developed to progress further.  

Page 133



4

Priority 05 - Health and Wellbeing 

Health and Safety Reportable Accidents including Incidents 

This indicator monitors the number of Health and Safety reportable accidents including incidents across 
Education, Culture and Sport Service. (Schools and Educational Establishments; Communities, Culture 
and Sport and Educational Development, Policy and Performance). Trend calculation method is ongoing - 
Short trend calculates current period v previous period; Long trend calculates average over 12 month 
period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Service Accident & Incident 
Reports  

Service Manager 

Lesley Kirk 

Head of Service 

Charlie Penman 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 16.0 0.0 

May 2011 43.0 0.0 

June 2011 29.0 0.0 

July 2011 0.0 0.0 

August 2011 25.0 0.0 

Latest Analysis There were 3 reportable accidents for the month of August, 100% of these were 
within a school setting.  
Of the 25 reportable incidents recorded for August 77% of them were in schools, 
18% were within a cultural establishment and the remaining 5% at a community 
project  

Page 134



5

Compliance with Health and Safety Matrix 

This data reports on the compliance of the Education Culture and Sport Service with the health and safety 
matrix. The matrix is made up of the following factors that establishments must carryout as part of a 5 year 
rolling programme or maintain as part of their service provision; Workplace Inspections, Accident 
Recording, First Aid Provision and the completion of Fire Regulation Assessments. The chart shows 
ongoing monthly figures and compares data from the previous 2 financial years.  

Data Source 

Service Health & Safety Matrix 

Service Manager 

Lesley Kirk 

Head of Service 

Charlie Penman 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 97% 100% 

May 2011 97% 100% 

June 2011 99% 100% 

July 2011 90% 100% 

August 2011 93% 100% 

Latest Analysis The figure of 93% is an accumulative figure for data collated for July and 
August. There are no late workplace inspections for this month and those 
timetabled to be carried out have been completed.  

Page 135



6

Number of attendances at other indoor sports and leisure facilities excluding pools in a combined 
complex 

This indicator monitors the collective monthly attendance at indoor sports and leisure facilities excluding 
those with pools in a combined complex and including Aberdeen Sports Village. Trend calculation method 
is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates 
average over 12 month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated 
over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Facility attendance records  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Patricia Cassidy 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 86,871 

May 2011 100,927 

June 2011 83,953 

July 2011 69,440 

August 2011 74,746 

Latest Analysis Dry Facilities Analysis: Sport Aberdeen - With the exception of facilities at 
Sheddocksley and Westburn Tennis Centre, monthly and cumulative attendance 
levels for Sport Aberdeen managed premises in August 2011 demonstrated 
positive if modest movement across the board in comparison with 2010. Within 
this wider cumulative growth pattern, Lord Provost Alex Collie (+22%), Torry 
(+15%) and Kincorth (+11%) centres along with the Linx Ice Arena (+28%) are 
sustaining levels of increased use. Of the remaining two facilities, it is noticeable 
that, whilst the Jesmond Centre's attendances remain relatively stable, 
Peterculter Sports Centre appears to have 'turned a corner' in arresting what 
had been a pattern of cumulative decline from the start of the year  
Dry Facilities Analysis:Aberdeen Sports Village - With admissions of 39,338, the 
Sports Village has recorded a 13.4% increase in monthly figures or some 4,600 
additional attendances when compared to August 2010. Of this increase, 2,916 
additional attendances (+85.0%) have been generated through class 
registrations with the remainder being the result of a rise in attendances arising 
from premises hire and ticketed use of 'pay and play' facilities. (e.g. gymnasium 
use, etc)  

Page 136



7

Number of attendances at pools (excluding community pools) 

This indicator monitors the number of pool attendances excluding community pools. Trend calculation 
method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend 
calculates average over 12 month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is 
calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Facility attendance records  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Patricia Cassidy 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 57,352 

May 2011 68,478 

June 2011 67,391 

July 2011 50,547 

August 2011 61,401 

Latest Analysis Pool Facility Analysis: - Attendances across Sport Aberdeen managed facilities 
in August reflected an increase of 2.5% on 2010 with a rise in the cumulative 
figures to date of 4,660 additional admissions, or 1.6%, which is in line with the 
organisation's generic Corporate Plan target for raising footfall across the 
various operational 'departments'. Taking account of maintenance works at 
Bridge of Don Swimming Pool during July and part of August which resulted in a 
loss of some 3,700 admissions in comparison with 2010, the overall picture for 
cumulative admissions growth is proportionately slightly higher than the noted 
figures and suggests that, excluding this loss, cumulative growth would be 
closer to 2.8% for April-August. Looking at individual facilities, The Beach 
Leisure, Bucksburn, Bridge of Don and Kincorth Swimming Pools are recording 
sustained growth patterns with the latter having achieved a notable 56.8% 
increase in cumulative attendances and the remainder recording differing levels 
of positive movement. On the contrary, both Hazlehead and Northfield 
Swimming Pools admission levels show a continued pattern of attendance 
reduction although in the case of the former this may be a reflection against the 
significant growth in performance in 2010 rather than an indication of absolute 
decline.  

Page 137



8

Priority 06 - Engagement in Arts, Heritage, Culture and Sport 

Number of visits to libraries - person 

This indicator monitors the number of visits to libraries in person. Trend calculation method is year on 
year- Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long trend calculates average over 12 
month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is calculated over a 3 year 
period.  

Data Source 

Library and Information 
Services  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Patricia Cassidy 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 84,087 

May 2011 91,560 

June 2011 89,550 

July 2011 87,967 

August 2011 99,195 

Latest Analysis Visitor figures are down on the same period last year but are at their highest for 
this calendar year. The popularity of exhibitions taking place, particularly in the 
Central Library,and the special 2 for 1 offer on DVDs may have been a factor 
here.  

Page 138



9

Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums - person 

This indicator monitors the number of admissions to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long 
trend calculates average over 12 month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long 
trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Museums & Galleries  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Patricia Cassidy 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 23,676 

May 2011 28,017 

June 2011 26,642 

July 2011 37,885 

August 2011 33,105 

Latest Analysis A successful August all round with summer exhibitions and associated events 
proving popular with visitors. Aberdeen Art Gallery�s major summer exhibition - 
Wildlife Photographer of the Year (11 June � 20 August) � proved extremely 
popular with all ages this summer with visitor figures of 35,824 over the 10 week 
showing period � this is a rise of 16% from last year.  

Page 139



10 

 

Number of visits to/usages of council funded or part funded museums - outreach 

This indicator monitors the number of outreach visits to council funded or part funded museums. Trend 
calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous year period; Long 
trend calculates average over 12 month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long 
trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Museums & Galleries  

Service Manager 

Neil Bruce 

Head of Service 

Patricia Cassidy 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 79 

May 2011 169 

June 2011 65 

July 2011 73 

August 2011 

Latest Analysis The new programme of facilitated workshops starts in August and will run to 
June 2012 providing a series of exciting new learning opportunities for children 
of all ages. Topics covered are as diverse as Intrepid Explorers, Pirates, 
Jacobites and Masters of Art and throughout the year all our venues will be 
utilised. The programme is currently being delivered to nursery, primary and 
secondary schools in Aberdeen City  

Page 140



11 

 

Priority 08 - Better Performing/Value for Money 

Education, Culture and Sport -  Current Available Monthly Absence Data 

This indicator shows absence data for the latest monthly figure in relation to the average number of days 
lost per employee per month across the Education, Culture and Sport service.  
The chart also reflects the annual average number of days lost per employee. There has been a reduction 
of 0.2 average days lost per employee in absence across the service comparing 2010/11 and 2011/12 to 
date.  

Data Source 

PSe (HR/Payroll System)  

Service Manager 

Sarah Gear 

Head of Service 

Charlie Penman 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 1.0 0.8 

May 2011 1.5 0.8 

June 2011 1.3 0.8 

July 2011 0.7 0.8 

August 2011 0.8 0.8 

Latest Analysis The average number of days lost per employee for August has risen by 0.1% in 
comparison to the previous month. This figure reflects the return from the 
summer break for schools and therefore more short term teaching absences 
being recorded.  

Page 141



12 

 

ECS and Corporate Absence showing the Average Number of Days Lost Per Employee Per Service

ECS and Corporate Absence showing the Average Number of Days Lost Per Employee Per Service for a 
12 Month Rolling Period  

Data Source 

PSe (HR/Payroll System)  

Service Manager 

Sarah Gear 

Head of Service 

Charlie Penman 

Value Denominator Numerator Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 10.1 10.0 

May 2011 8.9 10.0 

June 2011 8.3 10.0 

July 2011 8.4 10.0 

August 2011 8.2 10.0 

Latest Analysis Education, Culture and Sport Absence showed a decrease to 8.2 days lost per 
employee over a 12 month period to date. This is the lowest number of days lost 
since we started reporting this data after the implementation of the revised 
Maximising Attendance Policy. This shows a commitment from managers to 
implement the policy and support employees.  

Page 142



13 

 

% Enquiries and complaints responded to within 15 working days 

This Education, Culture and Sport performance indicator monitors the percentage of formal enquiries and 
complaints received from the MP's, MSP's, government agencies, members of the public, elected 
members and the press which require a response within the corporate standard of 15 working days. On a 
day a to day basis the service also responds to a significant number of informal enquiries from these 
agencies.  
The chart shows monthly data and also annual comparative data for the last 2 financial years. Trend 
calculation method is ongoing - Short trend calculates current period v previous period; Long trend 
calculates average over 12 month period. Annual value = cumulative monthly values. Annual long trend is 
calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Enquiries database  

Service Manager 

Lesley Kirk 

Head of Service 

Charlie Penman 

Value Total Received
Response in 
15 working 

days 
Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

April 2011 40% 10 4 95% 

May 2011 53% 15 8 95% 

June 2011 75% 16 12 95% 

July 2011 80% 5 4 95% 

August 2011 100% 9 9 95% 

Latest Analysis 9 formal enquiries/complaints were received during the month of August. All of 
these were responded to in full within the corporate standard of 15 working 
days. The year to date figure for 2011/12 is 67% which equates to receipt of 55 
enquiries/complaints, 37 of which received a full response within the prescribed 
timescale.  

Page 143



14 

 

PI Status 

Alert 

Warning 

OK 

Unknown 

Data Only 

Long Term Trends 

Improving 

No Change 

Getting Worse 

Short Term Trends 

Improving 

No Change 

Getting Worse 

Page 144



15 

Reporting of Inspections per Academic Year 

Trend Charts demonstrating annual performance of inspections of learning 
establishments per academic year against service plan themes  
Report Author: Caroline Hastings 
Generated on: 24 October 2011 

Priority 01 - Curriculum for Excellence 

% of primary schools receiving positive Education Scotland inspection reports per academic year 

This indicator monitors the percentage of primary schools receiving positive Education Scotland (HMIE 
and LTS) inspection reports per academic year. A positive inspection result requires a grading of 
Satisfactory or above for each of the five prescribed quality indicators. Trend calculation method is year on 
year - Short trend calculates current period v previous period; Long trend is calculated over a 3 year 
period.  

Data Source 

Education Scotland  

Service Manager 

Sohail Faruqi 

Head of Service 

David Leng 

Value 
Total 

Inspections 
Number 
Positive 

Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

2009/10 100% 5 5 85% 

2010/11 75% 4 3 90% 

Latest Analysis During academic year 2010/11, 4 inspections were published by Education 
Scotland - Skene Square Primary, Ferryhill Primary, Cornhill Primary and Mile 
End Primary. All of these were positive apart from the Mile End Primary 
inspection.  

Page 145



16 

 

% of secondary schools receiving positive Education Scotland inspection reports per academic 
year 

This indicator monitors the percentage of secondary schools receiving positive Education Scotland (HMIE 
and LTS) inspection reports per academic year. A positive inspection result requires a grading of 
Satisfactory or above for each of the five prescribed quality indicators. Trend calculation method is year on 
year - Short trend calculates current period v previous period; Long trend is calculated over a 3 year 
period.  

Data Source 

Education Scotland  

Service Manager 

Derek Samson 

Head of Service 

David Leng 

Value 
Total 

Inspections 
Number 
Positive 

Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

2009/10 50% 2 1 85% 

2010/11 100% 2 2 90% 

Latest Analysis During academic year 2010/11, two inspection reports were published by 
Education Scotland - Dyce Academy and Harlaw Academy. Both of these were 
positive.  

Page 146



17 

 

% of local authority pre-school education centres and nurseries receiving positive SCSWIS 
inspection reports per academic year 

This indicator monitors the percentage of local authority pre-school education centres and nurseries 
receiving positive SCSWIS (Social Care & Social Work Improvement Scotland formerly known as Care 
Commission) inspection reports per academic year. A positive inspection result requires a grading of 3 - 
Adequate or above. Trend calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v 
previous period; Long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

SCSWIS  

Service Manager 

Liz Gillies 

Head of Service 

David Leng 

Value 
Total 

Inspections 
Number 
Positive 

Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

2009/10 100% 20 20 98% 

2010/11 100% 11 11 98% 

Latest Analysis During academic year 2010/11, 11 inspection reports were published, all of 
which were positive.  

Page 147



18 

 

% of local authority pre-school education centres and nurseries receiving positive Education 
Scotland inspection reports per academic year 

This indicator monitors the percentage of local authority pre-school education centres and nurseries 
receiving positive Education Scotland (HMIE and LTS) inspection reports per academic year. A positive 
inspection result requires a grading of Satisfactory or above for each the five prescribed quality indicators. 
Trend calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous period; Long 
trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Education Scotland  

Service Manager 

Liz Gillies 

Head of Service 

David Leng 

Value 
Total 

Inspections 
Number 
Positive 

Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

2009/10 100% 5 5 98% 

2010/11 100% 4 4 98% 

Latest Analysis During academic year 2010/11, 4 inspections were published by Education 
Scotland - Cornhill Nursery, Mile End Nursery, Ferryhill Nursery and Skene 
Square Nursery. All of these were positive.  

Page 148



19 

 

% of local authority pre-school education centres and nurseries receiving positive integrated 
Education Scotland and SCSWIS inspection reports per academic year 

This indicator monitors the percentage of local authority pre-school education centres and nurseries 
receiving positive integrated Education Scotland (HMIE and LTS) and SCSWIS (Social Care & Social 
Work Improvement Scotland formerly known as Care Commission) inspection reports per academic year. 
A positive inspection result requires a grading of Satisfactory or above for each of the five prescribed 
quality indicators. Trend calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v 
previous period; Long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Education Scotland and 
SCSWIS  

Service Manager 

Liz Gillies 

Head of Service 

David Leng 

Value 
Total 

inspections 
Number 
Positive 

Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

2009/10 100% 4 4 98% 

2010/11 100% 1 1 98% 

Latest Analysis During academic year 2010/11, one joint inspection report was published for 
Ashgrove Children's Centre. This was reported as positive.  

Page 149



20 

 

% of partner provider pre-school education centres and nurseries receiving positive SCSWIS 
inspection reports per academic year 

This indicator monitors the percentage of partner provider pre-school education centres and nurseries 
receiving positive SCSWIS (Social Care & Social Work Improvement Scotland formerly known as Care 
Commission) inspection reports per academic year. A positive inspection result requires a grading of 3 - 
Adequate or above. Trend calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v 
previous period; Long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

SCSWIS  

Service Manager 

Liz Gillies 

Head of Service 

David Leng 

Value 
Total 

Inspections 
Number 
Positive 

Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

2009/10 100% 6 6 100% 

2010/11 97% 29 28 100% 

Latest Analysis During academic year 2010/11, 29 inspection reports were published, 28 of 
these were positive.  

Page 150



21 

 

% of partner provider pre-school education centres and nurseries receiving positive Education 
Scotland inspection reports per academic year 

This indicator monitors the percentage of partner provider pre-school education centres and nurseries 
receiving positive Education Scotland (HMIE and LTS) inspection reports per academic year. A positive 
inspection result requires a grading of Satisfactory or above for each of the five prescribed quality 
indicators. Trend calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v previous 
period; Long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Education Scotland  

Service Manager 

Liz Gillies 

Head of Service 

David Leng 

Value 
Total 

Inspections 
Number 
Positive 

Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

2009/10 0 0 98% 

2010/11 50% 2 1 98% 

Latest Analysis During academic year 2010/11, 2 inspection reports were published - Step by 
Step Nursery and Midstocket Playgroup. The inspection report for Midstocket 
Playgroup was negative.  

Page 151



22 

 

% of partner provider pre-school education centres and nurseries receiving positive integrated 
Education Scotland and SCSWIS inspection reports per academic year 

This indicator monitors the percentage of partner provider pre-school education centres and nurseries 
receiving positive integrated Education Scotland (HMIE and LTS) and SCSWIS (Social Care & Social 
Work Improvement Scotland formerly known as Care Commission) inspection reports per academic year. 
A positive inspection result requires a grading of Satisfactory or above for each of the five prescribed 
quality indicators. Trend calculation method is year on year - Short trend calculates current period v 
previous period; Long trend is calculated over a 3 year period.  

Data Source 

Education Scotland and 
SCSWIS  

Service Manager 

Liz Gillies 

Head of Service 

David Leng 

Value 
Total 

Inspections 
Number 
Positive 

Target Status Long Trend Short Trend 

2009/10 100% 3 3 100% 

2010/11 83% 6 5 100% 

Latest Analysis During academic year 2010/11, 6 inspection reports were published, 5 of these 
were positive.  

Page 152



23 

 

PI Status 

Alert 

Warning 

OK 

Unknown 

Data Only 

Long Term Trends 

Improving 

No Change 

Getting Worse 

Short Term Trends 

Improving 

No Change 

Getting Worse 

Page 153



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 10.1

Page 155

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 15 September 2011
	4.1 Motion by Councillor Boulton - Placing Requests / Out of Zone Admissions
	5.1 2011/12 Budget Monitoring
	5.2 Capital Monitoring - Education, Culture and Sport Projects
	6.1 Queen's Diamond Jubilee Bank Holiday - 5 June 2012
	6.2 Community Development Fund - Childcare and Out of School Provision
	6.3 Community Centres
	8.1 Sports Grants
	8.2 Water Management Plan
	9.1 Committee Business Statement
	9.2 Motions List
	9.3 Education, Culture and Sport Performance Report
	10.1 Motion by Councillor Boulton - Placing Requests / Out of Zone Admissions

